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Ali S. Habib 
Chairman
Ali S. Habib is the Chairman of Indus Motor Company Limited and is also 
the Founding Director of the Company. He also serves as a Member on 
the Board of Directors of Thal Limited, Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited and 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited.

He is a graduate in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Minnesota, 
USA. He has attended the PMD Program at Harvard University.

Yuji Takarada 
Director & Vice Chairman
Yuji Takarada has been appointed as a Director on the Board and Vice 
Chairman of Indus Motor Company Limited with effect from January 2018. 
He has been serving at Toyota Motor Corporation for over 25 years and has 
worked in different capacities. He has also served as Marketing Director for 
Toyota Astra Motor (TAM). 

He has completed his Bachelor’s degree in Sociology from Hitotsubashi University 
in Japan.

Ali Asghar Jamali 
Chief Executive
Ali Asghar Jamali was appointed as Chief Executive Officer in January 2017. 
He has been with the Company since October 2000 and has served in key 
roles in various departments, owing to which he has acquired rich experience 
in end-to-end management of company operations.

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and has 
attended the Advanced Management Program at Harvard University and the 
Accelerated Management Program at Wharton School of Business in the USA.

Parvez Ghias 
Director

Parvez Ghias was Chief Executive of the Company from 2005 to 2016 and 
continues to serve Indus Motor as Director on the Board. He is currently the 
Chief Executive Officer at Habib University Foundation and Vice Chairman - 
Automotive for the House of Habib. He also serves as a Director on the boards 
of Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited and Shell Pakistan Limited.. 

Prior to joining the Company and House of Habib, he was the Vice President 
and CFO at Engro Corporation (formerly Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited) and 
served as Director on Engro subsidiaries. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants from England & Wales and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics 
and Statistics.

Azam Faruque 
Independent Director

Azam Faruque was elected as a Director of the Company in October 
2014. He is a Director and CEO of Cherat Cement Co. Limited, a Ghulam 
Faruque Group (GFG) company. Apart from 27 years he has spent in the 
cement industry and other GFG businesses, he has served as a member 
on the Board of various public and private sector institutions. Currently, he 
is a Director of Faruque (Pvt) Limited, Greaves Pakistan (Pvt) Limited, Unicol 
Limited, International Industries Limited, Atlas Battery Limited, Habib University 
Foundation and State Bank of Pakistan.  

He is an Electrical Engineering and Computer Science graduate from Princeton 
University, USA, and has also completed his MBA with High Honors from the 
University of Chicago.

Board of Directors
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Imran A. Habib 
Director
Imran A. Habib was appointed as Director of Indus Motor Company Limited 
in February 2019. He is Senior Vice President at Habib American Bank in 
New York, USA.  Prior to his transfer to the United States in 2016, he served as 
Senior Vice President with Habib Bank AG Zurich in the United Arab Emirates 
from 2008-2016. He has a graduate degree in Business Administration from 
Bryant University (2002), USA, and has attended the Program for Leadership 
Development at Harvard Business School. 

Sadatoshi Kashihara  
Director
Sadatoshi Kashihara was appointed as Director of Indus Motor Company 
Limited in January 2017 and also serves as Director Manufacturing. He has 
been with Toyota Group since 1990 and has held various senior executive 
positions. He has vast experience in the areas of Production and Plant 
Engineering at various Toyota plants in the world.

He is a graduate from the Miyazaki University, Japan

Tetsuya Ezumi  
Director

Tetsuya Ezumi was appointed as Director of Indus Motor Company Limited 
in May 2018. He has been associated with Toyota Motor Corporation from 
1985 to 2017, during which time he has held various senior positions. He 
joined Toyota Tsusho Corporation in 2018 and he is presently Executive Officer 
of Toyota Tsusho Corporation and has served as director on the Board of various 
Toyota Group companies in countries around the globe.

He is a graduate from Faculty of Law of Kagawa University, Japan.

Susumu Matsuda  
Director 
Susumu Matsuda was appointed as a Director of Indus Motor Company 
Limited in February 2018. Currently he is serving as the President of Toyota 
Motor Asia Pacific Pte Ltd and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Asia & China 
region, Toyota. He is presently director on the Board of Directors of various 
Toyota Group companies in countries around the globe. 

He graduated from Kobe University, Japan.

Board of Directors

Mohamedali R. Habib 
Director 
Mohamedali R. Habib is the Founding Director of Indus Motor Company 
Limited. He has been an Executive Director of Habib Metropolitan Bank 
Limited since 2004 and currently serves as the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of the Bank. He also serves as a Member on the Board of Thal Limited 
and Habib Insurance Company Limited. He was appointed as Joint-President & 
Division Head (Asia) & Member of General Management of Habib Bank AG Zurich 
in 2011.

He has a graduate degree in Business Management – Finance from Clark University, 
USA.
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Company Information

Bankers
Bank Alfalah Limited
Bank Al-Habib Limited
Citibank N.A.
Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
United Bank Limited

Auditors
A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
State Life Building No. 1-C,
I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

Legal Advisors
A.K. Brohi & Company
Mansoor Ahmed Khan & Co.
Mahmud & Co.
Sayeed & Sayeed

Share Registrar
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, 
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, 
Karachi-74400.
Tel:      0800-23275
UAN:  111-111-500
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com

Credit Rating
Credit Rating Company:
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited
Long term rating: AA+
Short term rating: A-1+

Factory / Registered Office
Plot No. N.W.Z/1/P-1, Port Qasim Authority, 
Bin Qasim, Karachi.
Phone: (PABX) (92-21) 34720041-48
              (UAN) (92-21) 111-TOYOTA (869-682) 
Fax:                  (92-21) 34720040  
Website:           www.toyota-indus.com

Chief Financial Officer
Mr.  Muhammad Aqeel Loon

Company Secretary
Mr. Muhammad Arif Anzer

Board Audit Committee Members
Mr. Azam Faruque (Chairman)
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 
Mr. Imran A. Habib
Mr. Susumu Matsuda
Mr. Tetsuya Ezumi
Mr. Parvez Ghias
Mr. Azam Khan (Secretary)

Board Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee Members
Mr. Azam Faruque (Chairman)
Mr. Ali S. Habib 
Mr. Parvez Ghias
Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali
Mr. Mohammad Ibadullah (Secretary)

Board Ethics Committee Members
Mr. Parvez Ghias (Chairman)
Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali
Mr. Imran A. Habib
Mr. Mohammad Ibadullah (Secretary)
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IMC’s Basic Approach to Corporate Governance

IMC has a range of long-standing in-house 
committees responsible for monitoring and 
discussing management and corporate activities from 
viewpoints of various stakeholders to make prompt 
decisions for developing strategies, speeding up 
operations while ensuring heightened transparency 
and the fulfillment of social obligations. IMC has a 
unique corporate culture that places emphasis on 
problem solving and preventative measures in line 
with Toyota Global Standards.

Basic Concept of Compliance

IMC follows the guiding principles of Toyota and 
not only complies with local laws and regulations, 
but also meets social norms, corporate ethics 
and expectations of various stakeholders. IMC 
undertakes open and fair corporate activities to meet 
local standards as well as Toyota Global Standards. 
The Audit Committee consists of four non-Executive 
Directors and one independant Director.

Board Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee

The Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee 
of the Board. It recommends human resource 
management policies to the Board. It also 
recommends selection, evaluation, compensation 
and the succession plan of the CEO and Senior 
Management employees who directly report to 
the CEO. The Committee consists of three Non-
Executive Directors, one Executive Director and the 
CEO.

Board Ethics Committee

The Committee has the responsibility of overseeing 
ethical policies and compliance by the Company. 
It provides expeditious actions on disclosures of 
wrongdoing. The Ethics Committee also reviews 
and investigates incidents of whistle-blowing. The 
Committee consists of the CEO and two Non-
Executive Directors.

Board Share Transfer Committee

The Board Share Transfer Committee has been 
authorized by the Board to approve transfer of 
shares. All Share  Transfer Resolutions are noted 
by the Board of Directors in subsequent meetings.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee assists the Board in 
fulfilling its oversight responsibility for the investment 
in assets of the company. It evaluates the capital 
expenditures required to be made and recommends 
the same to the Board for approval. The Committee 
is also responsible for formulating the overall policies 
for investment in fixed assets, subject to approval 
by the Board, and establishing investment guidelines 
in furtherance of those policies. The Committee 
consists of the CEO, two Directors, the CFO and 
Secretary.

Marketing Technical Co-ordination Committee

Marketing Technical Co-ordination Committee 
is a management committee responsible for 
synchronization between the marketing and technical 
departments. The committee also controls new 
products or minor model specification changes and 
schedules. The Committee is chaired by the CEO 
every month and representatives from marketing 
and technical departments attend the meeting.

ACT #1 Management Committee

The ACT #1 Management Committee is responsible 
for the monitoring of organizational KPIs and 
stewardship of financial performance every 
month. It also reviews departmental targets and 
accomplishments achieved during the month. In 
addition ACT #1 reviews government regulatory 
affairs including macro-economic situations which 
results in formation of the Company’s strategy and 
risk management policies. The meeting is conducted 
by the CEO with representation from all departments.

Safety, Health and Environment Steering 
Committee

The Steering Committee meets on a monthly basis 
and keeps a close eye on company wide Safety, 
Health and Environment (S.H.E) statistics, KPI 
trends, relevant local laws compliance, promulgating 
drive and focus on S.H.E. right from the top; enabling 
Management to have a first hand feel of S.H.E issues 
prevailing on the shop floor and ways to resolve them 
via efficient and swift decision-making. The S.H.E 
Steering committee, chaired by the CEO, formulates 
the overall policies and S.H.E framework for 
the company.

 Corporate Governance
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Factory / Registered Office
Plot No. N.W.Z./1/P-1, Port Qasim Authority 
Bin Qasim, Karachi.
PABX: 	 (92-21) 34720041-48
Fax: 	 (92-21) 34720040

Share Registrar
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, 
Karachi-74400.
Tel: 	 0800-23275
UAN: 	 111-111-500
Email: 	 info@cdcsrsl.com

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. on October 8, 2019 at the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of  Pakistan, Karachi.

Shareholders as on October 1, 2019 are encouraged to participant and vote.

Any shareholder may appoint a proxy to vote on his or her behalf. Proxies must be deposited with the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

Ownership
On June 30, 2019 there were 4,126 shareholders on record of the Company’s ordinary shares.

Dividend Payment
The proposal of the Board of Directors for dividend payment will be considered at the Annual General Meeting. 
The net amount of dividend will be credited into respective account of the shareholder listed in the register of 
members as on October 1, 2019. Income Tax will be deducted in accordance with the provisions of Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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Listing on Stock Exchanges
Indus Motor Company Limited equity shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Stock Code
The stock code for dealer in equity shares of Indus Motor Company Limited at PSX is INDU.

Shareholder Information
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Operating Highlights

 158.0 
139.7

Net Revenues (Rs. in billion) (Units)

(Units)

2019
2018

 65,346
62,886

Vehicle Production

2019
2018

 66,211 
 64,000

Vehicle Sales

2019

2018
  174.5

 200.7

Earnings Per Share (Rs.)

2019
2018

Year ended June 30
2019 2018

Profit after Tax Rs in billion  13.7  15.8 
Vehicle Sales Units  66,211  64,000 
Vehicle Production Units  65,346  62,886 
Net Revenues Rs in billion  158.0 139.7
Earnings Per Share Rs  174.5 200.7
Annual Cash Dividend Per Share Rs  115.0  140.0 
Shareholders’ Equity Rs in billion 40.0  36.7 
Contribution to National Exchequer Rs in billion 52.3  49.0 
Manpower No. of employees  3,349  3,266 
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Financial Summary

% Change Year ended June 30

For The Year: 2019 Vs 
2018 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Units sold 3%  66,211  64,000  60,586  64,584  57,387  34,470 

Net revenues Rs in billion 13%  158.0 139.7  112.0  108.8  96.5  57.1 

Profit before tax Rs in billion -17%  19.0  23.0  19.1  17.4  14.1  5.0 

Profit after tax Rs in billion -13%  13.7  15.8  13.0  11.5  9.1  3.9 

Return on equity Percentage -20%  34.2  42.9  41.7  41.5  37.9  19.4 

Per Share Data:

 
Earnings (EPS)  Rs -13%  174.5  200.7  165.4  145.7  115.9  49.3 

Cash dividends Rs -18% 115  140.0  115.0  100.0  80.0  29.5 

Shareholders’ equity Rs 9%  509.5  467.5  396.9  351.5  305.8  253.4 

At Year-End:  

 
Total assets Rs in billion -21%  64.8  81.9  63.9  57.5  50.4  26.1 

Shareholders’ equity Rs in billion 9% 40.0  36.7  31.2  27.6  24.0  19.9 

Share Performance (June 30):  

Price per share Rs -15%  1,203.9  1,421.5  1,793.6  939.5  1,249.0  537.9 

Market capitalization Rs in billion -15%  94.6  111.7  141.0  73.8  98.2  42.3 

Net Revenues Net Income / ROE EPS / Dividend per share

(Rs)(Rs)(%) 
(Rs in billion) (Rs in billion) 

Net Income 
ROE (Right scale) 

EPS
Cash Dividend Per Share (Right scale) 
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION ----------------------- (Rs in million) -------------------------- ---------------------- (Percentage) ------------------------

Property, plant and equipment  13,805  7,225  6,258  4,919  5,184  6,032  21.31  8.82  9.80  8.55  10.29  23.10 

Intangibles  93  87  88  19  10  1  0.14  0.11  0.14  0.03  0.02  0.00 

Long-term loans and advances  16  49  9  4  11  29  0.02  0.06  0.01  0.01  0.02  0.11 

Long-term investments  -    -    -    5,006  4,955  -    -    -    -    8.70  9.83  -   

Long-term deposits  11  9  9  10  10  10  0.02  0.01  0.01  0.02  0.02  0.04 

Deferred taxation  -    14  74  199  5  -    -    0.02  0.12  0.35  0.01  -   

Stores and spares  544  301  204  154  179  142  0.84  0.37  0.32  0.27  0.35  0.54 

Stock-in-trade  13,560  11,151  9,318  7,785  6,150  4,469  20.93  13.61  14.59  13.53  12.20  17.12 

Trade debts  2,548  1,453  759  1,132  448  1,737  3.93  1.77  1.19  1.97  0.89  6.65 

Loans and advances  3,728  3,715  1,653  1,125  1,221  1,006  5.75  4.53  2.59  1.96  2.42  3.85 

Short-term prepayments  32  15  21  46  19  15  0.05  0.02  0.03  0.08  0.04  0.06 

Accrued return  35  120  376  513  419  87  0.05  0.15  0.59  0.89  0.83  0.33 

Other receivables  3,110  556  402  191  168  176  4.80  0.68  0.63  0.33  0.33  0.67 

Short-term Investments  23,402  55,031  41,488  33,697  26,257  9,121  36.12  67.17  64.95  58.57  52.10  34.93 

Taxation - payment less provision  617  -    -    -    -    1,216  0.95  -    -    -    -    4.66 

Cash and bank balances  3,282  2,201  3,221  2,738  5,365  2,068  5.07  2.69  5.04  4.76  10.65  7.92 

Total Assets  64,783  81,927  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00 

 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital  786  786  786  786  786  786  1.21  0.96  1.23  1.37  1.56  3.01 

Reserves  39,259  35,958  30,411  26,844  23,250  19,130  60.60  43.89  47.61  46.65  46.13  73.26 

Shareholders' Equity  40,045  36,744  31,197  27,630  24,036  19,916  61.81  44.85  48.84  48.02  47.69  76.27 

Long Term Loan  81  -    -    -    -    -  0.13  -    -    -    -   -

Deferred taxation  425  -    -    -    -    219  0.66  -    -    -    -    0.84 

Deferred Revenue  57  27  4  -    -    -   0.09  0.03  0.01  -    -    -   

Trade, dividend and other payables 16,245  15,974  9,683  10,035  9,181  4,430  25.08  19.50  15.16  17.44  18.22  16.97 

Advances from customers and dealers  7,930  27,491  22,189  19,127  16,193  1,546  12.24  33.56  34.74  33.24  32.13  5.92 

Taxation - provision less payment  -    1,691  807  745  990  -    -    2.06  1.26  1.29  1.96  -   

Total Equity and Liabilities  64,783  81,927  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net Sales  157,996 139,716 111,943  108,759  96,516  57,064  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00 

Cost of sales  138,805  115,831  92,450  91,027  82,272  51,270  87.85 82.9     82.59  83.70  85.24  89.85 

Gross profit  19,191 23,885 19,493  17,731  14,244  5,794  12.15  17.10  17.41  16.30  14.76  10.15 

Distribution costs  1,404  1,284  1,228  1,061  996  794  0.89  0.92  1.10  0.98  1.03  1.39 

Administrative expenses  1,410  1,524  1,053  931  799  635  0.89  1.09  0.94  0.86  0.83  1.11 

Other operating expenses  235  194  177  144  119  52  0.15  0.14  0.16  0.13  0.12  0.09 

WPPF and WWF  1,406  1,705  1,418  1,285  1,052  372  0.89  1.22  1.27  1.18  1.09  0.65 

Operating income  4,307  3,901  3,593  3,164  2,907  1,113  2.73  2.79  3.21  2.91  3.01  1.95 

Finance costs  67 80 69  77  52  38  0.04  0.06  0.06  0.07  0.05  0.07 

Profit before taxation  18,976  22,999  19,141  17,397  14,133  5,016  12.01  16.46  17.10  16.00  14.64  8.79 

Taxation  5,261  7,227  6,140  5,943  5,022  1,143  3.33  5.17  5.48  5.46  5.20  2.00 

Profit after taxation  13,715  15,772  13,001  11,455  9,110  3,873  8.68  11.29  11.61  10.53  9.44  6.79 

Vertical Analysis
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2019 vs 

2018
2018 vs 
2017

2017 vs 
2016

2016 vs 
2015

2015 vs 
2014

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION ----------------- (Rs in million) -------------------- ----------------- (Percentage) -----------------

Property, plant and equipment  13,805  7,225  6,258  4,919  5,184  6,032  91.07  15.45  27.22  (5.11)  (14.07)

Intangibles  93  87  88  19  10  1  6.90  (1.14)  356.17  98.32  872.70 

Long-term loans and advances  16  49  9  4  11  29  (67.35)  444.44  137.22  (65.81)  (62.25)

Long-term investments  -    -    -    5,006  4,955  -    -    -    (100.00)  1.03  100   

Long-term deposits  11  9  9  10  10  10  22.22  -    (9.53)  2.91  -   

Deferred taxation  -    14  74  199  5  -     (3,135.71)  (81.08)  (62.74)   3,851.10  102.42   

Stores and spares  544  301  204  154  179  142  80.73  47.55  32.85  (14.02)  26.08 

Stock-in-trade  13,560  11,151  9,318  7,785  6,150  4,469  21.60  19.67  19.69  26.58  37.61 

Trade debts  2,548  1,453  759  1,132  448  1,737  75.36  91.44  (32.93)  152.75  (74.23)

Loans and advances  3,728  3,715  1,653  1,125  1,221  1,006  0.35  124.74  46.87  (7.79)  21.33 

Short-term prepayments  32  15  21  46  19  15  113.33  (28.57)  (53.87)  140.60  26.62 

Accrued return  35  120  376  513  419  87  (70.83)  (68.09)  (26.76)  22.57  379.46 

Other receivables  3,110  556  402  191  168  176  459.35  38.31  110.14  14.04  (4.51)

Short-term Investments  23,402  55,031  41,488  33,697  26,257  9,121  (57.47)  32.64  23.12  28.34  187.86 

Taxation - payment less provision  617  -    -    -    -    1,216 136.49  -    -    -    (181.41)

Cash and bank balances  3,282  2,201  3,221  2,738  5,365  2,068  49.11  (31.67)  17.66  (48.98)  159.44 

Total Assets  64,783  81,927  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  (20.93)  28.25  11.02  14.16  93.02 

 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital  786  786  786  786  786  786  -    -    -    -    -   

Reserves  39,259  35,958  30,411  26,844  23,250  19,130  9.18  18.24  13.29  15.46  21.54 

Shareholders' Equity  40,045  36,744  31,197  27,630  24,036  19,916  8.98  17.78  12.91  14.95  20.69 

Long Term Loan  81  -    -    -    -    -    100.00  -    -    -    -   

Deferred taxation  425  -    -    -    -    219  100.00  -    -    -    (100.00)

Deferred Revenue  57  27  4  -    -    -    111.11  575.00  100.00  -    -   

Trade, dividend and other payables  16,245  15,974  9,683  10,035  9,181  4,430  1.70  64.97  (3.51)  9.31  107.22 

Advances from customers and dealers  7,930  27,491  22,189  19,127  16,193  1,546  (71.15)  23.89  16.01  18.12  947.60 

Taxation - provision less payment  -    1,691  807  745  990  -    (100.00)  109.54  8.34  (24.78)  100.00 

Total Equity and Liabilities  64,783  81,927  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  (20.93)  28.25  11.02  14.16  93.02 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net Sales  157,996  139,716  111,943  108,759  96,516  57,064  13.08  24.81  2.93  12.68  69.14 

Cost of sales  138,805  115,831  92,450  91,027  82,272  51,270  19.83  25.29  1.56  10.64  60.47 

Gross profit  19,191  23,885  19,493  17,731  14,244  5,794  (19.65)  22.53  9.94  24.48  145.86 

Distribution costs  1,404  1,284  1,228  1,061  996  794  9.35  4.56  15.75  6.51  25.52 

Administrative expenses  1,410  1,524  1,053  931  799  635  (7.48)  44.73  13.13  16.54  25.85 

Other operating expenses  235  194  177  144  119  52  21.13  9.60  23.05  20.42  129.67 

WPPF and WWF  1,406  1,705  1,418  1,285  1,052  372  (17.54)  20.24  10.31  22.15  182.91 

Operating income  4,307  3,901  3,593  3,164  2,907  1,113  10.41  8.57  13.54  8.86  161.09 

Finance costs  67  80  69  77  52  38  (16.25)  15.94  (10.70)  48.93  35.63 

Profit before taxation  18,976  22,999  19,141  17,397  14,133  5,016  (17.49)  20.16  10.02  23.10  181.72 

Taxation  5,261  7,227  6,140  5,943  5,022  1,143  (27.20)  17.70  3.32  18.32  339.38 

Profit after taxation  13,715  15,772  13,001  11,455  9,110  3,873  (13.04)  21.31  13.50  25.74  135.20 

Horizontal Analysis
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Statement of Value Addition
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018

Rupees in ‘000 % Rupees in ‘000 %

Wealth Generated

Gross revenue  191,383,617 97.8%  168,827,803 97.7%
Other income  4,306,662 2.2%  3,900,685 2.3%

 195,690,279 100.0%  172,728,488 100.0%

Bought in material and services and other expenses  123,494,196 63.1%  103,581,088 60.0%

 72,196,083 36.9%  69,147,400 40.0%

Wealth Distributed
Employees
Salaries, wages and other benefits  2,589,935 3.6%  2,852,016 4.1%

Society
Donations towards education, health and environment  229,992 0.3%  190,530 0.3%

Providers of Finance
Finance cost and Compensation on advances from 
customers

 275,718 0.4%  572,406 0.8%

Government
Income tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, WWF and 
WPPF

 53,264,406 73.8%  47,836,854 69.2%

Shareholders
Dividend  9,039,000 12.5%  11,004,000 15.9%

Retained within the business for future growth
Retained earnings, depreciation and amortization  6,797,032 9.4%  6,691,594 9.7%

 72,196,083 100.0%  69,147,400 100.0%

Distribution Of Wealth

Employees Society Providers of finance  
Retained within the business for future growth  

Government Shareholders 

2019
0.4%
0.3%

9.4%

3.6%

73.8%

12.5%

2018

0.8%
0.3%

9.7%

4.1%

69.2%

15.9%
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Chairman’s Review
“I welcome you to this 30th Annual General Meeting of 
your Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.” 

Ali S. Habib
Chairman
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Dear Shareholders,

Since the very first Corolla came off the production 
line in 1993, Indus Motor Company has strived to 
uphold the philosophy of “Kaizen” (Continuous 
Improvement) and practice the “Toyota Way” 
throughout its operations. These practices, coupled 
with the support of all shareholders and customers, 
have allowed us to become the most respected 
brand and achieve sustained levels of excellence 
and performance. Today, we begin by thanking our 
customers and shareholders for their continued 
patronage and allegiance.

On the business front, world economic growth is 
expected to slow down, at around 2.5% to 3%, 
even this moderate pace of expansion in the global 
economy is threatened by downside risks that 
can potentially create development challenges in 
many parts of the world.  Together with disruptive 
technologies there is a major upheaval in the world 
trade order in which nationalism, protectionism, and 
the looming threat of an increased US / China Trade 
War, Brexit and multiple geo-political conflicts are 
creating uncertainty on a global scale.

Pakistan has entered its 13th IMF program at the end 
of the current fiscal year.  The structural adjustments 
envisaged in the earlier programs were not achieved.  
During the period under review the Rupee has 
undergone a major correction, interest rates have 
more than doubled, energy prices have been 
significantly enhanced; there have been significant 
increases in the Customs Duties and Regulatory 
Duties and multiple measures taken to improve 
documentation and increase the tax base.

While we strongly support the Government’s efforts 
to document the economy and increase the tax 
base, it is important that the adjustments and new 
policies be implemented in a gradual and practical 
manner; such an approach will allow the market 
place sufficient time to prepare for and adjust to 
these changes.

During the year under review there were a number of 
policy changes impacting the automobile sector.  The 
documented automobile industry was required not to 
sell vehicles to non-tax filers. This restriction was then 
modified for vehicles greater than 1300cc.  This was 
subsequently done away with. A 10% Federal Excise 
Duty was introduced on only one vehicle, made in 
Pakistan, the Fortuner. This too, was immediately 
changed to include all vehicles upto 1700cc and 
above and finally in the latest budget this was 
reduced from 10% to 7.5% for vehicles from 2000cc 
and above and a fresh Federal Excise Duty of 2.5% 
and 5% was introduced on vehicles of smaller engine 
capacity. These significant and frequent changes can 
be counter-productive to mid-term and long-term 
planning and significantly impact the confidence of 
both domestic and international investors.

As the new fiscal year commenced the cumulative 
effect of these abrupt changes and the increase in 
additional customs duties from 2% to 7%, devaluation 
and Excise Duty has forced the automobile makers 
to make unprecedented increases in prices which 
together with the depressed economy has seen a 
major correction in demand.

The Automobile Development Policy of 2016-
2021 has led to multiple new investments made by 
new entrants.  These new firms have a significant 
advantage in paying lower Customs Duties on 
imported parts; their entry into the market place, 
which is experiencing a severe down turn, will be 
challenging for the entire industry comprising of 
existing OEMs and new entrants.  We would urge 
the policy makers to encourage local manufacturing 
of parts by targeting concessions to the local parts 
manufacturers rather than encouraging imports.

In an extremely welcome move, the Government has 
finally clamped down on the illegal and undocumented 
imports of used vehicles. We urge the Government 
to sustain these measures and compliment the 
Government’s decision makers for taking this long 
awaited, bold step.
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The Ministry of Climate Change is championing the 
introduction of a new policy for Electric Vehicles.  
Toyota has established global leadership in numerous 
technologies with the introduction, a decade ago, of 
Hybrid vehicles, Hydrogen Fuel Cell vehicles, plug-
in Hybrids and Electric Vehicles. For a developing 
country like Pakistan our focus on climate change must 
be considered in a broader context of basic human 
needs starting with clean drinking water, sewage 
disposal, health care, education and emissions from 
existing vehicles on roads, both passenger cars and 
commercial vehicles required for transporting of 
goods throughout the country, together with industrial 
and power generation emissions. We have noted with 
great concern, information in the press regarding the 
proposed policy for Electric Vehicles which alarmingly 
seeks to encourage imports of Electric Vehicles at 
a huge loss of revenue on custom duty and sales 
tax and without regards to localization, resulting in 
out flow of Dollars, loss of jobs and many other ill-
effects and is being formulated in a vacuum, without 
consultation from the stake holders in the industry or 
relevant institutions of the State such as Engineering 
Development Board and Ministry of Industries.  Such 
a process is not in the national interest.

The recently announced Federal Budget, contained a 
policy statement in which luxury goods and finished 
goods would attract higher Customs Duties with the 
intention of reducing imports and allowing domestic 
manufacturing sector to regain their lost market 
share in the domestic market which had been eroded 
over the years due to multiple inconsistent policies 
and poorly negotiated Free Trade Agreements (FTAs).  
However, its implementation has led to serious 
distortions by applying these additional Custom 
Duties indiscriminately on many industrial inputs, raw 
materials and intermediary products. We strongly urge 
the Government to require a coordinated approach 
between the tax collecting institutions (FBR) and 
the economic ministries so that revenue measures 
can be applied in a strategic way that lead to both 
increased revenue, as well as, increased productivity, 
job creation and reduction in imports.

Being at the very forefront of the automobile industry 
in Pakistan, Indus Motor Company has a direct 
interest in vehicle safety and we pay special attention 
to occupant safety. To this end, we pursue a number 
of safety-oriented initiatives such as promotion of 
our Safety Mascot THUMS (Total Human Model for 
Safety), over digital and other platforms to educate 
masses on best-in-class safety features provided in 
all IMC CKD variants.

IMC works hand in hand with its dealers all over 
Pakistan to create and nurture clientele that has 
our trust and confidence. We believe in helping our 
dealers sell Toyota vehicles by providing them with 
all the information about our products, after sales 
service and genuine Toyota parts. We actively support 
them through continuous motivational and technical 
educational programs and trainings. 

A true measure of success for any company is 
to delight its customers. This is our single most 
important goal.  To achieve this, we have to provide 
the best-in-class quality products, pre and after 
sales service and the confidence that the ownership 
experience throughout the product lifespan is one in 
which the customers can rely upon us to continue 
to meet all their needs. We acknowledge that the 
year under review has been a difficult one in some 
aspects where multiple price changes, outside our 
control, were required to be taken, against significant 
and sudden Rupee devaluation, abrupt introduction 
of Federal Excise duty and other numerous policy 
changes that undoubtedly have caused hardship 
to our customers. We will redouble our efforts to 
continue to endeavor to meet and exceed the trust 
and confidence, for which we are very grateful, that 
they have in us and in our products.

I am pleased to report that your Company’s Board of 
Directors has continued to provide valuable guidance 
and oversight to ensure strong governance and to 
effectively provide encouragement and input to the 
management throughout the year. A review of the 
Board’s performance and effectiveness through a 
self-assessment basis has been conducted during 

the year under review to ensure best practices are 
continually observed. 

Mr. Farhad Zulficar, one of the founding Directors and 
the first Managing Director of the Company retired as 
a member of the Board of Directors, and Mr. Imran A.  
Habib was appointed to fill the casual vacancy. The 
Board duly acknowledges the valuable contribution 
made by Mr. Zulficar and has expressed its gratitude 
on behalf of the Company. The Board also welcomed 
Mr. Imran A. Habib as a member. 

During the year under review, there were five Board 
meetings, in which the Board received presentations 
on the Company’s operations, challenges and 
progress towards achieving objectives in line with 
the Board’s vision. We are privileged to have a rich 
balance of expatriates who bring Toyota’s global 
knowledge to our Company and highly experienced 
and respected Pakistanis who regularly provide 
meaningful guidance and input on our Board. We are 
particularly grateful to our Audit Committee members 
who conduct an extremely detailed and diligent review 
to ensure that we continue to anticipate and mitigate 
risks and comply with corporate best practices.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, I would 
like to express my gratitude to all the shareholders for 
their continued trust and confidence in the Company.  
The Board and I are united in extending our thanks to 
each member of the IMC team as we acknowledge 
their unwavering support and dedication to the 
Company. We are committed to maintaining our 
leadership in the industry and pray to Almighty Allah 
to bless us in our endeavors going into the future.

Ali S. Habib
Chairman
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The Directors of Indus Motor Company Limited takes pleasure in presenting Directors’ Report, together with 
the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019:

FINANCIAL RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND SUBSEQUENT EFFECTS

The Financial results and appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

2019 2018
(Rupees in ‘000)

Profit After Taxation 13,714,975 15,771,860
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year 492 (6,480)
Un-appropriated Profit  brought forward 273,792 12,412

13,989,259 15,777,792
Appropriations
First Interim Dividend @ 325% i.e. Rs. 32.5 per share (2018 300% i.e. Rs. 30 Per share) 2,554,500 2,358,000
Second Interim Dividend @ 250% i.e. Rs. 25 per share (2018 325% i.e. Rs. 32.5 Per share) 1,965,000 2,554,500
Third Interim Dividend @ 300% i.e. Rs. 30 per share (2018 325% i.e. Rs. 32.5 Per share) 2,358,000 2,554,500

6,877,500 7,467,000
Unappropriated Profit Carried Forward 7,111,759 8,310,792

Subsequent Effects
Proposed Final Dividend @ 275% i.e. Rs. 27.5 per share (2018: 450% i.e. Rs. 45 per share) 2,161,500 3,537,000
Transfer to General Reserves 4,500,000 4,500,000

6,661,500 8,037,000
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 174.49 200.66

Principal Activities of the Company 
Indus Motor Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company in 
December 1989 and started commercial production in May 1993. The shares of the Company are quoted on 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange.  The company’s principal activity is the assembly, progressive manufacturing 
and marketing of Toyota vehicles in Pakistan.  

Financial Performance Overview 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the sales volume of CKD and CBU vehicles increased to 66,211units as 
against 64,000 units sold last year. 
 
The company has posted net sales revenue of Rs. 157.99  billion, up by 13% as compared to Rs. 139.71 billion 
last year, however, profit after tax declined by 13% to 13.71 billion from Rs. 15.77 billion posted last year. The 
overall revenue mainly increased due to improved volumes of Toyota Corolla, whereas, the net profit declined 
mainly on account of rise in input costs due to deprecation of PKR against USD and JPY. 

Contribution to National Exchequer
During the year, the Company contributed a sum of Rs. 52.30 billion to the national exchequer, which amounts 
to about 1% of the total revenue collection by the Government of Pakistan during the year. Since the Company’s 
incorporation in 1989, our contribution stands in excess of Rs. 418.3 billion.
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Industry Review & Business Environment

Business Environment, Risk and Uncertainty
For sustained economic growth, macroeconomic 
stability is a fundamental pre-requisite. The outgoing 
fiscal year 2018-19 witnessed a muted growth of 
3.29% in comparison with 4.7% average growth in 5 
years. Pakistan managed to reduce its import bill by 
US$5.9 billion while maintaining exports of $23 billion 
in 2018-19.

These are good signs for the economy which assure 
a promising future in the long term. We, however, 
expect minimal growth in 2019-20 due to rapid PKR 
devaluation of 34% in 2018-19. The agreement 
with the IMF for US$6 billion support under the EFF 
program will ultimately ease out stress on Pak rupee 
devaluation and encourage other donor agencies 
to lend more money. Shrinking imports, growth 
in exports and remittances coupled with the IMF 
program will help maintain foreign currency reserves 
at an adequate level.

Development of 9 special economic zones will be the 
driving force for economic growth and taking the fruits 
of CPEC to the lesser developed regions of Pakistan. 
The improved law and order situation across Pakistan 
will help raise investors’ confidence. The ground is 
set to generate positive socio-economic impact of 
CPEC through increased collaboration among the 
industrial sectors of both Pakistan and China.

The Auto Policy 2016-2021 is delivering its fruits as 
green and brownfield projects have gradually started 
operations. Rise in overall production capacity is 
expected to surpass market demand. A wide range 
of choices will be available to consumers, ensuring 
healthy competition, mostly in the SUV and economy 
segments.

This is the time to deepen indigenization by 
encouraging local part makers to promote “Make 
in Pakistan”. The objective of new investments 
should be directed towards job creation, technology 
transfer and increase in local value addition. All these 
objectives are achievable if a level playing field is 
provided and ADP 2016-21 improved for vendors as 
well.

Two supplementary budgets were introduced during 
FY 2018-2019. Policies have impacted the auto 
industry both positively and negatively. Being a 
tax filer is a condition for new vehicle purchases of 
1700cc and above. The enforcement of SRO 52 has 
drastically reduced used car import numbers and 

has also helped the local manufacturing industry to 
maintain its volumes in line with 2017-18.

Application of 10% FED in Oct 2018 on vehicles 
above 1700cc negatively impacted on luxury vehicle 
segment during last 9 months of FY 2018-19.

GoP has widened FED application for all types of 
passenger vehicles and has introduced three slabs 
of 2.5% - 7.5%, along with increase in rates of 
additional customs duty from 2% to 7% on inputs of 
locally manufacture vehicles. 

The combined impact of duty increases and PKR 
devaluation have increased cost of inputs and 
ultimately resulted in further price increases.

The government tends to promote electric vehicles 
and is willing to extend concessions to CBU/SKD 
imports. This will devastate the industry and may 
initiate localization roll back, draining huge foreign 
exchange and increase in unemployment. The 
policymakers have not considered common aspects 
of construction of electric vehicles and conventional 
combustion engine vehicles. Parts like shell body, 
interior trims, lighting systems, suspension systems, 
seats, tires, rims, brakes, instrument panels, etc are 
all common in construction, being locally produced 
for conventional vehicles and can be provided for 
electric vehicles too.

The current tariff structure for the manufacture of 
these locally made parts is substantially higher in 
comparison to tariffs proposed for electric vehicles and 
provided to new entrants under green or brown field 
program. Such ill-conceived policies will discourage 
the localization process, increase the import bill and 
negatively impact the local manufacturing process.

Recommendations
Government efforts for broadening the tax net are 
very much appreciated. Pakistan is among the 
top 50 largest economy with low tax-to-GDP ratio 
and motorization level. The untapped potential can 
create economic stimulus with good governance 
as a key element. For sustained growth, consumer 
confidence is necessary. We urge the government to 
introduce policies that will restore market confidence 
and accelerate economic activities across the board.

The foremost important element for the auto industry 
is ensuring a predictable taxation regime and holding 
of government promises on a long-term basis. ADP 

2016-2021  was introduced after several consultation 
rounds held among all stakeholders, which is 
commendable.

The auto industry works with heavy investments for 
every new model and sustains long product lifecycles 
for payback. Abrupt changes in taxation or providing 
drastic incentives for specialized products adversely 
affects volumes and most of the time do not bring 
fruits which were intended at the introduction time. 
It is advised that for the auto industry, a consultative 
process be ensured and major policy interventions 
only be introduced after the end of each policy period.
Under ADP 16-21, the auto industry attracted major 
investment from 15-plus new entrants. Existing OEMs 
also invested and increased their capacities. Now, 
industry-wide production capacities surpass total 
market demand. The waiting period has decreased 
and vehicles are now readily available, while new 
products offer wider customer choices.  

We urge the government to continue its support 
to the industry and not encourage CBU imports, 
whether for both used or electric cars.

There is retardation in GDP growth rate due to several 
factors. There is a need to introduce global marketing 
practices to enhance marketing activities in the auto 
sector. We urge the government to revisit the double 
taxation regime on passenger cars and commercial 
vehicles distribution system which is restricting 
leading car assemblers to adopt a wholesale-retail 
mechanism in order to boost marketing activities as 
well as help in preventing the premium menace and 
long delivery periods.

We are confident that the government will continue to 
work in eradicating the malpractices of under-invoicing 
and incorrect declarations at the import stage of auto 
parts. We also expect that the government will shift 
the load of tax collection from the private sector to 
authorized tax collecting bodies as there are many 
complexities and it is difficult to manage and increase 
the cost of doing business significantly.
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Company Review

Industry Review
The total industry sales of locally manufactured PC 
and LCV vehicles were 240,646 units in the country 
during 2018-19 compared to 258,682 units sold 
last year, indicating an 7% drop in the market. The 
decline in the automobile industry is attributed to 
an overall economic slowdown, rising interest rates, 
and escalating vehicle prices on the back of the 
plunging Pakistani rupee against the US dollar and 
sky-rocketing inflation. The recent restriction on the 
import of used vehicles into the country has been 
positive for the local industry during the period. 
Approximately 36,000 used cars were imported 
during the year, compared to 70,000 units last year. 

Company Review
Indus Motor Company Limited, as a major player 
in Pakistan’s automobile industry, has made 
encouraging advances during the period, despite 
an economic slowdown. Building on previous 
performances, IMC has achieved the highest ever 
production record of 65,346 units and has also 
increased the sales at 66,211 units, in the fiscal year 
ended June 2019 which reflects the customers’ 
confidence in the company. 

Overall, a pressing demand continued to exist 
this year for meeting production targets. Corolla 
minor improvement was launched, along with the 
introduction of Toyota Connect application. Long 
awaited addition of XLI AT variant within the line-up 
was also added during the FY19. Our basic values 
are based on the Spirit of “Kaizen” or Continuous 
Improvement and based on this, we have taken 
necessary steps to eradicate bottlenecks and 
increase production capacity. A newly constructed 
multi-billion rupee paint shop was commissioned in 
the last fiscal year resulting in increased output in 
the current period. All our efforts have been directed 
at reducing the delivery lead time of vehicles and 
ensuring customer satisfaction.

The improved plant operations also resulted in 
successful roll out of Fortuner, Revo and Hilux 4x2 
Minor improvements, which were well-received by 
the market.  

The Company continues to make major investments 
and operates its manufacturing facility at full capacity. 
Manufacturing has continued with employee overtime 
hours and manufacturing operations were also being 
undertaken on off Saturdays to meet market demand. 
The total production of the Company stood at 65,346 
units, which shows 4% increase from 62,886 units 
produced in the corresponding period last year.

The Company’s combined sales of CKD and CBU 
vehicles for the year increased by 3.4%, to 66,211 
units as against 64,000 units sold in the same period 
last year. Accordingly, our market share stood at 22% 
of locally manufactured PC and LCV vehicles for the 
year.

The Company has stood by its commitment and 
has introduced various specification upgrades 
in the entire lineup of vehicles, including state of 
the art safety features. These features include 
standardization of dual SRS Airbags in all passenger 
cars and commercial vehicles.

Toyota Corolla – CKD Passenger Car Segment
Toyota Corolla our flag ship model, over the years, 
became a symbol of extraordinary luxury, striking 
style, and superior performance. Building upon 
a legacy of customer delight, IMC introduced a 
minor improvement in this period along with the  
introduction of the first of its kind application, Toyota 
Connect. The new vehicle is now equipped with 
features such as Auto Door Lock, Immobilizer with 
Alarm, and Toyota Connect App to further enhance 
the luxury experience. 

As an OEM provided application, Toyota Connect 
brings convenience and comfort to the users who can 
monitor live vehicle location, analyze driving behavior, 
location sharing and alerts all via their smartphones.

IMC with the launch of XLI AT, further strengthened 
its Automatic transmission lineup. The product was 
well received by the market and supported IMC in 
achieving the sales targets. 

Toyota Hilux – CKD Pickup Segment
Toyota Hilux, an icon of power and adventure, 
celebrated a legacy of unstoppable adventure on its 
50th global anniversary in FY19. Hilux Revo continues 
to be the first choice of urban buyers looking for an 
all-purpose vehicle.

In FY19, we launched minor improvement model of 
Hilux lineup. In Revo addition of Rear air-conditioned 
register was very well received by the customers. 
The additions such as 1GD engine launched in early  
2018 continued its successful image and the 
response from the customer was overwhelming.     

In order to educate the customers about all new 
features of Hilux Revo, a marketing initiative “Conquer 
the Wild – Destination Pakistan” was launched as a 
digital series which consisted of 7 exciting episodes. 
The series proved to be a huge success on all social 
media platforms. 

Toyota Fortuner - CKD SUV Segment
Fortuner Sigma-4 has heralded an evolution to the 
CKD SUV market in Pakistan, giving customers 
unprecedented power and elegance with a litany of 
features such as an advanced, powerful and ultra-
efficient turbocharged Diesel Engine and advanced 
Drive Assist features. 

Fortuner Models Improvement was also launched in 
early 2019, building on its futuristic aesthetics, it has 
been equipped with Dual Front Powered Seats as 
well.
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by Wajahat S. Khan.

“Steering with the Stars”, a digital campaign to 
showcase the new features of the New Fortuner
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Extensive marketing activities were conducted to 
establish the Fortuner as best in class CKD SUV in the 
market. Experiential drives were conducted in 7 cities 
of Pakistan to give hands-on experience to potential 
customer for the peace of mind and power that comes 
naturally while driving the Fortuner on tough terrains. 
To reach a wider audience, a digital campaign called 
“Steering with the Stars” was launched with a brand 
new concept to showcase the new features by putting 
6 celebrities behind the wheels of the New Fortuner 
on a purpose built test track. The series consisted of 
6 episodes which were well received by the audience 
and performed exceedingly well on all social media 
platforms.

Toyota Imported Vehicles-CBU Segment
Shaping a new era of mobility and strengthening its 
CBU product portfolio to cater customers’ diverse 
and evolving requirements, IMC introduced two new 
vehicles in this period. In September 2018, IMC 
launched Toyota Rush in the compact SUV segment, 
providing customers with a stepping stone from 
Sedan to SUV. Toyota Rush is a perfect fit for an 
active and dynamic lifestyle, coupled with its versatile 
nature and eye-catching design. The brand new 
model exemplifies style, beauty and mobility providing 
customers with an enhanced level of excitement. 
The new design comes with an exceptional ground 
clearance of 220mm for improved maneuverability, 
with seamlessly designed smart exterior. Toyota 
Rush offers a Display (MID), 7-inch Audio Display, 
Rear Wheel Drive with an exemplary combination of 
extravagance and practicality.

In June 2019, IMC launched the Hiace Deluxe in 
the commercial segment which offers a leading 
edge in mobility for true professionals, promising 
fresh prospects for business. Hiace Deluxe boasts 
of unwavering quality, guaranteeing practicality and 
comfort for occupants on the move.

Toyota SURE	
In order to create a brand new experience of buying 
and selling used cars and delivering peace of mind 
to customers, Toyota SURE was launched in 2014 
with the single aim of revolutionizing the local used 
car market. Since then the brand has grown to a 
network of 38 dealerships nationwide with presence 
in all provinces of the country.

In order to enhance retail capability and create a 
larger presence, Toyota SURE launched its flagship 
Annual Certified Used Car Bazaars between October 
and December 2018 spread across Karachi, Lahore 
and Islamabad. The Bazaars engaged thousands of 
customers who were looking for reliable (certified) 
used cars or great exchange deals to upgrade their 
existing vehicles.  

Ending the year in style, Toyota SURE in collaboration 
with the Customer First Department, launched 
Certified Care, which is free 1 year basic maintenance 
for the certified used cars. This was an initiative taken 
by IMC, which is the first time an automobile company 
has offered such services in used cars in Pakistan. 
Toyota SURE will continue with the same zeal, offering 
new and unique services to its customers to become 
a complete one window solution in the upcoming 
year.
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Start Your Impossible
Toyota continues its evolution as a mobility company 
with its first-ever global marketing initiative in 
celebration of Olympic and Paralympic Games Tokyo 
2020. ‘Start Your Impossible’ is Toyota’s global 
corporate initiative that aims to inspire employees, 
partners and customers. In an age of accelerating 
technological and environmental developments, 
Toyota aims to support the creation of a more inclusive, 
sustainable and mobile society in which everyone has 
the freedom to move and challenge their impossible.

IMC rolled out the ‘Start Your Impossible’ initiative in 
Pakistan with an internal launch event held on 29th 
August 2018 in Karachi.

IMC is excited to begin its journey to Olympic and 
Paralympic Games Tokyo 2020 along with its local 
hero athlete ‘Saadi Abbas Jalbani- a leading Karate 
Player’.  Saadi Abbas Jalbani will be working alongside 
Indus Motor Company and the National Institute of 
Karate-do Pakistan to promote Karate amongst kids 
of his hometown Lyari.

The aim of this program is to inspire the youth to 
pursue their sporting dreams, especially those with 
limited access to proper training and facilities. Indus 
Motor Company is committed to supporting Saadi- 
The Local Hero Athlete in fulfilling his dream of 
bringing a medal for Pakistan at the Olympic Games 
Tokyo 2020.

Safety Campaign
Indus Motor Company is proud to be a safety leader 
in the industry by providing the Best-in class safety 
features in all its CKD variants.  Over the span of 2 
years, IMC has continuously made efforts to increase 
safety awareness and educate the users about the 
correct usage of safety specs.

Along with NCAP (New car assessment program), 
IMC also promoted its Safety Mascot THUMS 
(Total Human Model for Safety) over digital and 
other platforms to educate viewers on safety specs 
provided in all IMC CKD variants. 

To instill the concepts of safety into youth, IMC 
launched its program #BeSafetyLeaders that 
educated university students about the safety 
features and gave the chance to different university 
teams’ to come forward and  be the drivers of change 
in promoting Safety awareness among the masses.

Toyota launches its flagship Annual Certified 
Used Cars Bazaar

Toyota’s safety leader campaign at Universities

The management panel with Ms Zainab and 
Mr Saadi at the Start Your Impossible launch

Toyota Rush new design exemplifies style, 
beauty and mobility

Hiace Deluxe launched by IMC in the 
commercial segment

52 53Annual Report 2019

Indus Motor Company Ltd.



Customer Relations

The 13TH TOYOTA DREAM CAR ART CONTEST

It has been an interesting journey for the Dream Car 
since it revved up its engine in 2011 with the 5th Toyota 
Dream Car Art Contest. It all started with a moderate 
number of 10,500 artwork submissions from just 250 
schools nationwide and since then, the one-of-its-
kind artwork competition has grown exponentially 
over the years. Held in 2019, the 13th Toyota Dream 
Car Art Contest received a record number of 48,500 
artworks (as compared to 38,000 artworks received 
in 2018) from a total of 1,550 schools (1150 schools 
participated in 2018) across the country, making 
Pakistan the 3rd nation globally to receive the highest 
number of artwork submissions. 

Aimed at defining the future of mobility by encouraging 
children’s creative expression, this international 
contest is one of the biggest drawing competitions 
globally and is organised every year by Toyota Motor 
Corporation for children less than 16 years of age.

The Royal category, a special feature of the National 
Contest has seen active participation from children 
who are differently abled. This year, the category grew 
by 41% with a total of 1600 drawing submissions, 
compared with 1100 artworks received in 2018.

Comprising educators, painters, curators and visual 
artists, the five-member independent Jury Panel 
selected the regional and national winners and 
shortlisted the top 9 artworks from Pakistan to enter 
the World Contest in Japan.

This year is very special as the World Contest, held in 
Japan, announced two World Winners from Pakistan 
in two age categories viz. 

•	8 to 10 years category - Palwasha Azeem from 
Rahim Yar Khan (Toyota Royal Motors) for her 
“Lantern Car” won the Bronze Award. 

•	12 to 15 years category - Ibrahim Qureshy from 
Lahore (Toyota Sahara Motors) for his “Car of 
Invisibility” won the Bronze Award.   

“Lantern Car” made by 
Palwasha Azeem

“Car of Invisibility” made 
by Ibrahim Ahmed Qureshi

The World Contest saw over 950,000 artwork 
submissions from 86 countries, out of which 30 top 
winners were chosen, two of them from Pakistan. 
This is a remarkable achievement for children, the 
dealerships and IMC and is indeed a high honour for 
Pakistan as well. The two winners have secured the
grand prize and travelled to Japan to attend the 
Award Ceremony in August 2019 where they had the 
opportunity of a lifetime to mingle, interact and make 
friends with winners from other parts of the globe and 
also experienced world famous Japanese culture.

The Company hosted an Award Ceremony in Lahore 
to celebrate the 39 winners who came from the 
across the country. All winners were awarded with 
certificates and medals for their achievements. 

Winners of the 13th Toyota Dream Car Art Contest with Vice Chairman Indus Motor Company and Dealers 
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Customer First – Parts & Service 

Here at Toyota, we believe in the Customer for Life 
ideology. The Customer First Department embodies 
this Toyota philosophy by continually striving to 
enhance customer experience. By performing 
quality checks before the delivery of the vehicle, and 
providing Genuine Parts and Quality Services in after-
sales, we ensure a complete and reliable ownership 
experience throughout the life-cycle of the vehicles. 

Customer Service Excellence Award
IMC has won the ‘Outstanding Customer Service 
Excellence Award’ in CSEA 2018. The Indus 
Motor Company – Customer First Department has 
participated in this program for the last 11 years and 
has bagged this prestigious Gold Title for the very 
first time. The program is hosted every year by the 
Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan and all worldwide 
Toyota affiliates including Thailand, Taiwan and 
Indonesia participate in it. We all strive towards one 
common objective, which is providing ever-improving 
customer service in order to become the most 
admired automotive brand in its territory.

 
Through CSEA, IMC has improved the efficiency of 
its aftersales and CR operations and has created 
numerous Customer Engagement touch points for 
delighting its customers.  

Serving 1 Million Customers
With the changing dynamics of the automotive 
industry and the thriving after sales business due 
to the increasing number of cars on roads, it is of 
utmost importance to give priority to customers and 
treat their satisfaction as the goal. With the vision 
of serving customers as per their convenience, our 
dealership networks have taken the initiatives of 
“Extended Evening Hours” and “Sunday Operations”.
Extended Evening Hours translates to having more 
working hours in a day to facilitate customers, for 

instance, dealerships were earlier open from 9.00 am 
to 6.00 pm but are now open from 9.00 am to 8.00 
pm (utilizing shift operations for selected staff).

Let us serve you on“

Sunday
”Because TOYOTA cares for you and your comfort

Announcing extended evening hours at Toyota 
Dealerships to facilitate customers

Bearing in view the target of serving 1 million 
customers, IMC launched mobile workshops to 
serve customers in far-reaching areas which may fall 
beyond the scope of the Toyota Dealership network. 
These mobile workshops provide essential car 
services to customers at their very doorstep.

Extension of Warranty Period
At Toyota, we are committed to delivering excellent 
customer service by offering best aftersales products 
and services for our valued customers. In keeping with 
the same philosophy, IMC has recently announced 
built-in warranty for 3 years and/or 100,000 km 
(whichever comes first).

Toyota always works towards making continuous 
improvements (Kaizen) in its operations and services 
so that customers can enjoy being part of the Toyota 
Family. The warranty extension program follows this 
viewpoint by providing Toyota customers peace of 
mind. 

Receiving the Outstanding Customer Service
Excellence Gold Award in CSEA 2018

Toyota’s standard warranty period
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CS Kaizen Evolution 2018-19
Customer Satisfaction Kaizen Evolution (CSKE) is 
a yearly activity to cultivate and sustain a Kaizen 
(continuous improvement) culture and develop 
human resources at dealerships.

This year, a total of 130+ themes were registered and 
450+ dealership staff was trained with the concept 
of the Toyota Way, Toyota Business Practices and 
Kaizen Culture Development. 

This year, to make CSKE even bigger and better, 
CSKE was merged with the Quality Control Circle 
(QCC) in order to take it to a global scale. 

The Grand Finale of the 4th CSKE 2018-19 was held 
at Indus Motor Company on 13th July 2019 in which 
top 16 teams selected from across Pakistan took 
part and presented their year-long Kaizen activities 
in After Sales, Customer Relations, Sales and T-Sure.

Three best teams have been selected which will 
participate in QCC to be held in mid-August, 2019.

Grand Finale of the 4th CSKE 2018-19 held at 
Indus Motor Company

Prepaid Periodic Maintenance
IMC strives to bring to its customers the best in market 
practices to increase its customer satisfaction. In 
synchronization with this philosophy, IMC launched 
its Prepaid Periodic Maintenance (PPM) in the year 
2016. PPM provides our customers with a smart 
and affordable method that protects them from 
fluctuating prices due to inflation. PPM is a one-stop 
solution; our customers pay once and then enjoy four 
free maintenances, cashless transactions and other 
value added services.

IMC plans to continue and launch several other 
services and promotional campaigns for its 
customers to keep our journey of providing customer 
satisfaction.

Summer Campaign

Announcing Free A/C inspection at Toyota 
Authorized Dealerships

Every year, the Customer First Department 
launches a Summer Campaign to provide all its 
Toyota customers ‘free A/C Inspection’ at Toyota’s 
Authorized dealerships. On a yearly basis, this 
campaign reaches new heights and engages new 
customers. 

Collaboration with Careem

Announcing our collaboration with Careem

This year, CFD collaborated with Careem to generate 
additional CPUS via Careem Captains. Careem, in 
turn, provided coupon cards for its customers as 
giveaways.

The campaign resulted in an increase in terms 
of customer engagement, customer footfall and 
eventually, additional revenue from parts and labor 
sales.

Skills Contest
At Toyota, we are committed to providing the best 
quality services at our dealerships. To motivate and 
promote talent within our Toyota Family, IMC has 
been organizing a Skills Contest every year. This event 
is organized in two different areas i.e. Dealership 
General Service and Dealership Body & Paint on an 
alternate year basis.

This year, IMC initiated Body & Paint Skills Contest 
for the Body Technician, Paint Technician & Service 
Advisor category. A total of 119 technicians 
participated in all three categories. The champions of 
the skills contest won a chance to go to the Toyota 
Motor Corporation, Japan and showcase their talent 
on a global platform. 

Champions of the Skills Contest at Toyota 
Indus Motor Company

Service Advisor Capacity Building
IMC firmly believes that its employees are one of 
their greatest assets. To cultivate our employees’ 
skills, IMC holds a Service Advisor Capacity Building 
Competition every year. Service Advisors (SA) are the 
building blocks of our business as they are our front 
liners who have a direct contact with our customers. 
They are a reflection of customer satisfaction since it 
is due to them that customers interact with the brand.

Service Advisors, especially in Toyota, need to be 
confident communicators with excellent selling skills 
and the ability to retain the product knowledge they 
have gained. To help them gain these skills, IMC 
provides relevant, yearly trainings. This year, Umair 
Jaliawala was invited to train the advisors and to 
equip them with the necessary skills and knowledge. 

Dealership Employee Satisfactory Survey
IMC firmly believes that happy employees equate 
to happy customers. Following this viewpoint, IMC 
conducts Employee Surveys at its dealerships twice 
a year to cultivate an Employee-Centric approach 

within the dealerships. The survey is then used to 
bring about improvements at our dealerships and to 
increase our employee satisfaction level. Recently, 
some of our dealerships launched an in-house lunch 
facility and loan facility for their staff to incorporate 
feedback received from the survey.  

To further enhance the satisfaction of its employees, 
IMC has decided to initiate the Employee Satisfaction 
Committee for the dealerships. Free schooling is 
also provided for the children of the employees at 
numerous dealerships.

Customer Delight Touchpoints:
Indus Motor Company continuously endeavors 
to create a delightful experience for its customers. 
In view of this, IMC created certain touch points in 
collaboration with its dealers in order to enhance 
the customer’s experience at the dealerships. A 
few of these activities which make our customers 
happy to have Toyota vehicles maintained at Toyota 
dealerships include lunch and refreshment facilities 
at the customer lounge. Moreover, to capture the 
real voice of the customers, a Happy Tree has been 
placed in the lounge at every dealership for customer 
feedback.

Customer Satisfaction Index 2018-19
IMC conducts Customer Satisfaction Index (CSI) 
every year to measure the level of satisfaction of the 
customers regarding Toyota’s services collectively. It 

is to understand our customers and make continuous 
improvements (Kaizens) to contribute towards 
customer delight and be in synchronization with 
market practices to give our customers a comfortable 
experience and to hear customers’ thoughts.

The Happy Tree placed at all Toyota 
dealerships to capture the real voice 
of the customers
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IMC truly believes in serving our customers with the 
best and our customers are top priority. To further 
this belief, CSI helps us hear the real voice of our 
customers and helps us connect with them. 

Toyota Racing Development (TRD)

Toyota Racing Development inaugarated at 
Toyota Central Motors

In recent years, our local market has significantly 
evolved and customers are now enthusiastic about 
spending on the customization and enhancement 
of cars. Aiming to give its customers a one-stop 
accessories shop, Indus Motor Company has 
installed Toyota Racing Development for the first time 
in Pakistan. The aim of this project was to generate 
an additional revenue stream by selling Genuine TRD 
Accessories.

In October 2018, TRD was inaugurated at Toyota 
Central Motors by Mr. Yamaoka, Group Manager of 
TMC Production Control; Mr. Salim Godil, CEO of 
TCM; and Mr. Ali Asghar Damani, General Manager 
of IMC. After success of the pilot run, IMC decided 
to further expand the project and the second TRD 
corner was installed at Toyota Faisalabad Motors 
in April 2019. Due to the ever-increasing demand 

of accessories and visualization of the corner, three 
more dealerships have been selected for expansion, 
which is due to be completed by July 2019.

Green Dealership Status
Indus Motor Company strives to set a positive 
environmental foot-print. Our environmental 
commitment is not just manifested in the wordings 
of our policies, but is also reflected in our actions. 
We are at the forefront of activities that preserve 
and improve our environment. Toyota Pakistan has 
designed a Green Dealer Program which is a roadmap 
for Toyota dealerships across Pakistan to quantifiably 
reduce their energy and carbon dioxide emissions by 
installing solar panels and increasing the use of LEDs 

Dealerships in Pakistan have implemented Green 
Dealer Program and IMC ensures that its dealerships 
are in line with the global  direction and maintain their 
environmental KPIs.   

Solar panels at Toyota dealerships to reduce 
energy and carbon dioxide emissions
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Safety, Health & Environment 

IMC is committed to providing a safer and healthier 
environment to all its employees by strictly complying 
with all safety, health and environment rules and 
regulations. IMC takes full care of all employees, 
contractors, suppliers and all individuals in general 
who might be affected by the company’s business 
operations. Employees at IMC work actively to 
prevent accidents and injuries and make continuous 
efforts to identify, eliminate and manage all safety 
risks.

At Indus Motor Company, our Safety Policy conveys 
the following simple message:

“SAFETY WILL ALWAYS TAKE PRECEDENCE
OVER PRODUCTION, SALES AND PROFITS”

Safety Record
The Company recorded a Zero -Loss Work Day (LWD) 
Injury and No Fire Incident this year. This is the 3rd 
consecutive year in IMC with Zero - Loss Work Day 
(LWD). This was made possible through immediate 
improvements and a number of measures that were 
taken which include continuous risk assessment, 
job safety analysis, and awareness sessions,  
on-job hazard identification, safety and fire patrolling 
by trained members including top management. 

Apart from this, IMC has implemented the Safety 
Plant Management Requirement (PMRs) System 
throughout its plant as per the guidelines of TDEM 
(Toyota Daihatsu Engineering & Manufacturing 
Co., Ltd). Following the continuous improvement 
philosophy of Toyota, the company is looking forward 
to implementing the Global safety standards i.e. 
Occupational Safety Health Management System 
(OSHMS) in the coming year.

Safety Training
The Company regularly conducts a number of general 
and special training programs for its employees. The 
general safety training programs like firefighting, basic 
safety with simulation of Stop-6 Accident Dojo and 
first aid are aimed at empowering every employee to 
deal with emergency situations and avoid accidents. 
While special job training includes construction 
safety, working at heights, machine safety, defensive 
driving and process safety, only authorized members 
are allowed to perform a specific job complying with 
the standards. 

IMC also conducts safety training for vendors, dealers 
and contractors to ensure that the highest priority is 

understood at all levels. In fiscal year 2018 a total 
of 1794 members were trained and time spent on 
safety trainings was more than 10,000 man-hours.

This fiscal year new training was added for the 
employees and contractors performing electrical 
work i.e. Low Voltage Electrical Training. This training 
has been made mandatory for individuals performing 
Electrical Works. Another improvement in safety 
training is the addition of new accident simulators 
for Kodokan (fire safety simulator). Along with these, 
real-life accident videos and past accidents from 
other affiliates are also being displayed to the team 
members to make them efficiently understand the 
importance of a safe and secure environment.

Improving Working Environment for Employees
IMC takes good care of all its employees and for this, 
a huge amount has been invested in the environment 
improvement system. This year, Air Handling Units 
(AHUs) have been installed on the entire production 
floor to provide a comfortable working environment. 
Apart from this, IMC annually conducts health 
surveillance test of employees to ensure good health 
of all employees. 

Safety training and health surveillance tests for 
IMC employees

First Aid Medical Centre
This year IMC introduced a First Aid Medical Centre 
providing first aid treatments to their workers when 
required along with other contract workers present on 
site. This First Aid Centre was setup for the treatment 
of sickness and minor injuries to provide necessary 
first aid, quick relief and support to shift the affected 
person to the hospital after necessary first aid in case 
an emergency. For this purpose a separate room 
has been allocated along with a paramedical staff 
available 24/7.
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The First Aid Centre will not only benefit the 
employees but also the onsite contractors working 
within the premises of IMC. This action shows IMC’s 
commitment towards its employees and their health. 

Environmental Assessment System
The Environmental Assessment System (EAS) is the 
Toyota system for environment management. Toyota 
has developed a five year action plan and sets key 
performance indicators to achieve its targets along 
with the ambition to achieve Toyota’s 2050 Challenge 
Plant Zero CO2 emissions. The Company has made 
remarkable achievement in previous years and is 
raising the bar. To achieve better results and to keep 
affiliates motivated for environment improvement the 
audit criteria has been made more challenging this 
year. The Company is expanding its environment 
activities to all suppliers and dealers nationwide and 
focusing on ISO 14001 certifications of its business 
partners also.

Annual Environment Excellence Award 2019 (AEEA)
Indus Motor Company (IMC) has been awarded the 
16th Annual Environment Excellence Award 2019 
(AEEA) at the Annual Conference on Environment & 
Health held in Karachi on 9th July 2019.

The 16th Annual Environment Excellence
Award 2019 (AEEA) bagged by Indus Motor
Company

The event was put together by the National Forum 
for Environment & Health (NFEH), a non-profit 
organization which focused on facilitating and 
promoting environment, healthcare and educational 
awareness amongst the masses in Pakistan.

Recognized as one of the top 10 organizations 
in Pakistan for leading efforts to environmental 
protection, the award won by IMC underlined the 
company’s vision, contribution to environmental 
conservation and its extensive range of corporate 
social responsibility program.

Future Activities and Investments

Extension of Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP)
IMC being a responsible corporate organization 
is complying with all the relevant legal and other 
environmental requirements and laws. It is going to 
invest huge amounts on multiple projects. Treatment 
of hazardous waste water through WWTP is one 
example of its commitment. As the production 
capacity increases and new Pre-treatment and 
Electro-deposition Line (PTED) is under construction, 
the company has set up a new Waste Water 
Treatment Plant with state-of-the-art Membrane bio 
reactor (MBR)technology . The capacity of the New 
WWTP would be twice as that of the current system. 
This New WWTP would perform both the biological 
and chemical treatment. 

Renewable Energy Project
Keeping in view the Toyota Global Environmental 
Challenge 2050, Plant Zero CO2 Emission is moving 
towards a renewable source of energy. The currently 
installed Solar System capacity at IMC is 420 KW, 
which supplies electricity to Manufacturing and Non-
Manufacturing areas. The facility has been installed 
in the parking area, canteen, corporate and CPD 
Building. Now IMC is extending its renewable energy 
by the installation of a 4 MW Solar Power System 
which will be completed by 2020.

Installation of a 4 MW Solar Power System at 
IMC

Safety & Environment Months
Promoting a safety culture is an ongoing process  
throughout the year. We celebrated a Safety Month 
to encourage safety awareness in the team. For this 
year,  our safety theme was Safe Work, Safe Home. 
Different activities are organized for promotion of a 
safer workplace and reiterating the commitment to 
safety. These activities include training sessions for 
employees on general safety, fire prevention, rescue 
and fire evacuation drills, competition between the 

shops on hazard identification and closure of these 
observations.

An Environment Month is celebrated every year in 
June. The purpose is to create awareness and remind 
people about their social responsibility towards 
the environment. Beside training and awareness, it 
creates a competitive environment for employees 
and their families for sustainability in society through 
increased awareness. The focus activity in this 
month was to create awareness about conservation 

of energy and water resources and to promote 3R 
(reduce, reuse, recycle) activities. Other than this tree 
plantation was done inside and outside IMC and in 
the Port Qasim area.

Safety training activities to promote a safety 
culture

Tree plantation at IMC by Mr. 
Shuja Uddin Ahmed, Senior 
Manager Admin
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Human Resource
IMC has continued to focus on engaging its highly 
skilled and diverse workforce in a wide range of 
activities. With a spirit of continuous improvement, 
we have striven to deliver better services to our 
employees, ensuring an ethical and safe workplace 
in line with our values of respect and teamwork. 

Diversity & Inclusion
At IMC we are committed to sustaining a diverse 
workforce and utilizing the intellectual capacity of all 
genders, especially women. This year, our female 
strength increased by almost 28%. We have keenly 
listened to and understood the challenges faced by 
our female employees, and are consistently open 
to feedback for the betterment of our environment. 
Consequently, we have enhanced the facilities at our 
office for all employees. 

We have continued to hire talented people from 
diverse backgrounds. Our hiring philosophy is based 
on a “zero discrimination” policy wherein everyone is 
assessed entirely on the basis of merit and without 
any prejudice.

Employee Engagement
At IMC, employee engagement is given paramount 
importance throughout the organization. This is seen 
as a means to strengthening connections amongst 
employees at all levels by providing them with healthy 
and fun activities.

A fun-filled day for the ladies of IMC

As a way to celebrate our employees, we organize their 
birthday festivities every month. These celebrations 
have become a tradition at IMC where employees 
come together to enjoy their special day together. 
IMC firmly believes in a healthy work-life balance, 
hence arranges movie shows for its employees and 
their families to spend quality time together.

Various sports competitions were held this year 
including swimming, football and cricket competitions. 
Not only did over 500 employees participate in these 
competitions, but also several cross-departmental 
teams participated and organized these events, 
thereby promoting a culture of teamwork.

A glimpse from our football competition

Developing Our People
IMC is committed to investing and developing 
its employees so that they are ready to steer the 
company to success and also to achieve their career 
goals. Our employees attended different programs 
at globally-recognized institutions such as Harvard, 
Wharton and London Business School, besides top 
local institutions. We have invested heavily on trainings 
including in-house and international sessions for our 
empolyees. 

We have continued to provide our employees with 
international exposure through Intra-Company 
Transfers with Singapore, Thailand and Japan. This 
gives them an opportunity to gain advanced skills 
and knowledge that broadens the horizons of their 
career.

IMC has continued to induct a large number of trainee 
apprentices as part of an initiative to develop human 
capital by imparting skills and giving them a chance 
to build a better future. The program is an opportunity 
for the youth to learn new skills from Toyota-certified 
trainers with a chance of employment at IMC.
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Operations
In continuous pursuit to meet the quality, productivity 
and safety standards of the Toyota World, the 
Indus Motor Company has been working on Facility 
Extension, Process Automation and Future Model 
introduction projects. These Projects include, but are 
not limited to the New Paint facility. Equipped with 
state-of-the-art paint robots, this New Paint shop 
facility has an investment value of PKR 3.1 Billion and 
is fully capable of supporting painting of all exterior 
colors. 

State-of-the-art paint robots at IMC

With an aim to keep the customers satisfied and 
engaged, Indus Motor Company introduces New 
Vehicle Models periodically, in lieu of which the Press 
Shop and Logistics Building was extended with an 
investment value of PKR 2.36 Billion. 

Consistent with the Japanese philosophy of 
eliminating waste (muda, mura, muri) from production 
processes, sophisticated and advanced robots 
having an investment value of PKR 571 Million are 
introduced in the Engine, Transmission and Weld 
Shop. A total of 5 Engine and Transmission Process 
Robots are introduced to automate the sealant 
application process and a total of 18 Hemming 
Robots have been installed in the Weld Shop to 
automate the Hemming Process. Through these 
developments, the Production Facility of Indus Motor 
Company Ltd. has taken a step further to elevate its 
production standard. 

Asia Pacific Skill Contest
Hosted by Toyota Global, an annual competition for 
Toyota Technicians, the Asia Pacific Skill Contest 
2019 was held in Thailand. There were 121 
participants in the contest belonging to 12 Toyota 
affiliated companies from 8 countries of the Asia 
Pacific region.

Indus Motor’s technicians from various categories 
participated in the Contest and had an opportunity 
to display their skills and talent on the international 
platform. They bagged five medals this year. The 
winners were:

Three Silver Medals: in Paints category-Ather Mirza, 
Team Member, in Assembly category Yasir Ahmed, 
Team Leader and in Quality category Ghadeer Abbas, 
Team Member.

Two Bronze Medals: in Press category-Asif Khan, 
Team Leader and in Quality category Haris Moin, 
Team Member.

Localization
There is a continuing quest to nourish the local 
industry in a pursuit to increase the percentage of 
local parts that our vehicles comprise. The Indus 
Motor Company has been constantly excelling at 
achieving this objective and plans to keep doing 
so in the future. The process involves not only the 
localization of parts but, in many cases, search for 
new suppliers and their subsequent development 
so that they are able to uphold Toyota’s globally 
renowned quality standards.

This year in Asia Pacific Skill Contest IMC won 
five medals

Advanced Robots at IMC plant
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The Indus Motor Company is committed to 
manufacture vehicles that meet Toyota’s globally 
renowned quality standards. This requires a 
commitment from our suppliers to provide the same 
to us, and hence the need to reinforce built-in quality 
and Toyota production systems (TPS) at their end to 
ensure defect-free products that conform to these 
quality standards.

In line with Toyota’s global initiative, Indus Motor 
Company also has a supplier quality development 
(SQD) section with engineers who are specifically 
trained to improve system coherence and suppliers’ 
compliance to Toyota’s global practices. The 
main focus lies on 5S and safety improvements, 

supplier quality assurance manual (SQAM) 
documents conformance, tool and die maintenance 
improvements, machine and equipment calibration 
and maintenance improvements, and conformity 
to the Japanese Obeya and Asaki concepts. The 
philosophy is to stop the defects at the occurrence 
point, rather than later in the process or at the 
defined quality gates. This is done by increasing 
compliance of Toyota production system (TPS), total 
productive maintenance (TPM) of machines and dies, 
and standardization of work chart and quality check 
sheets. In the initial phase, which started a year 
ago, six suppliers were selected and focused, and 
significant improvements are already visible.
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Information Technology

IT Strategy driven by Value Innovation
IMC’s IT strategy has been engineered to cater 
stringently to its customers. As Toyota globally 
transforms itself from a traditional automotive 
company to a well-rounded ‘Mobility’ Company, 
the potential significance and role of the Information 
Technology function has increased manifold. With 
so much to choose from in an era of ever-increasing 
Technology Incubation Hubs and seemingly 
deployable use-cases, it is important to stick to 
basic Business fundamentals and select Technology 
solutions that enhance the customer experience. 
This is why the IT strategy’s main focus at Toyota 
has been Value Innovation rather than Technology 
Innovation. There is an inherent desire to place 
equal emphasis on Value and Innovation driven by 
customer experience rather than mere Technology 
innovation which is futuristic yet adds little value to 
customer needs.

IT has adopted the Agile methodology for introducing 
new technology solutions. The tried and tested Plan-
Do-Check-Act (PDCA) cycles were deployed to find 
suitability of emerging technologies towards IMCs 
radical desire to be an intelligent enterprise. RPA, IOT 
and Big Data are some of the emerging Industry 4.0 
trends that IMC has adopted or performed Proof-
of-Concept with the ultimate objective of improving 
quality, efficiency and customer experience. 

Global Recognition:
Indus Motor Company has won the Global SAP 
Innovation Award 2019 in the category ‘Process 

Innovator’. This achievement has a historical 
significance as this is the first time that an entry from 
Pakistan has been accepted. The SAP Innovation 
Awards, now in the 6th year, received a record 233 
submissions from 37 countries and 25 industries.

Key Focus Areas

Operational Efficiency of Supply Chain and 
Logistics Function through S/4 HANA Optimization
IMC implemented the latest version of SAP S/4 
HANA in 2016. It was the first organization to have 
gone live with real-time data analytics capability 
provided by the inherent SAP FIORI user interface. 
The IMC SAP team, in conjunction with the Supply 
chain and Support functions, has further improved 
the effectiveness of SAP through meaningful 
application of controls and purposeful automation. 
This year, the Imported Parts Ordering System (IPOS) 
has been launched with real-time exporter calendar 
visibility. This has enabled the Production Planning 
team to accurately forecast and plan for timely arrival 
of imported parts and kits, thus ensuring timely 
production and subsequent delivery of vehicles to 
customers. In addition, Warehouse Management has 
been configured to effectively utilize Bin Locations 
on a FIFO basis. This will ensure better yard capacity 
management and throughput from IMC.

The IMC SAP team celebrating the 
implementation of the latest version of SAP S/4 
HANA Optimization 

Digitalization of After-sales Function at IMC 
Dealerships
One of the key focus areas of IMC IT has been to 
improve customer experience by increasing the 
efficiency of the After-sales function at Dealerships. 
In this regard, several important improvements 
have been made to the Genesis Business Portal. 
Genesis was originally launched in 2016 with the 
main objective of automating Business interaction 
between IMC and its network of dealerships across 

IMC receiving the Global SAP Innovation Award 
2019 in the category ‘Process Innovator’
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Pakistan. This year’s achievement includes launching 
of modules such as Parts ordering, Fix-it-Right (FIR) 
and Repair-Support-Request (RSR) module. The 
addition of these modules has significantly improved 
warranty processing and spare parts ordering 
efficiency, resulting in a higher level of customer 
satisfaction.

Digital transformation of Sales Booking Process
In an effort to reduce Sales Booking Process time, 
several digitalization efforts are in progress at the 
Dealership front. One such effort recently completed 
is the decentralized scanning of Sales documents at 
dealerships. The project aims at cutting down manual 
processes and to initiates real-time verification of 
documents to ensure that our customers can get the 
vehicle delivered to them as early as possible. 

Predictive Maintenance through Internet-of-Things 
(IOT) Technology
In an effort to improve process efficiency, IMC has 
taken several initiatives that focus on enhancing 
visibility and integrity of process data. Predictive 
maintenance is one of the areas where IOT is being 
prototyped with the potential benefits ranging 
from proactive reminders of machine breakdown 
to considerable savings by avoiding spare parts 
obsolesce. 

Move to Intelligent Enterprise by leveraging 
Robotic Process Automation (RPA)
Robotic Process Automation (RPA) is an emerging 
technology aimed at utilizing software robots for 
repetitive and mundane tasks. One of the key benefits 
of RPA is that it allows an organization to free-up its 
human resource for value-added work by reallocating 
repetitive work to software robots. Several business 
functions have been identified as potential candidates 
for RPA adoption and currently proof-of-concepts is 
in progress. 

Improving Customer Response Time through Call 
Center/IVR Upgrade
In order to enable Sales and Marketing, Customer First 
and Customer Relations departments of IMC, with 
the end-goal of providing a delightful experience to 
our customers, IMC IT has developed and upgraded 
the Call Center Interactive-Voice-response system. 
With this upgrade, Customers waiting for delivery of 
their vehicles can now call and get an instant update 
about the delivery and invoicing status. Customers 

need to enter their CNIC and PBO numbers as inputs 
to the IVR system.

Distributor Mobile App for Streamlining Oil Business
IMC has introduced a Distributor Mobile Application 
to streamline the operation of Toyota Genuine Oil. 
The mobile App with a simple and easy to follow 
interface, makes it easy for distributors to plan and 
order Oil from IMC.

Cloud Migration for Higher Availability
As part of its carefully-engineered Hybrid cloud 
strategy, IMC has migrated several mission-critical 
Business applications to Cloud. One such application 
is Genesis, which is extensively being used at 
dealerships to cater to the After-sales Business. 
The move to Microsoft Azure Cloud ensures highest 
possible availability, integrity and confidentiality for 
our customers. 

Information Security and Business Continuity 
Planning (BCP)/Disaster Recovery Planning (DRP) 
The Information Security function has gained 
significant prominence in the wake of ever-increasing 
cyber threats. In order to ensure Confidentiality, 
Integrity and Availability (CIA) of the enterprise data, 
there needs to be a constant focus on improving IT 
Security policies and procedures. In the current year, 
IMC reassessed and improved its BCP/DR Plan with 
the help of a reputed Big4 firm and also performed 
a successful DR Drill. This has provided adequate 
assurance to the Board and shareholders about the 
strength of IMCs BCP/DR plan readiness. In order 
to improve physical security within the plant, a RFID/
Fingerprint-based Access control mechanism has 
been deployed to ensure authorized access.

Future Outlook
Customer delight lies at the center of IMC’s IT Strategy. 
We will continue to build on the momentum that has 
been achieved on the Digital Transformation front. 
Toyota Vision 2025 talks about achieving ‘4Most’ in 
Business and contributing to Society as ‘The Best 
in Town’ company. IMC IT will be a key enabler for 
achieving this vision of being the company with Most 
Customers, Most Profitable, Most Competitive and 
Most Innovative.
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Corporate Social Responsibility 
Advancing Concern Beyond Cars
Social Performance: Good Corporate Citizen
In consonance with its Vision, Mission, Core Values 
and the UNGC Principles, Indus Motor Company 
always aims to demonstrate responsible corporate 
conduct throughout the entire spectrum of its 
activities and operations.

Indus Motor Company has a rich history of community 
investment that has evolved to meet the complexities 
and challenges of a developing society. We support 
a broad range of initiatives in the areas of Education, 
Health, Road Safety and Environment and Ecology 
conservation with a firm belief that these provide the 
fundamental building blocks for the development of 
society.

Since the formal launch of the CSR structure in 2002, 
the Company has worked to develop a common 
understanding and a harmonized approach to CSR 
within its operations and dealership network, through 
regular assessment of the current CSR situation and 
development of counter-measures.

We believe that the success of a business and its 
social responsibility goes hand in hand; hence we 
strive to contribute to the advancement of society 
and to effectively shape, help and promote its 
development. Together with our employees, we 
are involved in many charitable community projects 
in order to help meet social challenges and create 
noticeable benefits. Being an automobile company, 
Indus Motor has a considerable role to play in 
transformation towards a sustainable society in 
general and to combat climate change specifically.

By collaborating with stakeholders on projects that 
benefit society, IMC seeks to leverage its knowledge 
and networks where these can have the greatest 
positive impact. Major CSR initiatives undertaken in 
2018-19 to drive social transformation comprise:

Environment & Ecology Conservation:
The environmental dilemma has become a global 
concern; that is why the world is taking environment 
and climate change issues seriously and trying to 
cope with the adverse situation on a war footing. 
Apart from deforestation, industrial operations 
and products have a significant impact on the 
environment.

 Climate change has a significant impact on the planet. 
Everyone has to work together and play a part to  
bring about real change. We remain absolutely 
committed to improving fuel efficiency and reducing 
emissions for our customers, and we continue 
to pursue our electrification and sustainable 
manufacturing strategies to do our part to help 
address climate change issues. We have challenged 
ourselves to go further by setting stretch goals 
to reduce climate-related impacts in our facilities 
and nationwide. The major three investments are 
summarized below:

 IMC’s  SOCIAL
Contribution

DURING LAST 10 YEARS

(1) Million Tree Plantation Drive: Inspired by the 
“Toyota Environmental Challenge 2050”, Indus 
Motor determines to pave the way progressively for 
an environment-friendly society through a range of 
dedicated year-round initiatives. Being responsible 
corporate citizens we launched the Million Tree 
Plantation Drive in November 2018 at a small event 
graced by Mr Waseem Akhtar, the Mayor of Karachi. 
This CSR initiative will be sufficient to support 1% 
population of our country, as one tree generally will 

CEO, Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali, Mayor of Karachi 
and directors launching the Million Tree 
Plantation Drive

Rs. 1.11 Billion
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sequester around 23 kg of atmospheric carbon 
dioxide. In our effort to offset and reduce CO2 
emissions and our targeting to achieve a net zero 
carbon footprint with respect to our production 
facility, several measures are being taken.

Our approach in this drive is to ensure the right 
selection of indigenous saplings to plant in the right 
location, as well as the sincere engagement of local 
communities, so that the plants could survive and 
grow to become trees. To make this drive effective, 
we have partnered with WWF-Pakistan for technical 
support and supply of quality saplings of various 
species. This helps us in expanding our reach and 
also serves as third party validation of our social 
contribution.

(2) Contribution towards construction of Diamer-
Bhasha and Mohmand Dams: The increasing 
pressures of population and industrialization have 
already placed greater demand on water. It is the 
second basic problem of Pakistan - a country that 
is gradually experiencing chronic water stress. Fresh 
water is not only vital for sustenance of life but 
equally essential for socio-economic development. 
Therefore, building of more reservoirs and an effective 
water management strategy are a need of the time.

Embracing the spirit of national integrity and 
considering the criticality of national needs, Indus 
Motor has pledged its contribution of Rs 100 million 
to release in annual tranches. During the year, IMC 
released a total of Rs 40 million to the PM-CJ Fund 
for construction of Diamer-Bhasha and Mohmand 
Dams. Realizing the significance of the water crisis, 
our CBA (Indus Peoples Workers Union) has also 
joined hands and donated a modest contribution 
equivalent to 3-hour overtime of all unionized staff.

(3) Sustainable City: (5S Clean and Green Drive 
2019, Phase-II): According to the World Bank’s 
Karachi City Diagnostic Report, the metropolis faces 
severe environmental challenges which include 
a high incidence of air, land, water and marine 
pollution. Much of this is caused by inadequate waste 
management. 60pc of solid waste is not collected 
and transferred to dump sites; most of the waste is 
either left rotting or is burnt, which creates a choking 
miasma that envelops the various localities. 

Keeping these grim details in mind, Indus Motor 
Co. initiated Clean-up Drive 2018 in Karachi aimed 
at owning the cities of Pakistan through engaging 
NGOs, Media, Citizens and volunteer employees. 
Our objective is to instill a sense of ownership, 
particularly among the younger generation, to allow 
them to understand the positive impact they can 
make on their society. The Sustainable City drive is 
still continuing in collaboration with WWF-Pakistan 
targeting 200 schools in Karachi. It is aimed at 
fostering a sense of civic responsibility, ownership and 
unity among Karachiites to keep the city clean. The 
5S principles of Toyota have also been inculcated in 
the drive so that everyone aspiring to take ownership 
of the overall environment can benefit by increasing 
their efficiency through these concepts. 

IMC employees conducting the 5S Cleanup 
Drive 

Support to Wheelchair Table Tennis Player for 
Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games  

Indus Motor Co. has formally launched in Pakistan 
the global corporate initiative of Toyota “Start Your 
Impossible” that aims to inspire Toyota employees, 
partners and customers and connect the company’s 
core beliefs. Toyota believes that mobility goes beyond 
cars; it is about overcoming challenges and making 
dreams come true. The “Start Your Impossible” 
initiative reflects these values and highlights the 
company’s goal to provide freedom of mobility for all.

Mr Waseem Akhtar, Mayor of Karachi gracing 
the launch event of the Million Tree Plantation 
Drive

Indus Motor Co. pledges to support Ms Zainab 
Barkat, the national wheelchair table tennis player, 
to represent Pakistan in the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic 
Games and fulfill her dream of returning as a gold 
medalist. This support by IMC to her is a part of the 
global ‘Start Your Impossible’ initiative that reflects 
the Olympic and Paralympic spirit of encouragement, 
challenge and progress. The global initiative highlights 
the company’s mission of creating a barrier-free 
society and reinforces its values of humility, hard 
work, overcoming challenges and never giving up.

Ms Zainab Barkat, national 
wheelchair table tennis player, 
aspiring Paralympic champion

Habib University Foundation: 
Promotion of education is a comprehensive process 
for human and social transformation. The Habib 
University Foundation’s portfolio revolves around 
higher education, educational research and youth 
development. Habib University is envisaged as a 
world-class research-based undergraduate institution 
aimed at responding to the pressing challenges of 
the 21st century. It is the hub of Liberal Arts and 
Sciences education in Pakistan, offering a truly 
transformative learning experience to its students. 
The university’s mission is to educate promising 
students from all backgrounds and promote diversity 
in the field of research and education, developing 
them into competent and conscious members of 
society. Around 90% students of the university are 
receiving some form of financial support, with some 
100+ scholarships being offered every year.

At Indus Motor Co., we believe that it is our youth 
which will lead the country to a brighter future and 
as a good corporate citizen it is our responsibility 
to invest in them. IMC has continued donation of 
a substantial amount this year and played its role 
in promoting creativity, academic freedom and the 
exchange of ideas in an intellectually-stimulating 
environment.

Community Uplift:
Indus Motor Co.’s ambition is to be a good corporate 
citizen in communities, especially in localities where 
it operates. 

Since Inception of IMC
Around 1 million people-touched 
through Free Medical Camps

Above 1 million people-touched 
through Food and Ration Distribution

Our well-articulated Community Uplifting Program 
for local communities has two overarching goals 
for making our neighbours happier, more balanced 
and instilling a greater sense of purpose in their daily 
life. The role of our Community Service in eliminating 
social exclusion in adjoining localities explores various 
avenues. The first goal is to take care of their health 
by providing good quality nutritious cooked food 
every week, edible rations hampers during Ramazan, 
organizing free weekly medical camps for OPD at 
three locations and free psychiatric medical camps at 
two locations every two months.

Toyota’s free weekly medical camp for OPD 
and psychiatric services 

The second goal is to marshal and focus on 
bringing their children to school for mental and 
spiritual enrichment through providing elementary 
to secondary education under the program “Toyota 
– Goth Education Program” (T-GEP), which was 
initiated in 2008. The first batch has passed their 
Matriculation exams in Grade-A1 and A, while the 
second batch successfully passed their exams and 
have been promoted to higher classes and they have
already started blossoming into young individuals.
IMC is determined to continue its full support for 
their Higher Secondary Education at private colleges, 
etc., so that after some time, when they become 
professionals, they will become agents of change in 
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transforming the community.
 
TGEP is a unique social intervention that has 
significantly improved the living standards of 
beneficiaries who have a most rewarding and uplifting 
experience. The growth of children is phenomenal 
and we truly believe that they are the ambassadors of 
change. The biggest impact on their living standards 
has brought a radical change in their daily life. The 
fraction of dropouts and gender differentiation has 
now decreased to a negligible level. Their preference 
for early marriage has diluted with the expectation 
of a brighter future. We believe this is a great way 
to give back to the community as it will ultimately 
reduce the level of poverty. Apart from this, we also 
have had the privilege of establishing a fully functional 
computer lab for the Government Secondary School 
in Razzaqabad.

Conducted around

million
T-GEP’s

y e a r s
 nurturing
d r e a m

academic-hours

Toyota - Technical Education Program
As human development is our fundamental focus, 
we are developing the skills of youth, especially 
young people who hail from the economically 
weaker sections. The Toyota Technical Education 
Program (T-TEP) was begun as a typical example of 
a corporate giving initiative to which IMC contributed 
training hardware for a vocational training college in 
Lahore in 2000. T-TEP is a three-year automobile 
diploma that provides thorough automobile training 
to youth, enabling them to pursue successful careers 
in the industry. For providing students a distinct 
platform to hone their technical skills and contribute 
in strengthening Pakistan’s automotive industry, 
at present IMC runs four TTEP training institutes in 
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad, offering world-class, 
holistic education in varying automotive disciplines. 
To date, 4,397 industry-ready technicians have been 
trained; most of them are employed within the Toyota 
network in Pakistan. All these graduates are highly 
employable because of their skills and are also in high 
demand in Middle Eastern markets.

We are pleased to enter the 10th year of the program 
which has enabled the young talent of Pakistan 
to undergo holistic training and gain industry-

specific skills essential for professional growth and 
development in the auto industry.

TTEP training institutes offering world-class, 
holistic education in varying automotive 
disciplines to youth

Support to Health Sector

1.	 Support to Sindh Institute of Urology and 
Transplantation

Dr Adibul Rizvi of SIUT with CEO Mr Ali Asghar 
Jamali, appreciating the contribution of Indus 
Motor 

Indus Motor Company has released a Corporate 
philanthropy of 75 lakh rupees to the Sindh 
Institute of Urology and Transplantation (SIUT) to 
help them become more effective because they 
have unique assets and capability in providing 
quality treatment and transplantation to people 
suffering from renal diseases.

Dr Adibul Rizvi of SIUT appreciated the 
contribution of Indus Motor and its support for the 
community at large. He assured that this support 
will help propel success stories of social-impact 
that SIUT is demonstrating a strong commitment 
to providing state-of-the-art healthcare for the 
community.

2.	 Support to Indus Hospital for the Extension 
Plan 
Health sector is one of the most challenging 
sectors in Pakistan with a dire need of attention.  
The hospitals are the focal point of collective 
national health system for generations. Indus 
Hospital is doing a commendable job to bridge the 
gaps in provision of healthcare to underprivileged 
and IMC is supporting them in this cause.

To contribute to Indus Hospital’s extension plans 
and reach out to poor and needy patients, Indus 
Motor Company has donated Rs.10 million.

IMC congratulating Indus Hospital on their 
commendable work and offering a donation of 
Rs.10 million
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Corporate Matters & Related Disclosures

Composition of the Board 

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on June 30, 2019 is as follows. 

1.	 The total number of directors are 10 as per the following:

a)	 Male				    10
b)	 Female		   	 -

2.	 The number of directors under respective categories are as follows:

a)	 Independent Director 		  01
b)	 Non-Executive Directors 	 06
c)	 Executive Directors 		  03

As per the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017, “the Regulations”, the Board 
is required to have a female director and 1/3rd independent directors, not later than the expiry of the current 
term i.e. by October 31, 2020. 

Board of Directors Meetings
A total of Five (05) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the 12 months period from July 01, 
2018 to June 30, 2019. Name of the directors (at any time during the year) alongwith their attendance at the 
Board Meetings is as follows. 

S. 
No. Name of Directors Meetings Attended

1 Mr. Ali S. Habib (Chairman) 5

2 Mr. Yuji Takarada (Vice Chairman & Director) 5

3 Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali (CEO) 4

4 Mr. Sadatoshi Kashihara 5

5 Mr. Susumu Matsuda [Mr. Tsuyoshi Haginiwa, Alternate Director] 5

6 Mr. Tetsuya Ezumi,   [Mr. Y. Wagata, Alternate Director / Mr. K. Sotowa,   
Ex. Alternate Director ] 4

7 Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 4

8 Mr. Imran A. Habib / (Mr. Farhad Zulficar Ex- Director) 3

9 Mr. Azam Faruque 5

10 Mr. Parvez Ghias 5

Changes in Directors 
During the year, one casual vacancy occurred on the Board. Mr. Farhad Zulficar resigned as Director with effect 
from February 26, 2019 and Mr. Imran A. Habib was appointed as Director from the same date. 

The Board acknowledged the valuable contributions made by the outgoing Director and welcomed the new 
Director on the Board. 

Committees of the Board 
The Board has formed the following Committees and 
details of members are as under:

1.	 Board Audit Committee 
1)	 Mr. Azam Faruque, Chairman 
2)	 Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 
3)	 Mr. Imran A. Habib 
4)	 Mr. Parvez Ghias
5)	 Mr. Susumu Matsuda 
6)	 Mr. Tetsuya Ezumi  

2.	 Board Human Resource & Remuneration 
Committee
1)	 Mr. Azam Faruque, Chairman 
2)	 Mr. Ali S. Habib
3)	 Mr. Yuji Takarada 
4)	 Mr. Parvez Ghias
5)	 Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali 

3.	 Board Ethics Committee
1)	 Mr. Parvez Ghias, Chairman 
2)	 Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali
3)	 Mr. Imran A. Habib

Salient features of Remuneration policy for
Non-Executive Directors 
The Board acknowledge the valuable contributions 
being made by the Non-Executive directors (including 
independent director), and currently a meeting fee 
is being offered for attendance and participation at 
each Board meeting and its Committee, while this 
does not reflect compensation of their contributions 
and just represents a token of appreciation. The Non-
Executive directors may waive their rights to receive 
such remuneration for attending and participation in 
the above meetings.  
 
Remuneration of Executive Directors
The Remuneration of CEO & Directors of the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2019, is given 
on page number 129.  

Principal Risk and Uncertainties 
Company’s financial performance is exceptional 
over the past recent years. However, the continuous 
depreciation of Pak Rupee against various currencies, 
rise in inflation and international commodity prices 
continues to be vital factors that have an impact 
on current and the future financial statements of 
the Company.  The increase in taxes and duties by 
Government result in increase in prices of products, 
which will affect the volumes of the industry.  
 
Under the Automotive Development Policy 2016-
2021, many new players have planned investments 

which are underway and will introduce new products 
in the local market. The company welcomes new 
competition. However, consistent Government 
policies are required alongwith creating a level 
playing field for the existing players of the industry for 
sustainable growth.

Internal Control
The Company has employed an effective system 
of internal controls to carry on the business of the 
Company in an orderly manner, safeguard its assets 
and secure the accuracy and reliability of its records. 
The Management supervision and reviews are an 
essential element of the system of internal controls. 
The Management has delegated the function of 
detailed examination and special review to the team 
of internal auditors.

The Board ensures adequacy of internal control 
activities either directly or through its Committees. 
The Board also reviews the Company’s financial 
operations and position at regular intervals by means 
of interim accounts, reports, profitability reviews and 
other financial and statistical information. Analysis of 
budgetary control is in place and the Board reviews 
material variances with explanations and actions 
taken thereon on periodic basis.

Risk management 
IMC has a formal risk management framework to 
assess the risks faced in the context of the broader 
political and macroeconomic environment. The risk 
management system identifies strategic, regulatory, 
financial, operational, reputational, and sustainability 
risks related to IMC business activities. The risks are 
reviewed by the management committee along with 
departmental objectives, targets and performance. 
Appropriate strategies are developed and 
implemented to minimize the impact of the identified 
risks.

The Company has also formulated a risk management 
structure based on the global practice followed by 
Toyota, with the aim of driving the Company strength 
growth with managing risk associated with business 
adequately. 

Financial Statements
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
as applicable in Pakistan and provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed in preparation of the financial 
statements, where provisions of and directives issued 
under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, 
the provisions of and directives issued under the 
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 
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The auditors of the Company, M/s. A.F. Ferguson & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, audited the Financial 
Statements of the Company and have issued an 
unqualified report to the members. 

Pattern of Shareholding
The Pattern of Shareholding of the Company as on 
June 30, 2019, is given on pages 137 to 138.

Trading of Shares of the Company
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Directors, 
the Executives, and their spouses and minor children 
have not carried out trading of shares of the Company, 
other than that disclosed in pattern of shareholding. 

Material Changes and Commitments
There have been no material changes and 
commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company that have occurred between the end of the 
financial year of the Company to which the balance 
sheet relates and the date of the report, other than 
disclosed in Financial statements, or in this report. 

Appointment of Auditors
The existing auditors, M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co., 
Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, 
offer themselves for re-appointment. The Directors 
endorse the recommendation of the Audit Committee 
for re-appointment of A.F Ferguson & Co, as the 
auditors for the year ending 2020.

Related Party Transactions
All transactions with related parties have been 
executed at arm’s length and in normal course of 
business, which have been disclosed in the financial 
statements under relevant notes.

Key Operating and Financial Data
The Key Operating and Financial Data is mentioned 
on pages 140 to 141 of the Annual Report.

Statement of Compliance with COCG
The Company has fully complied with requirements 
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations 2017. Statement to this 
effect is annexed with this Report on page 84 to 85.

Chairman’s Review
The Directors of the company endorse the contents 
of the Chairman’s review, dealing with the overall 
performance of the Company, future outlook and 
report on the performance and effectiveness of the 
Board.

Moving Forward
Moving forward, your Company plans to secure new 
and exciting products from Toyota that will further 
strengthen the existing product slate to provide a 
wider choice to customers and ensure sustainable 
growth and value creation. 

After the formation of the newly elected government, 
we anticipate that policies are to be made to overcome 
the economic challenges. Initiatives are also to be 
taken to increase investments and localization.

Acknowledgement 
We are grateful to our customers for their continued 
patronage of our products and wish to acknowledge 
the efforts of the entire Indus team, including our 
staff, vendors, dealers and all business partners for 
their untiring efforts in these challenging times and 
look to their continued support. 

We bow to the Almighty and pray for His blessings 
and guidance. 

Karachi.
August 27, 2019

Ali Asghar Jamali
Chief Executive

Yuji Takarada
Vice Chairman
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Statement of Compliance 
with the Code of Corporate Governance

This statement is being presented to comply with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) for the purpose of establishing a framework of 
good governance.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.	 The total number of directors are 10 as per the following:

a.	 Male	 10
b.	 Female	  -

2.	 At the year ended June 30, 2019, the composition of the Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows:

Independent Director 
1.	 Mr. Azam Faruque Director

Non-Executive Directors 
2.	 Mr. Ali S. Habib Chairman 
3.	 Mr. Imran A. Habib Director
4.	 Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib Director
5.	 Mr. Susumu Matsuda Director
6.	 Mr. Tetsuya  Ezumi Director
7.	 Mr. Parvez Ghias Director

Executive Directors 
8.	 Mr. Yuji Takarada Vice Chairman
9.	 Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali Chief Executive 
10.	Mr. Sadatoshi Kashihara Director

The independent director meets the criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, 
including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4.	 The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken 
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5.	 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of 
the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they 
were approved or amended has been maintained.

6.	 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken 
by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies (The Act), 2017 
and the Regulations.

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected 
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act, the Code and 
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meetings of the Board.

8.	 The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance 
with the Act, the Code and these regulations.

9.	 In accordance with the criteria specified in the Code, 1 director of the company has been exempted by 
SECP from the requirements of Directors Training Program (DTP) as prescribed by the Code. 5 Directors 
are already certified directors under DTP. All the directors are fully conversant with their duties.

10.	During the year, there has been no change in the position and terms and conditions of employment of the 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit.

11.	The CFO and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) have duly endorsed the financial statements before approval 
of the Board.

12.	The Board has formed Committees  comprising of members given below: 

Audit Committee 
Mr. Azam Faruque Chairman
Mr. Imran A. Habib Member 
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib Member
Mr. Susumu Matsuda Member
Mr. Tetsuya  Ezumi Member
Mr. Parvez Ghias Member
HR & Remuneration Committee 
Mr. Azam Faruque Chairman
Mr. Ali S. Habib Member
Mr. Yuji Takarada Member 
Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali Member
Mr. Parvez Ghias Member

13.	The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committees for compliance.

14.	The frequency of meetings of the committees during the year was as per the following:

•	 Board Audit Committee	 Quarterly meetings
•	 Board HR & Remuneration Committee	 Half yearly meetings

15.	The Board has set up an effective internal audit function for a person who is considered suitably qualified 
and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16.	The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and 
registered with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their 
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are 
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted 
by the ICAP.

17.	The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these, Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and 
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18.	We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Ali S. Habib
Chairman

Karachi
August 27, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INDUS 
MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Indus Motor Company Limited (the Company), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the statement of profit or loss, the 
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement 
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with 
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of 
the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.
		
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
	
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED 

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Indus Motor Company 
Limited for the year ended June 30, 2019 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the 
Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance 
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel 
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls 
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance 
procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions 
and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only 
required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party 
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried 
out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that 
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Chartered Accountants 
Dated: August 27, 2019
Karachi



Following are the Key audit matters:

S. No.  Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

(i) Estimates involved in the provision for    
warranty obligations (Refer note 20.4 to the 
annexed financial statements)

The Company normally provides warranty on 
its locally manufactured vehicles to customers 
and maintains a provision in this respect, which 
amounts to Rs 1,443.982 million as at June 
30, 2019. The management carries out a semi-
annual exercise to assess the reasonableness of 
the provision for warranty obligations retained in 
the financial statements. The management and 
the Board of Directors of the Company consider 
it as a significant estimate and the provisioning 
methodology is regularly reviewed by the Board’s 
Audit Committee. In ascertaining the adequacy 
of the provision, the Board takes into account 
the trend of regular warranty claims and any 
previous incidents of recall.

Due to the significance of the provision balance 
and related significant estimation involved, we 
considered it as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:
•	 We obtained an understanding of the 

warranty process, evaluated the design of, 
and performed the related tests of controls.

•	 We evaluated the appropriateness of the 
Company’s methodology for calculating the 
charge of warranty provisions for the year 
and tested the basis for the assumptions 
developed and used in the determination of 
the warranty provisions.

•	 We assessed the reasonableness of the 
assumptions used in determination of the 
warranty provision and tested the validity of 
the data used in the calculations.

•	 We reviewed the adequacy of disclosures 
made by the Company in accordance with 
the applicable financial reporting framework.

S. No.  Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

(ii) Capital expenditure (Refer note 3 to the 
annexed financial statements)

During the current year, the Company has 
incurred significant capital expenditure mainly 
to enhance production capacity, technological 
upgrades and strengthen the existing product 
slate of the Company, as part of extension, 
expansion, balancing and modernization 
activities and has been capitalized during the 
year.

We consider the above as a key audit matter 
being significant transactions and events for the 
Company during the year.

Our audit procedures included the following:
•	 Assessed, on a sample basis, costs 

capitalised during the year by comparing 
the costs capitalised with the relevant 
underlying documentation, which included 
purchase agreements and invoices.

•	 Assessed whether the costs capitalized met 
the relevant criteria for capitalization as per 
the applicable accounting and reporting 
framework.

•	 Evaluated management’s estimation of 
economic useful lives and residual values by 
considering our knowledge of the business 
and practices adopted in the local industry.

•	 Reviewed the date of transferring capital 
work-in-progress to operating fixed assets 
by examining the completion certificates, on 
a sample basis.

•	 Assessed whether the disclosures are made 
in accordance with the financial reporting 
framework.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about 
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 
of 2017);

(b)	 the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the 
books of account and returns;

(c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose 
of the Company’s business; and

(d)	 zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by 
the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Shahbaz Akbar.

Chartered Accountants
A. F. Ferguson & Co 
Dated: August 27, 2019	
Karachi 
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Indus Motor Company Ltd.

 �  �(nnuaS 9Lport ��� 

Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2019

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended June 30, 2019

5otL 2019 2018
���������9upLLs Pn º�������������

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
7ropLrty� pSant and LXuPpmLnt �  13,804,509  ��������  
IntanNPISL assLts �  93,524  ������ 
LonN�tLrm Soans and ad]anJLs �  15,906  ������ 
LonN�tLrm dLposPts �  11,129   ���� 
+LMLrrLd ta_atPon � nLt �  -    �����  

 13,925,068  ������ �� 
Current Assets
:torLs and sparLs �  544,005  ������� 
:toJR�Pn�tradL �  13,560,393  ���������� 
;radL dLIts � unsLJurLd   2,547,915  ��������� 
Loans and ad]anJLs ��  3,728,026  ��������� 
:Oort�tLrm prLpaymLnts ��  31,946  �����  
(JJruLd rLturn ��  34,846  ������� 
6tOLr rLJLP]aISLs ��  3,109,549  ������� 
;a_atPon � nLt ��  617,068  �   
:Oort�tLrm Pn]LstmLnts ��  23,402,464  ���������� 
CasO and IanR IaSanJLs ��  3,281,782  ��������� 

 50,857,994  ���������� 

TOTAL ASSETS  64,783,062  ��� ������ 

EQUITY

Share Capital 
(utOorPsLd JapPtaS
����������� �����! ������������ ordPnary sOarLs oM 9s �� LaJO  5,000,000  ��������� 

IssuLd� suIsJrPILd and paPd�up JapPtaS ��  786,000  ������� 
9LsLr]Ls ��  39,259,309  ��� ������ 

 40,045,309  ���������� 
LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities
LonN tLrm Soan �  80,540  �   
+LMLrrLd 9L]LnuL  53,690  ������ 
+LMLrrLd ta_atPon � nLt �  424,690  �   

 558,920  ������ 

Current Liabilities
CurrLnt portPon oM dLMLrrLd rL]LnuL  3,300  �� �� 
<nJSaPmLd dP]PdLnd  174,538  ������� 
<npaPd dP]PdLnd  121,059  ������ 
;radL payaISLs� otOLr payaISLs and pro]PsPons ��  15,950,203  ���������� 
(d]anJLs Mrom JustomLrs and dLaSLrs ��  7,929,733  ���� ����� 
;a_atPon � nLt ��  -    ��� ����� 

 24,178,833  ���������� 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  64,783,062  ��� ������ 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS �� 

;OL annL_Ld notLs � to �� Morm an PntLNraS part oM tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

Note 2019 2018
���������9upLLs Pn º�������������

Net sales ��  157,996,212  �� �������  

Cost oM saSLs �� (138,804,538) �������������

Gross profit  19,191,674  ���������� 

+PstrPIutPon L_pLnsLs ��  (1,403,611)  ��������� �

(dmPnPstratP]L L_pLnsLs ��  (1,410,033)  �����������

6tOLr opLratPnN L_pLnsLs �  (234,977)  �� ������

 (3,048,621)  ��������� �

 16,143,053  ���������  

>orRLrs» 7roÄt 7artPJPpatPon -und and >orRLrs» >LSMarL -und ��  (1,406,379)  �����������

 14,736,674  � ������ � 

6tOLr PnJomL ��  4,306,662  �� ������ 

 19,043,336  ����� ���� 

-PnanJL Jost ��  (67,407)  ��������

Profit before taxation  18,975,929  ���   ���� 

;a_atPon ��  (5,260,954)  �����������

Profit after taxation  13,714,975  ���������� 

�9upLLs�

Earnings per share - basic and diluted ��  174.49  ���.�� 

;OL annL_Ld notLs � to �� Morm an PntLNraS part oM tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

(XLLS Loon
COPLM -PnanJPaS 6MMPJLr

(SP (sNOar 1amaSP
COPLM ,_LJutP]L

 @uQP ;aRarada
=PJL COaPrman 
 +PrLJtor

(XLLS Loon
COPLM -PnanJPaS 6MMPJLr

(SP (sNOar 1amaSP
COPLM ,_LJutP]L

 @uQP ;aRarada
=PJL COaPrman 
 +PrLJtor



Indus Motor Company Ltd.

 �  �(nnuaS 9Lport ��� 

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Statement of Cash Flow 
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
���������9upLLs Pn º�������������

Profit after taxation  13,714,975  ���������� 

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

9LmLasurLmLnt NaPn � �Soss� on nLt dLÄnLd ILnLÄt oISPNatPon ��.�  693  � �����

9LSatLd dLMLrrLd ta_ �PnJomL� � JOarNL tOLrLon  (201)  ����� 

 492  �������

Total comprehensive income for the year  13,715,467  ���������� 

   

;OL annL_Ld notLs � to �� Morm an PntLNraS part oM tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

Note 2019 2018
����������9upLLs Pn º�������������

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CasO �utPSPsLd Pn� � NLnLratLd Mrom opLratPons ��  (6,346,782)  ���� �� �� 
5Lt dLJrLasL � �PnJrLasL� Pn SonN�tLrm Soans and ad]anJLs  32,619  �� �����
5Lt PnJrLasL Pn SonN�tLrm dLposPts  (1,686)  �   
CompLnsatPon paPd on ad]anJLs rLJLP]Ld Mrom JustomLrs  (403,646)  ���������
InJrLasL Pn dLMLrrLd rL]LnuL  30,979  ������ 
7aymLnt to >orRLrs» 7roÄt 7artPJPpatPon -und  (1,020,000)  �����������
7aymLnt to >orRLrs» >LSMarL -und  (450,978)  ���������
InJomL ta_ paPd  (7,129,771)  �����������
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities  (15,289,265)  ���������  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

7urJOasL oM propLrty� pSant and LXuPpmLnt and PntanNPISL assLts  (8,749,118)  ��� ����� �
7roJLLds Mrom dPsposaSs oM propLrty� pSant and LXuPpmLnt  68,577  �����  
IntLrLst rLJLP]Ld on IanR dLposPts and ;Lrm +LposPt 9LJLPpts  1,583,036  ��� �� �� 
IntLrLst rLJLP]Ld on 7aRPstan In]LstmLnt )onds  308,105  ������� 
7roJLLds aNaPnst saSL � rLdLmptPon oM 7aRPstan In]LstmLnt )onds  -    ��������� 
In]LstmLnt Pn SPstLd mutuaS Mund unPts  (8,238,074)  �������� ���
+P]PdLnd PnJomL rLJLP]Ld Mrom mutuaS Munds  494,074 �
7roJLLds Mrom rLdLmptPon oM SPstLd mutuaS Mund unPts  17,242,007  �� ������ 
7roJLLds aNaPnst maturPty oM ;Lrm +LposPt 9LJLPpts  -    ��������� 
IntLrLst rLJLP]Ld on MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs  399,787  �   
In]LstmLnt Pn MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs  -    ����� �����
7roJLLds Mrom saSL oM MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs  1,103,183  ������ �� 
Net cash inflow from investing activities  4,211,577  ��������  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

LonN tLrm Soan rLJLP]Ld  80,540  �   
+P]PdLnd paPd  (10,361,785)  ���������� �
Net cash outflow on financing activities  (10,281,245)  ���������� �

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents during 
the year  (21,358,933)  ���������  

CasO and JasO LXuP]aSLnts at ILNPnnPnN oM tOL yLar  48,043,179  ����  ���� 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ��  26,684,246  ���������  

;OL annL_Ld notLs � to �� Morm an PntLNraS part oM tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.
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For the year ended June 30, 2019

Share Capital Reserves

TotalIssued, 
subscribed 
and paid-up

Capital Revenue

Sub-TotalShare 
Premium

General 
reserve

Unappro-
priated profit

���������������������������������������� �9upLLs Pn º���� ����������������������������������������

Balance at July 1, 2017 ������� � ����� ���������� ��������� ������� �� ���� �� �� 

;ransMLr to NLnLraS rLsLr]L Mor tOL yLar LndLd
1unL ��� ���� approprPatLd suIsLXuLnt to yLar Lnd  �    �   ��������� �����������  �    �   

Transactions with owners

-PnaS dP]PdLnd ' ���� Mor tOL yLar LndLd
1unL ��� ���� dLJSarLd suIsLXuLnt to yLar Lnd  �  �  � ����������� ����������� �����������

�st IntLrPm dP]PdLnd Mor tOL yLar LndLd 1unL ��� 
���� ' ����  �  �  � ����������� ����������� �����������

�nd IntLrPm dP]PdLnd Mor tOL yLar LndLd
1unL ��� ���� ' ����  �  �  � ����������� ����������� �����������

�rd IntLrPm dP]PdLnd Mor tOL yLar LndLd  
1unL ��� ���� ' ����  �    �    �   ����������� ����������� �����������

Total transactions with owners  �    �    �   ������������ ������������ ������������

7roÄt aMtLr ta_atPon Mor tOL yLar � � � ���������� ���������� ���������� 
6tOLr JomprLOLnsP]L Soss Mor tOL yLar  �    �    �   ������� ������� �������

;otaS JomprLOLnsP]L PnJomL Mor tOL yLar
LndLd 1unL ��� ����  �    �    �   ���������� ���������� ���������� 

Balance at June 30, 2018 786,000 196,500 27,451,050 8,310,792 35,958,342 36,744,342 

;ransMLr to NLnLraS rLsLr]L Mor tOL yLar LndLd
1unL ��� ���� approprPatLd suIsLXuLnt to yLar Lnd  �    �   ��������� �����������  �    �   

Transactions with owners

-PnaS dP]PdLnd ' ���� Mor tOL yLar LndLd
1unL ��� ���� dLJSarLd suIsLXuLnt to yLar Lnd  �    �    �   ����������� ����������� �����������

�st IntLrPm dP]PdLnd Mor tOL yLar LndLd
1unL ��� ���  ' ����  �    �    �   ����������� ����������� �����������

�nd IntLrPm dP]PdLnd Mor tOL yLar LndLd
1unL ��� ���  ' ����  �    �    �   ��� ������� ��� ������� ��� �������

�rd IntLrPm dP]PdLnd Mor tOL yLar LndLd
1unL ��� ���  ' ����  �    �    �   ����������� ����������� �����������

Total transactions with owners  �    �    �   ������������ ������������ ������������

7roÄt aMtLr ta_atPon Mor tOL yLar  �    �    �   ������� �� ������� �� ������� �� 
6tOLr JomprLOLnsP]L PnJomL Mor tOL yLar  �    �    �   � � � � � � 

;otaS JomprLOLnsP]L PnJomL Mor tOL yLar
LndLd 1unL ��� ���  �    �    �   ���������� ���������� ���������� 

Balance at June 30, 2019 786,000 196,500 31,951,050  7,111,759 39,259,309 40,045,309 

7roposLd ÄnaS dP]PdLnd and transMLr ILt^LLn rLsLr]Ls madL suIsLXuLnt to tOL yLar LndLd 1unL ��� ���  arL dPsJSosLd Pn notL �� to tOLsL 
ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

;OL annL_Ld notLs � to �� Morm an PntLNraS part oM tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

1 GENERAL INFORMATION       
        
 Indus Motor Company LPmPtLd �tOL Company� ̂ as PnJorporatLd Pn 7aRPstan as a puISPJ SPmPtLd Jompany 

Pn +LJLmILr � �  and startLd JommLrJPaS produJtPon Pn May �  �. ;OL sOarLs oM tOL Company arL 
XuotLd on  tOL 7aRPstan :toJR ,_JOanNL.

 ;OL Company ^as MormLd Pn aJJordanJL ^PtO tOL tLrms oM a 1oPnt =LnturL aNrLLmLnt JonJSudLd 
amonNst JLrtaPn /ousL oM /aIPI JompanPLs� ;oyota Motor CorporatPon and ;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon 
Mor tOL purposLs oM assLmISPnN� proNrLssP]L manuMaJturPnN and marRLtPnN oM ;oyota ]LOPJSLs. ;OL 
Company aSso aJts as tOL soSL dPstrPIutor oM ;oyota and +aPOatsu ]LOPJSLs Pn 7aRPstan and Oas a SPJLnsL 
Mor assLmISPnN� proNrLssP]L manuMaJturPnN and marRLtPnN oM tOLsL ]LOPJSLs Pn 7aRPstan.

 ;OL rLNPstLrLd oMÄJL and MaJtory oM tOL Company Ps sPtuatLd at 7Sot 5o. 5>A���7��� 7ort 8asPm IndustrPaS 
,statL� )Pn 8asPm� 2araJOP.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 ;OL sPNnPÄJant aJJountPnN poSPJPLs appSPLd Pn tOL prLparatPon oM tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts arL sLt out 
ILSo .̂ ;OLsL poSPJPLs Oa]L ILLn JonsPstLntSy appSPLd to aSS tOL yLars prLsLntLd� unSLss otOLr^PsL statLd.

2.1 Basis of preparation        
        
2.1.1 Statement of compliance       
        
 ;OLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts Oa]L ILLn prLparLd Pn aJJordanJL ^PtO tOL aJJountPnN and rLportPnN 

standards as appSPJaISL Pn 7aRPstan. ;OL aJJountPnN and rLportPnN standards appSPJaISL Pn 7aRPstan 
JomprPsL oM! 

 � IntLrnatPonaS -PnanJPaS 9LportPnN :tandards �I-9:� PssuLd Iy tOL IntLrnatPonaS (JJountPnN :tandards 
)oard �I(:)� as notPÄLd undLr tOL CompanPLs (Jt� ����" and

 � 7ro]PsPons oM and dPrLJtP]Ls PssuLd undLr tOL CompanPLs (Jt� ����    
  

 >OLrL pro]PsPons oM and dPrLJtP]Ls PssuLd undLr tOL CompanPLs (Jt� ���� dPMMLr Mrom tOL I-9:� tOL 
pro]PsPons oM and dPrLJtP]Ls PssuLd undLr tOL CompanPLs (Jt� ���� Oa]L ILLn MoSSo^Ld.

2.1.2 Initial application of standards, amendments or interpretations to published approved accounting 
and reporting standards

2.1.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting and reporting standards that 
became effective during the year ended June 30, 2019

 ;OLrL arL JLrtaPn nL^ standards� PntLrprLtatPons and amLndmLnts to appro]Ld aJJountPnN standards 
^OPJO arL mandatory Mor tOL Company»s aJJountPnN pLrPods ILNPnnPnN on or aMtLr 1uSy �� ���� Iut arL 
JonsPdLrLd not to IL rLSL]ant or Oa]L any sPNnPÄJant LMMLJt on tOL Company»s ÄnanJPaS rLportPnN� L_JLpt 
as mLntPonLd ILSo^!

       
 � I-9:   º-PnanJPaS InstrumLnts» � ;OPs standard rLpSaJLs NuPdanJL Pn I(: �  º-PnanJPaS InstrumLnts! 

9LJoNnPtPon and MLasurLmLnt». It PnJSudLs rLXuPrLmLnts on tOL JSassPÄJatPon and mLasurLmLnt oM 
ÄnanJPaS assLts and SPaIPSPtPLs dLrLJoNnPtPon oM ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnts� PmpaPrmLnt oM ÄnanJPaS assLts 
and OLdNL aJJountPnN" Pt aSso PnJSudLs an L_pLJtLd JrLdPt SossLs PmpaPrmLnt modLS tOat rLpSaJLs tOL 
JurrLnt PnJurrLd Soss PmpaPrmLnt modLS.
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For the year ended June 30, 2019

 (s a rLsuSt oM appSPJatPon oM I-9:  � Pn]LstmLnts Pn marRLt trLasury IPSSs Oa]L ILLn JSassPÄLd as ºMaPr 
]aSuL tOrouNO proÄt or Soss» IasLd on tOL IusPnLss modLS oM tOL Company and Pn]LstmLnts Pn ;Lrm 
+LposPt 9LJLPpts Oa]L ILLn rLJSassPÄLd Mrom ºOLSd to maturPty» to ºamortPsLd Jost». -urtOLr� IasLd on 
assLssmLnt Iy tOL manaNLmLnt� no matLrPaS JOanNL Pn pro]PsPon Mor PmpaPrmLnt oM ÄnanJPaS assLts Ps 
rLXuPrLd Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

 � I-9: �� º9L]LnuL Mrom JontraJts ̂ PtO JustomLrs» � I-9: �� rLpSaJLs tOL prL]Pous rL]LnuL standards! 
I(: �� º9L]LnuL»� I(: �� ºConstruJtPon ContraJts� and tOL rLSatLd PntLrprLtatPons on rL]LnuL 
rLJoNnPtPon.

  I-9: �� PntroduJLs a sPnNSL Ä]L�stLp modLS Mor rL]LnuL rLJoNnPtPon ^PtO a JomprLOLnsP]L MramL^orR 
IasLd on JorL prPnJPpSL tOat an LntPty sOouSd rLJoNnPsL rL]LnuL rLprLsLntPnN tOL transMLr oM promPsLd 
Noods or sLr]PJLs undLr sLparatL pLrMormanJL oISPNatPons undLr tOL JontraJt to JustomLr at an 
amount tOat rLÅLJts tOL JonsPdLratPon to ^OPJO tOL LntPty L_pLJts to IL LntPtSLd Pn L_JOanNL Mor tOosL 
promPsLd Noods or sLr]PJLs.

  -urtOLr� I-9: �� L_pSaPns transaJtPon prPJL as tOL amount oM JonsPdLratPon to ̂ OPJO an LntPty L_pLJts to 
IL LntPtSLd Pn L_JOanNL Mor transMLrrPnN promPsLd Noods or sLr]PJLs to a JustomLr� L_JSudPnN amounts 
JoSSLJtLd on ILOaSM oM tOPrd partPLs �Mor L_ampSL� somL saSLs ta_Ls�. ;OL JonsPdLratPon promPsLd Pn a 
JontraJt ^PtO a JustomLr may PnJSudL Ä_Ld amounts� ]arPaISL amounts� or IotO.

  (s a rLsuSt oM appSPJatPon oM I-9: ��� JompLnsatPon on ad]anJLs rLJLP]Ld Mrom JustomLrs Mor tOL yLar 
amountPnN to 9s ���.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s � �.� � mPSSPon� tOat ^LrL prL]PousSy JSassPÄLd Pn º-PnanJL 
Cost» Oa]L no^ ILLn nLttLd oMM aNaPnst 9L]LnuL Mrom JontraJt ^PtO JustomLrs. 

 ConsLXuLnt to tOL adoptPon oM aIo]L mLntPonLd standards� JOanNLs Pn aJJountPnN poSPJPLs Oa]L ILLn 
rLÅLJtLd Pn notL �.�.�� �.�.� and �.�.��.

2.1.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing accounting standards that are not yet 
effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

 I-9: �� ºLLasLs» ^PSS IL LMMLJtP]L Mor tOL Company»s annuaS aJJountPnN pLrPod ILNPnnPnN 1uSy �� ��� . It 
^PSS rLsuSt Pn aSmost aSS SLasLs ILPnN rLJoNnPsLd on tOL statLmLnt oM ÄnanJPaS posPtPon� as tOL dPstPnJtPon 
ILt^LLn opLratPnN and ÄnanJL SLasLs Ps rLmo]Ld. <ndLr tOL nL^ standard� an assLt �tOL rPNOt to usL 
tOL SLasLd PtLm� and a ÄnanJPaS SPaIPSPty to pay rLntaSs arL rLJoNnPsLd. ;OL onSy L_JLptPons arL sOort�
tLrm and So^�]aSuL SLasLs. (t prLsLnt tOL Company Ps Pn tOL proJLss oM dLtLrmPnPnN tOL PmpaJts oM 
appSPJatPon oM I-9: �� on MuturL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts oM tOL Company.

 ;OLrL arL JLrtaPn otOLr nL^ standards and amLndmLnts to tOL appro]Ld aJJountPnN standards tOat ^PSS 
IL mandatory Mor tOL Company»s annuaS aJJountPnN pLrPods ILNPnnPnN on or aMtLr 1uSy �� ��� . /o^L]Lr� 
tOLsL standards and amLndmLnts ^PSS not Oa]L any sPNnPÄJant PmpaJt on tOL ÄnanJPaS rLportPnN oM tOL 
Company and� tOLrLMorL� Oa]L not ILLn dPsJSosLd Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

2.2 Basis for measurement       
        
2.2.1 ;OLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts Oa]L ILLn prLparLd undLr tOL OPstorPJaS Jost Jon]LntPon L_JLpt tOat 

Pn]LstmLnts JSassPÄLd as ÄnanJPaS assLts ºat MaPr ]aSuL tOrouNO proÄt or Soss» and ºdLrP]atP]L ÄnanJPaS  
PnstrumLnts» Oa]L ILLn marRLd to marRLt and JLrtaPn staMM rLtPrLmLnt ILnLÄts arL JarrPLd at prLsLnt 
]aSuL oM dLÄnLd ILnLÄt oISPNatPon SLss MaPr ]aSuL oM pSan assLts.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies       
        
 ;OL sPNnPÄJant aJJountPnN poSPJPLs adoptLd Pn tOL prLparatPon oM tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts arL sLt out 

ILSo .̂ ;OLsL poSPJPLs Oa]L ILLn JonsPstLntSy appSPLd to aSS tOL yLars prLsLntLd  unSLss otOLr^PsL statLd.

2.3.1 Property, plant and equipment       
        
2.3.1.1 Property, plant and equipment - Owned       
        
 7ropLrty� pSant and LXuPpmLnt arL statLd at Jost SLss aJJumuSatLd dLprLJPatPon and aJJumuSatLd 

PmpaPrmLnt SossLs� PM any� L_JLpt JapPtaS ^orR�Pn�proNrLss ^OPJO Ps statLd at Jost SLss aJJumuSatLd 
PmpaPrmLnt SossLs� PM any. 

 +LprLJPatPon Ps JOarNLd to tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss appSyPnN tOL straPNOt SPnL mLtOod� ^OLrLIy 
tOL dLprLJPaISL amount oM an assLt Ps ^rPttLn oMM o]Lr Pts LstPmatLd usLMuS SPML. ;OL Jost oM SLasLOoSd 
Sand Ps amortPsLd LXuaSSy o]Lr tOL SLasL pLrPod. +LprLJPatPon Ps JOarNLd on addPtPons Mrom tOL montO 
tOL assLt Ps a]aPSaISL Mor usL and on dPsposaSs up to tOL montO prLJLdPnN tOL montO oM dPsposaS. ;OL 
ratLs oM dLprLJPatPon arL statLd Pn notL �.�  to tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts. 

 ;OL assLts» rLsPduaS ]aSuLs� usLMuS SP]Ls and dLprLJPatPon mLtOods arL rL]PL^Ld� and adQustLd� PM 
approprPatL� at LaJO rLportPnN datL. 

 :uIsLXuLnt Josts arL PnJSudLd Pn tOL assLt»s JarryPnN amounts or rLJoNnPsLd as a sLparatL assLt� as 
approprPatL� onSy ^OLn Pt Ps proIaISL tOat MuturL LJonomPJ ILnLÄts assoJPatLd ^PtO tOL PtLm ^PSS Åo^ 
to tOL Company and tOL Jost oM tOL PtLm Jan IL mLasurLd rLSPaISy. 5ormaS rLpaPrs and maPntLnanJL 
arL JOarNLd to tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss as and ^OLn PnJurrLd. (SS otOLr rLpaPrs and maPntLnanJL 
arL JOarNLd to tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss durPnN tOL ÄnanJPaS pLrPod Pn ^OPJO tOLy arL PnJurrLd.

 .aPns and SossLs on saSL or rLtPrLmLnt oM propLrty� pSant and LXuPpmLnt arL PnJSudLd Pn tOL statLmLnt 
oM proÄt or Soss.

Capital work-in-progress

(SS L_pLndPturLs JonnLJtLd ^PtO spLJPÄJ assLts PnJurrLd durPnN PnstaSSatPon and JonstruJtPon pLrPod 
arL JarrPLd undLr JapPtaS ^orR�Pn�proNrLss. ;OLsL arL transMLrrLd to spLJPÄJ assLts as and ^OLn 
assLts arL a]aPSaISL Mor usL.
        

2.3.1.2 Intangible assets - Computer Softwares       
        

ComputLr soMt^arLs arL statLd at Jost SLss aJJumuSatLd amortPsatPon. :oMt^arLs» Josts arL onSy 
JapPtaSPsLd ^OLn Pt Ps proIaISL tOat MuturL LJonomPJ ILnLÄts attrPIutaISL to tOL soMt^arLs ^PSS Åo^ to 
tOL Company and tOL samL Ps amortPsLd appSyPnN tOL straPNOt SPnL mLtOod at tOL ratLs statLd Pn notL 
�.� to tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.
        

2.3.1.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

 ;OL Company assLssLs at LaJO rLportPnN datL ^OLtOLr tOLrL Ps any PndPJatPon tOat propLrty� pSant and 
LXuPpmLnt and PntanNPISL assLts may IL PmpaPrLd. IM any suJO PndPJatPon L_Psts� tOL JarryPnN amounts 
oM suJO assLts arL rL]PL^Ld to assLss ^OLtOLr tOLy arL rLJordLd Pn L_JLss oM tOLPr rLJo]LraISL 
amounts and ̂ OLrL tOL JarryPnN ]aSuLs L_JLLd tOL LstPmatLd rLJo]LraISL amount� tOL assLts or JasO�
NLnLratPnN unPts arL ^rPttLn do^n to tOLPr rLJo]LraISL amounts and tOL dPMMLrLnJLs arL rLJoNnPsLd Pn 
tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss.

2.3.2 Stores and spares

 :torLs and sparLs� L_JLpt Pn transPt arL ]aSuLd at Jost� dLtLrmPnLd on a mo]PnN a]LraNL IasPs. 7ro]PsPon 
Ps madL Mor any sSo^ mo]PnN and oIsoSLtL PtLms. ItLms Pn transPt arL ]aSuLd at Jost JomprPsPnN Pn]oPJL 
]aSuLs pSus otOLr JOarNLs PnJurrLd tOLrLon.
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2.3.3 Stock-in-trade

 :toJR�Pn�tradL� L_JLpt Pn transPt� arL ]aSuLd at tOL So^Lr oM Jost and nLt rLaSPsaISL ]aSuL. :toJR Pn 
transPt arL ]aSuLd at Jost as aJJumuSatLd upto tOL rLportPnN datL� JomprPsPnN Pn]oPJL ]aSuLs pSus otOLr 
JOarNLs PnJurrLd tOLrLon.

 Cost oM ra^ matLrPaSs� o^n manuMaJturLd ]LOPJSLs and tradPnN stoJR Ps dLtLrmPnLd on a mo]PnN 
a]LraNL IasPs. Cost oM ^orR�Pn�proJLss Ps ]aSuLd at matLrPaS Jost.

 7ro]PsPon Mor oIsoSLtL and sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL Ps dLtLrmPnLd IasLd on tOL manaNLmLnt»s 
assLssmLnt rLNardPnN tOLPr MuturL usaIPSPty. 

 5Lt rLaSPsaISL ]aSuL sPNnPÄLs tOL LstPmatLd sLSSPnN prPJL Pn tOL ordPnary JoursL oM IusPnLss SLss 
LstPmatLd Jost oM JompSLtPon and tOL LstPmatLd Josts nLJLssary to IL PnJurrLd Mor Pts saSL.

2.3.4 Financial assets and liabilities       
        
2.3.4.1 Financial assets       
        
 a) Financial assets at amortised cost

  -PnanJPaS assLts at amortPsLd Jost arL OLSd ^PtOPn a IusPnLss modLS ^OosL oIQLJtP]L Ps to OoSd 
ÄnanJPaS assLts Pn ordLr to JoSSLJt JontraJtuaS JasO Åo^s and tOL JontraJtuaS tLrms oM tOL ÄnanJPaS 
assLt NP]L rPsL on spLJPÄLd datLs to JasO Åo^s tOat arL soSLSy paymLnts oM prPnJPpaS and PntLrLst on 
tOL prPnJPpaS amount outstandPnN. IntLrLst PnJomL Mrom tOLsL ÄnanJPaS assLts� PmpaPrmLnt SossLs� 
MorLPNn L_JOanNL NaPns and SossLs� and NaPn or Soss arPsPnN on dLrLJoNnPtPon arL rLJoNnPsLd 
dPrLJtSy Pn proÄt or Soss.

 b) Fair value through other comprehensive income

  -PnanJPaS assLts at MaPr ]aSuL tOrouNO otOLr JomprLOLnsP]L PnJomL arL OLSd ^PtOPn a IusPnLss 
modLS ^OosL oIQLJtP]L Ps aJOPL]Ld Iy IotO JoSSLJtPnN JontraJtuaS JasO Åo^s and sLSSPnN ÄnanJPaS 
assLts and tOL JontraJtuaS tLrms oM tOL ÄnanJPaS assLt NP]L rPsL on spLJPÄLd datLs to JasO Åo^s 
tOat arL soSLSy paymLnts oM prPnJPpaS and PntLrLst on tOL prPnJPpaS amount outstandPnN.

 c) Fair value through profit or loss

  -PnanJPaS assLts at MaPr ]aSuL tOrouNO proÄt or Soss arL tOosL ÄnanJPaS assLts ^OPJO arL LPtOLr 
dLsPNnatLd Pn tOPs JatLNory or not JSassPÄLd Pn any oM tOL otOLr JatLNorPLs. ( NaPn or Soss on dLIt 
Pn]LstmLnt tOat Ps suIsLXuLntSy mLasurLd at MaPr ]aSuL tOrouNO proÄt or Soss Ps rLJoNnPsLd Pn proÄt 
or Soss Pn tOL pLrPod Pn ^OPJO Pt arPsLs.

  -PnanJPaS assLts arL PnPtPaSSy mLasurLd at Jost� ^OPJO Ps tOL MaPr ]aSuL oM tOL JonsPdLratPon NP]Ln 
and rLJLP]Ld rLspLJtP]LSy. ;OLsL ÄnanJPaS assLts and SPaIPSPtPLs arL suIsLXuLntSy rLmLasurLd to 
MaPr ]aSuL� amortPaLd Jost or Jost as tOL JasL may IL. (ny NaPn or Soss on tOL rLJoNnPtPon and 
dL�rLJoNnPtPon oM tOL ÄnanJPaS assLts and SPaIPSPtPLs Ps PnJSudLd Pn tOL proÄt or Soss Mor tOL pLrPod Pn 
^OPJO Pt arPsLs.

        
 ,XuPty PnstrumLnt ÄnanJPaS assLts � mutuaS Munds arL mLasurLd at MaPr ]aSuL at and suIsLXuLnt to PnPtPaS 

rLJoNnPtPon. COanNLs Pn MaPr ]aSuL oM tOLsL ÄnanJPaS assLts arL normaSSy rLJoNnPsLd Pn proÄt or Soss. 
+P]PdLnds Mrom suJO Pn]LstmLnts JontPnuL to IL rLJoNnPsLd Pn proÄt or Soss ̂ OLn tOL Company»s rPNOt 
to rLJLP]L paymLnt Ps LstaISPsOLd. >OLrL an LSLJtPon Ps madL to prLsLnt MaPr ]aSuL NaPns and SossLs on 
LXuPty PnstrumLnts Pn otOLr JomprLOLnsP]L PnJomL tOLrL Ps no suIsLXuLnt rLJSassPÄJatPon oM MaPr ]aSuL 
NaPns and SossLs to proÄt or Soss MoSSo^PnN tOL dLrLJoNnPtPon oM tOL Pn]LstmLnt.

 -PnanJPaS assLts arL dLrLJoNnPsLd ^OLn tOL rPNOts to rLJLP]L JasO Åo^s Mrom tOL assLts Oa]L L_pPrLd 
or Oa]L ILLn transMLrrLd and tOL Company Oas transMLrrLd suIstantPaSSy aSS rPsRs and rL^ards oM 
o^nLrsOPp. (ssLts or SPaIPSPtPLs tOat arL not JontraJtuaS Pn naturL and tOat arL JrLatLd as a rLsuSt oM 
statutory rLXuPrLmLnts PmposLd Iy tOL .o]LrnmLnt arL not tOL ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnts oM tOL Company.

 ;OL Company assLssLs on a Mor^ard SooRPnN IasPs tOL L_pLJtLd JrLdPt SossLs assoJPatLd ^PtO Pts 
ÄnanJPaS assLts JarrPLd at amortPsLd Jost and MaPr ]aSuL tOrouNO otOLr JomprLOLnsP]L PnJomL. ;OL 
PmpaPrmLnt mLtOodoSoNy appSPLd dLpLnds on ^OLtOLr tOLrL Oas ILLn a sPNnPÄJant PnJrLasL Pn JrLdPt 
rPsR. -or tradL rLJLP]aISLs� tOL Company appSPLs tOL sPmpSPÄLd approaJO� ^OPJO rLXuPrLs L_pLJtLd 
SPMLtPmL SossLs to IL rLJoNnPsLd Mrom PnPtPaS rLJoNnPtPon oM tOL rLJLP]aISLs. ;OL Company rLJoNnPsLs Pn 
proÄt or Soss� as an PmpaPrmLnt NaPn or Soss� tOL amount oM L_pLJtLd JrLdPt SossLs �or rL]LrsaS� tOat Ps 
rLXuPrLd to adQust tOL Soss aSSo^anJL at tOL rLportPnN datL.

2.3.4.2 Financial Liabilities

 (SS ÄnanJPaS SPaIPSPtPLs arL rLJoNnPsLd at tOL tPmL ̂ OLn tOL Company ILJomLs a party to tOL JontraJtuaS 
pro]PsPons oM tOL PnstrumLnt. -PnanJPaS SPaIPSPtPLs at amortPsLd Jost arL PnPtPaSSy mLasurLd at MaPr ]aSuL 
mPnus transaJtPon Josts. -PnanJPaS SPaIPSPtPLs at MaPr ]aSuL tOrouNO proÄt or Soss arL PnPtPaSSy rLJoNnPsLd at 
MaPr ]aSuL and transaJtPon Josts arL L_pLnsLd Pn tOL proÄt or Soss. 

 -PnanJPaS SPaIPSPtPLs� otOLr tOan tOosL at MaPr ]aSuL tOrouNO proÄt or Soss� arL suIsLXuLntSy mLasurLd at 
amortPsLd Jost usPnN tOL LMMLJtP]L yPLSd mLtOod.

 ( ÄnanJPaS SPaIPSPty Ps dLrLJoNnPsLd ^OLn tOL oISPNatPon undLr tOL SPaIPSPty Ps dPsJOarNLd� JanJLSSLd or 
L_pPrLd. >OLrL an L_PstPnN ÄnanJPaS SPaIPSPty Ps rLpSaJLd Iy anotOLr Mrom tOL samL SLndLr on suIstantPaSSy 
dPMMLrLnt tLrms� or tOL tLrms oM an L_PstPnN SPaIPSPty arL suIstantPaSSy modPÄLd� suJO an L_JOanNL and 
modPÄJatPon Ps trLatLd as a dLrLJoNnPtPon oM tOL orPNPnaS SPaIPSPty and tOL rLJoNnPtPon oM a nL^ SPaIPSPty� 
and tOL dPMMLrLnJL Pn rLspLJtP]L JarryPnN amounts Ps rLJoNnPsLd Pn tOL proÄt or Soss.

        
2.3.4.3 Impairment of financial assets       
        
 ;OL Company assLssLs on a Mor^ard SooRPnN IasPs tOL L_pLJtLd JrLdPt SossLs assoJPatLd ^PtO 

Pts ÄnanJPaS assLts. ;OL PmpaPrmLnt mLtOodoSoNy appSPLd dLpLnds on ^OLtOLr tOLrL Oas ILLn a 
sPNnPÄJant PnJrLasL Pn JrLdPt rPsR. ;OL Company appSPLs tOL sPmpSPÄLd approaJO to rLJoNnPsL SPMLtPmL 
L_pLJtLd JrLdPt SossLs Mor tradL and otOLr rLJLP]aISLs.

2.3.4.4 Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

 ( ÄnanJPaS assLt and ÄnanJPaS SPaIPSPty Ps oMM�sLt and tOL nLt amount Ps rLportLd Pn tOL statLmLnt oM 
ÄnanJPaS posPtPon ^OLn tOLrL Ps a SLNaSSy LnMorJLaISL rPNOt to sLt�oMM tOL transaJtPon and aSso tOLrL Ps an 
PntLntPon to sLttSL on a nLt IasPs or to rLaSPsL tOL assLt and sLttSL tOL SPaIPSPty sPmuStanLousSy.

2.3.5 Loans, advances and deposits

 ;OLsL arL statLd at Jost SLss LstPmatLs madL Mor any douItMuS rLJLP]aISLs IasLd on a rL]PL^ oM 
aSS outstandPnN amounts at tOL rLportPnN datL. )aSanJLs JonsPdLrLd douItMuS and PrrLJo]LraISL arL 
^rPttLn oMM ^OLn PdLntPÄLd.

 LonN tLrm Soans arL PnPtPaSSy JarrPLd at Jost as tOL LMMLJt oM JarryPnN tOLsL IaSanJLs at amortPsLd Jost 
^ouSd not IL matLrPaS Pn tOL o]LraSS JontL_t oM tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.
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2.3.6 Trade debts and other receivables

 ;radL dLIts and otOLr rLJLP]aISLs arL rLJoNnPsLd PnPtPaSSy at tOL amount oM JonsPdLratPon tOat Ps 
unJondPtPonaS� unSLss tOLy JontaPn sPNnPÄJant ÄnanJPnN JomponLnt Pn ^OPJO JasL suJO arL rLJoNnPsLd 
at MaPr ]aSuL. ;OL Company OoSds tOL tradL dLIts ^PtO tOL oIQLJtP]L oM JoSSLJtPnN tOL JontraJtuaS JasO 
Åo^s and tOLrLMorL mLasurLs tOL tradL dLIts suIsLXuLntSy at amortPsLd Jost usPnN tOL LMMLJtP]L 
PntLrLst mLtOod. ImpaPrmLnt oM tradL dLIts and otOLr rLJLP]aISLs Ps dLsJrPILd Pn notL �.�.�.�

2.3.7 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

 ;OL Company dLsPNnatLs dLrP]atP]L ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnts as LPtOLr MaPr ]aSuL OLdNL or JasO Åo^ OLdNL.

 Fair value hedge

 -aPr ]aSuL OLdNL rLprLsLnts OLdNLs oM tOL MaPr ]aSuL oM rLJoNnPsLd assLts or SPaIPSPtPLs or a Ärm 
JommPtmLnt. COanNLs Pn tOL MaPr ]aSuL oM dLrP]atP]Ls tOat arL dLsPNnatLd and XuaSPMy as MaPr ]aSuL 
OLdNLs arL rLJordLd Pn tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss� toNLtOLr ^PtO any JOanNLs Pn tOL MaPr ]aSuL oM 
tOL OLdNLd assLt or SPaIPSPty tOat arL attrPIutaISL to tOL OLdNLd rPsR. ;OL JarryPnN ]aSuL oM tOL OLdNLd 
PtLm Ps adQustLd aJJordPnNSy.

 Cash flow hedge

 COanNLs Pn MaPr ]aSuL oM dLrP]atP]L OLdNPnN PnstrumLnts dLsPNnatLd as a JasO Åo^ OLdNL arL rLJoNnPsLd 
Pn tOL statLmLnt oM JomprLOLnsP]L PnJomL to tOL L_tLnt tOat tOL OLdNL Ps LMMLJtP]L. ;o tOL L_tLnt tOL 
OLdNL Ps PnLMMLJtP]L� JOanNLs Pn MaPr ]aSuL arL rLJoNnPsLd Pn tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss.

 (mounts aJJumuSatLd Pn LXuPty arL rLJSassPÄLd to tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss Pn tOL pLrPods Pn 
^OPJO tOL OLdNLd PtLm ^PSS aMMLJt tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss. 

2.3.8 Taxation

 Current 

 7ro]PsPon Mor JurrLnt ta_atPon Ps IasLd on ta_aISL PnJomL at tOL JurrLnt ratLs oM ta_atPon� aMtLr 
JonsPdLrPnN rLIatLs and ta_ JrLdPts a]aPSaISL� PM any� and ta_Ls paPd undLr tOL -PnaS ;a_ 9LNPmL. ;OL 
JOarNL Mor JurrLnt ta_ aSso PnJSudLs adQustmLnts ^OLrL nLJLssary� rLSatPnN to prPor yLars ^OPJO arPsL 
Mrom assLssmLnts MramLd � ÄnaSPsLd durPnN tOL yLar.

 Deferred

 +LMLrrLd ta_ Ps rLJoNnPsLd usPnN tOL statLmLnt oM ÄnanJPaS posPtPon SPaIPSPty mLtOod� on maQor tLmporary 
dPMMLrLnJLs at tOL rLportPnN datL ILt^LLn tOL ta_ IasLs oM assLts and SPaIPSPtPLs and tOLPr JarryPnN 
amounts Mor ÄnanJPaS rLportPnN purposLs. +LMLrrLd ta_ assLts arL rLJoNnPsLd Mor aSS dLduJtPISL 
tLmporary dPMMLrLnJLs to tOL L_tLnt tOat tOL tLmporary dPMMLrLnJLs ̂ PSS rL]LrsL Pn tOL MuturL and ta_aISL 
PnJomL ^PSS IL a]aPSaISL aNaPnst ^OPJO tOL dLduJtPISL tLmporary dPMMLrLnJLs Jan IL utPSPsLd.

 ;OL JarryPnN amount oM dLMLrrLd ta_ assLts Ps rL]PL^Ld at LaJO rLportPnN datL and rLduJLd to tOL 
L_tLnt tOat Pt Ps no SonNLr proIaISL tOat suMÄJPLnt ta_aISL proÄt ^PSS IL a]aPSaISL to aSSo^ aSS or part Mor 
tOL dLMLrrLd ta_ assLt to IL utPSPsLd.

 +LMLrrLd ta_ assLts and SPaIPSPtPLs arL mLasurLd at tOL ta_ ratLs tOat arL L_pLJtLd to appSy to tOL 
pLrPod ^OLn tOL assLt Ps rLaSPsLd or tOL SPaIPSPty Ps sLttSLd� IasLd on ta_ ratLs �and ta_ Sa^s� tOat Oa]L 
ILLn LnaJtLd or suIstantP]LSy LnaJtLd at tOL rLportPnN datL.

2.3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

 -or tOL purposL oM tOL statLmLnt oM JasO Åo^s� JasO and JasO LXuP]aSLnts JomprPsL oM JasO Pn 
Oand� IanR IaSanJLs� IanR dLposPts nLt oM runnPnN ÄnanJLs and sOort tLrm Pn]LstmLnts Oa]PnN a 
JontraJtuaS maturPty oM tOrLL montOs or SLss. ;OL JasO and JasO LXuP]aSLnts arL rLadPSy Jon]LrtPISL to 
Rno^n amounts oM JasO and arL tOLrLMorL suIQLJt to PnsPNnPÄJant rPsR oM JOanNLs Pn ]aSuL.  

2.3.10 Trade and other payables

 LPaIPSPtPLs Mor tradL and otOLr amounts payaISL arL JarrPLd at Jost� ^OPJO Ps tOL MaPr ]aSuL oM tOL 
JonsPdLratPon to IL paPd Pn tOL MuturL Mor Noods and sLr]PJLs� ^OLtOLr or not IPSSLd to tOL Company.

2.3.11 Provisions

 7ro]PsPons arL rLJoNnPsLd ^OLn tOL Company Oas a prLsLnt SLNaS or JonstruJtP]L oISPNatPon as a 
rLsuSt oM past L]Lnts� Pt Ps proIaISL tOat an outÅo^ oM rLsourJLs LmIodyPnN LJonomPJ ILnLÄts ^PSS IL 
rLXuPrLd to sLttSL tOL oISPNatPon and a rLSPaISL LstPmatL oM tOL amount Jan IL madL. 7ro]PsPons arL 
rL]PL^Ld at LaJO rLportPnN datL and adQustLd to rLÅLJt tOL JurrLnt ILst LstPmatL.

2.3.12 Warranty obligations       
        
  ;OL Company rLJoNnPsLs tOL LstPmatLd SPaIPSPty� on an aJJruaS IasPs� to rLpaPr or rLpSaJL produJts 

undLr ^arranty at tOL rLportPnN datL� and rLJoNnPsLs tOL LstPmatLd produJt ^arranty Josts Pn tOL 
statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss ^OLn tOL saSL Ps rLJoNnPsLd.

2.3.13 Staff retirement benefits       
        
 Defined contribution plan - Provident Fund

 ;OL Company opLratLs a rLJoNnPsLd pro]PdLnt Mund Mor Pts pLrmanLnt LmpSoyLLs. ,XuaS montOSy 
JontrPIutPons arL madL to tOL -und Iy tOL Company and tOL LmpSoyLLs Pn aJJordanJL ^PtO tOL ruSLs 
oM tOL -und. ;OL Company Oas no MurtOLr paymLnt oISPNatPon onJL tOL JontrPIutPons Oa]L ILLn paPd. 
;OL JontrPIutPons madL Iy tOL Company arL rLJoNnPsLd as an LmpSoyLL ILnLÄt L_pLnsL ^OLn tOLy 
arL duL.

 Defined benefit / contribution plan - Pension Fund

 ;OL Company aSso opLratLs an appro]Ld MundLd pLnsPon sJOLmL Mor Pts pLrmanLnt LmpSoyLLs.

 ;OL LmpSoyLL pLnsPon Ps No]LrnLd Iy t^o sLts oM 9uSLs� º5L^ 9uSLs» � +LÄnLd JontrPIutPon pSan and 
º6Sd 9uSLs» � +LÄnLd ILnLÄt pSan. ;OL 5L^ 9uSLs arL appSPJaISL to aSS mLmILrs oM tOL -und ̂ PtO LMMLJt 
Mrom 1uSy �� ����. /o^L]Lr� tOL 6Sd 9uSLs JontPnuL to appSy to aSS pLrsons ^OosL LmpSoymLnt ^PtO 
tOL Company JLasLd ILMorL 1uSy �� ���� and ^Oo arL LntPtSLd to pLnsPon Mrom tOL -und. In addPtPon� 
tOL 6Sd 9uSLs aSso appSy to L_PstPnN LmpSoyLLs ^Oo Oa]L not optLd to IL No]LrnLd Iy tOL 5L^ 9uSLs. 

 In aJJordanJL ^PtO tOL 5L^ 9uSLs an aJtuarPaS IaSanJL ^as dLtLrmPnLd Iy tOL aJtuary as at 1unL 
��� ���� Pn rLspLJt oM aSS mLmILrs oM tOL -und ^Oo ^LrL Pn tOL sLr]PJL oM tOL Company as oM tOat 
datL and optLd to IL No]LrnLd Iy tOL 5L^ 9uSLs ^OPJO ^as JrLdPtLd to tOL mLmILrs» PndP]PduaS 
aJJounts. >PtO LMMLJt Mrom 1uSy ���� tOL Company Ps rLXuPrLd to maRL a Ä_Ld montOSy JontrPIutPon 
to tOL -und IasLd on tOL IasPJ saSary oM tOL LmpSoyLLs ^OPJO Ps JrLdPtLd Pnto tOL PndP]PduaS aJJount 
oM LaJO mLmILr. ;OL Company Oas no MurtOLr paymLnt oISPNatPon onJL tOLsL montOSy JontrPIutPons 
Oa]L ILLn paPd to tOL -und. 7roÄt LarnLd on tOL Pn]LstmLnts maPntaPnLd Iy tOL -und Ps aSso aSSoJatLd 
Pnto tOL PndP]PduaS aJJount oM LaJO mLmILr. 
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 ;OL pLnsPon SPaIPSPty rLJoNnPsLd Pn tOL statLmLnt oM ÄnanJPaS posPtPon Pn rLspLJt oM mLmILrs No]LrnLd 
Iy tOL 6Sd 9uSLs Ps tOL prLsLnt ]aSuL oM tOL dLÄnLd ILnLÄt oISPNatPon at tOL statLmLnt oM ÄnanJPaS 
posPtPon datL SLss tOL MaPr ]aSuL oM pSan assLts attrPIutLd to tOLsL mLmILrs. ContrPIutPons arL madL 
to Jo]Lr tOL pLnsPon oISPNatPons Pn rLspLJt oM tOL mLmILrs No]LrnLd Iy tOL 6Sd 9uSLs on tOL IasPs oM 
aJtuarPaS rLJommLndatPons.

 ;OL amount arPsPnN as a rLsuSt oM rLmLasurLmLnt Ps rLJoNnPsLd Pn tOL statLmLnt oM ÄnanJPaS posPtPon 
PmmLdPatLSy� ^PtO a JOarNL or JrLdPt to otOLr JomprLOLnsP]L PnJomL Pn tOL pLrPod Pn ^OPJO tOLy oJJur. 

 ;OL 7roQLJtLd <nPt CrLdPt MLtOod Ps usLd Mor tOL ]aSuatPon oM pLnsPon SPaIPSPty Pn rLspLJt oM mLmILrs 
No]LrnLd Iy tOL 6Sd 9uSLs as at 1unL ��� ��� � usPnN sPNnPÄJant assumptPons as statLd Pn notL �� to 
tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

2.3.14 Employees’ compensated absences

 ;OL Company aJJounts Mor JompLnsatLd aIsLnJLs on tOL IasPs oM una]aPSLd LarnLd SLa]L IaSanJL 
oM LaJO LmpSoyLL at tOL Lnd oM tOL yLar.

2.3.15 Dividend distribution and transfer between reserves

 +P]PdLnd dLJSarLd and approprPatPons to rLsLr]Ls madL suIsLXuLnt to tOL rLportPnN datL arL 
JonsPdLrLd non�adQustPnN L]Lnts and arL rLJoNnPsLd Pn tOL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts Pn tOL yLar Pn ^OPJO 
tOLy arL appro]Ld.

2.3.16 Revenue recognition

 9L]LnuL Ps rLJoNnPsLd ^OLn or as pLrMormanJL oISPNatPons arL satPsÄLd Iy transMLrrPnN JontroS oM a 
promPsLd Noods or sLr]PJL to a JustomLr undLr JontraJt.

 9Lturn on IanR dLposPts� tLrm dLposPt rLJLPpts and marR�up on ad]anJLs to suppSPLrs and JontraJtors 
arL aJJountLd Mor on an aJJruaS IasPs.

 (NLnJy JommPssPon Ps rLJoNnPsLd ^OLn sOPpmLnts arL madL Iy tOL prPnJPpaS.

 <nrLaSPsLd NaPns � SossLs arPsPnN on rL�mLasurLmLnt oM Pn]LstmLnts JSassPÄLd as ºÄnanJPaS assLts at 
MaPr ]aSuL tOrouNO proÄt or Soss» arL PnJSudLd Pn tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss Pn tOL pLrPod Pn ^OPJO 
tOLsL arPsL.

 +P]PdLnd PnJomL Ps rLJoNnPsLd ^OLn tOL rPNOt to rLJLP]L dP]PdLnd Ps LstaISPsOLd. 

 InJomL on MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs and 7aRPstan In]LstmLnt )onds �7I)s� Ps aJJruLd usPnN tOL LMMLJtP]L 
PntLrLst ratL mLtOod.

2.3.17 Foreign currency transactions and translation

 -orLPNn JurrLnJy transaJtPons arL rLJoNnPsLd or aJJountLd Mor Pn 7aRPstanP 9upLLs usPnN tOL L_JOanNL 
ratL prL]aPSPnN on tOL datL oM  tOL transaJtPon. MonLtary assLts and SPaIPSPtPLs Pn MorLPNn JurrLnJPLs arL 
transSatLd Pnto 7aRPstanP 9upLLs at tOL ratLs oM L_JOanNL prL]aPSPnN on tOL rLportPnN datL. ,_JOanNL 
NaPn � Soss on MorLPNn JurrLnJy transSatPons arL PnJSudLd Pn PnJomL � LXuPty aSonN ^PtO any rLSatLd 
OLdNL LMMLJts.

2.3.18 Functional and presentation currency

 ItLms PnJSudLd Pn tOL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts arL mLasurLd usPnN tOL JurrLnJy oM tOL prPmary LJonomPJ 
Ln]PronmLnt Pn ^OPJO tOL Company opLratLs. ;OL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts arL prLsLntLd Pn 7aRPstanP 
9upLLs� ^OPJO Ps tOL Company»s MunJtPonaS and prLsLntatPon JurrLnJy.

2.3.19 Accounting estimates and judgments       
        
 ;OL prLparatPon oM ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts Pn JonMormPty ^PtO aJJountPnN and rLportPnN standards 

as appSPJaISL Pn 7aRPstan rLXuPrLs tOL usL oM JLrtaPn JrPtPJaS aJJountPnN LstPmatLs. It aSso rLXuPrLs 
manaNLmLnt to L_LrJPsL Pts QudNmLnt Pn tOL proJLss oM appSyPnN tOL Company»s aJJountPnN poSPJPLs. 
,stPmatLs and QudNmLnts arL JontPnuaSSy L]aSuatLd and arL IasLd on OPstorPJaS L_pLrPLnJL� PnJSudPnN 
L_pLJtatPon oM MuturL L]Lnts tOat arL ILSPL]Ld to IL rLasonaISL undLr tOL JPrJumstanJLs. ;OL arLas 
^OLrL ]arPous assumptPons and LstPmatLs arL sPNnPÄJant to tOL Company»s ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts or 
^OLrL QudNmLnt ^as L_LrJPsLd Pn appSPJatPon oM aJJountPnN poSPJPLs arL as MoSSo^s!

 i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (notes 2.3.1 and 3.2)

  ;OL Company rL]PL^s tOL usLMuS SP]Ls oM Ä_Ld assLts on a rLNuSar IasPs. (ny JOanNL Pn LstPmatLs 
Pn MuturL yLars mPNOt aMMLJt tOL JarryPnN amounts oM rLspLJtP]L PtLms oM opLratPnN Ä_Ld assLts ^PtO 
a JorrLspondPnN LMMLJt on tOL dLprLJPatPon JOarNL and PmpaPrmLnt.

 ii) Provision for slow moving stores and spares (notes 2.3.2 and 7)

  ;OL Company L_LrJPsLs QudNmLnt and maRLs pro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN storLs and sparLs IasLd 
on tOLPr MuturL usaIPSPty. 

 iii) Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade (notes 2.3.3 and 8)

  ;OL Company L_LrJPsLs QudNmLnt and maRLs pro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL IasLd on 
tOLPr MuturL usaIPSPty and rLJo]LraISL ]aSuL. 

 iv) Provision for doubtful debts (notes 2.3.6 and 9)

  ;OL Company maRLs pro]PsPon Mor douItMuS dLIts usPnN tOL sPmpSPÄLd approaJO on tOL IasPs oM 
JOanNLs Pn JrLdPt rPsR.

 v) Classification and valuation of investments (notes 2.3.4 and 14)

  ;OL Company taRLs Pnto aJJount Pts PntLntPon Mor JSassPÄJatPon oM Pn]LstmLnts as mLntPonLd Pn 
notL �.�.�.� at tOL tPmL oM purJOasL. ;OL ]aSuatPon oM Pn]LstmLnts Ps donL IasLd on tOL JrPtLrPa 
mLntPonLd Pn tOL samL notL.

 vi) Income taxes (notes 2.3.8 and 33)

  ;OL Company taRLs Pnto aJJount tOL JurrLnt PnJomL ta_ Sa^ and tOL dLJPsPons taRLn Iy tOL 
appLSSatL autOorPtPLs. InstanJLs ^OLrL tOL Company»s ]PL^ dPMMLrs Mrom tOL ]PL^ taRLn Iy tOL 
InJomL ;a_ +LpartmLnt at tOL assLssmLnt staNL and ^OLrL tOL Company JonsPdLrs tOat Pts ]PL^s 
on tOL PtLms oM matLrPaS naturL Ps Pn aJJordanJL ^PtO tOL Sa �̂ tOL amounts arL sOo^n as JontPnNLnt 
SPaIPSPtPLs. +LMLrrLd ta_ assLt Ps rLJoNnPsLd onSy to tOL L_tLnt tOat Pt Ps proIaISL tOat MuturL ta_aISL 
proÄts ^PSS IL a]aPSaISL aNaPnst ^OPJO tOL assLt may IL utPSPsLd.
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 vii) Warranty obligations (notes 2.3.12 and 20.4)

  ;OL Company L_LrJPsLs proMLssPonaS QudNmLnt� IasLd on tOL OPstory oM ̂ arranty JSaPms LntLrtaPnLd� 
numILr oM Jars LSPNPISL Mor ^arranty and Pts PntLrnaS rPsR assLssmLnt ^OPSL maRPnN assLssmLnt Pn 
rLspLJt oM tOL ^arranty oISPNatPons.

 viii) Staff retirement benefits (notes 2.3.13 and 22)

  ;OL Company Oas post rLtPrLmLnt ILnLÄt oISPNatPons� ^OPJO arL dLtLrmPnLd tOrouNO aJtuarPaS 
]aSuatPons as JarrPLd out Iy an PndLpLndLnt aJtuary usPnN ]arPous assumptPons as dPsJSosLd Pn 
notL �� to tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

  ix) Contingencies and commitments (note 24)

  ;OL Company usLs assumptPons and LstPmatLs Pn dPsJSosurL and assLssmLnt oM pro]PsPon Mor 
JontPnNLnJPLs as dPsJSosLd Pn notL ��.

2.3.20 Segment reporting 

 ;OL Company usLs ºmanaNLmLnt approaJO» Mor sLNmLnt rLportPnN� undLr ̂ OPJO sLNmLnt PnMormatPon 
Ps rLXuPrLd to IL prLsLntLd on tOL samL IasPs as tOat usLd Mor PntLrnaS rLportPnN purposLs. 6pLratPnN 
sLNmLnts Oa]L ILLn dLtLrmPnLd and prLsLntLd Pn a mannLr JonsPstLnt ^PtO tOL PntLrnaS rLportPnN 
pro]PdLd to tOL JOPLM opLratPnN dLJPsPon�maRLr. ;OL Company Oas dLtLrmPnLd opLratPnN sLNmLnts 
on tOL IasPs oM IusPnLss aJtP]PtPLs P.L. manuMaJturPnN and tradPnN aJtP]PtPLs. :LNmLnt assLts Oa]L not 
ILLn dPsJSosLd Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts as tOLsL arL not rLportLd to tOL JOPLM opLratPnN dLJPsPon�
maRLr on a rLNuSar IasPs.

2.3.21 Deferred revenue

 (mount rLJLP]Ld on aJJount oM saSL oM L_tLndLd ^arranty sLr]PJLs aNaPnst ]LOPJSLs Ps rLJoNnPsLd 
PnPtPaSSy as dLMLrrLd rL]LnuL and JrLdPtLd to tOL statLmLnt oM proÄt or Soss Pn tOL rLSL]ant pLrPod 
Jo]LrLd Iy tOL ^arranty.

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT & INTANGIBLE ASSETS

7ropLrty� pSant and LXuPpmLnt �.� 13,804,509  ��������  
IntanNPISL assLts �.�  93,524  ������ 

13,898,033  ��������  
3.1 Property, plant and equipment

;anNPISL opLratPnN assLts �.� 13,360,788  �� ������
CapPtaS ^orR�Pn�proNrLss �.�  443,721  � ����� 

13,804,509  ��������  
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3.3 LLasLOoSd Sand� on ^OPJO tOL MaJtory IuPSdPnN� pSant and ^arLOousL arL sPtuatLd� Ps sprLad aJross an 
arLa oM ���.� aJrLs. It Ps SoJatLd at 7Sot 5o. 5>A���7�� 
 >�������� 7ort 8asPm IndustrPaS ,statL� )Pn 
8asPm� 2araJOP.

3.4 ;OL dLprLJPatPon JOarNL Mor tOL yLar Oas ILLn aSSoJatLd as MoSSo^s!

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

Cost oM saSLs � o^n manuMaJturLd ��  1,986,409  ��������� 
+PstrPIutPon L_pLnsLs ��  39,842  ������ 
(dmPnPstratP]L L_pLnsLs ��  64,787  ������ 

 2,091,038  ��� ����� 

3.5 7artPJuSars oM tanNPISL opLratPnN assLts Oa]PnN a nLt IooR ]aSuL L_JLLdPnN 9s ������� dPsposLd oMM 
durPnN tOL yLar arL as MoSSo^s!

7artPJuSars Cost
(JJumuSatLd 
dLprLJPatPon

5Lt IooR 
]aSuL

:aSL proJLLds �
rLJLP]aISL Mrom 

saSL oM opLratPnN 
Ä_Ld assLts

.aPn � �Soss� ModL oM dPsposaS 7artPJuSars oM IuyLr

����������������������������������9upLLs Pn ���������������������������������������

Motor ]LOPJSLs

 ���    �������  ����   �����   �� )PddPnN Mr. MoOamamd (rPM 2Oan � 2araJOP

 ����   ��� �  �����  �����  � � ��do�� Mr. MuOammad MuaammPS � 2araJOP

 ����   ��� �  �����  ����   ��  ��do�� Mr. MuOammad MuaammPS � 2araJOP

 ����   �������  �����  �� ��  ��� ��do�� Mr. :yLd @asPr (OmLd � 2araJOP

 �� �   ����� �  ���  �����  ��� � ��do�� Mr. MuOammad MuaammPS � 2araJOP

 �� ��  �����  �����  �����  ����� ��do�� Mr. Maaa :aSLLm � 2araJOP

 ���    �������  ���    �����  ����� ��do�� M�s. (uNmLntLJO )usPnLss :oSutPon � 2araJOP

 ���    �������  �� ��  �����  ����� ��do�� M�s. ;oyota CLntraS Motors � 2araJOP

 ����   �����  �����  �����  ��� ��do�� M�s. (uNmLntLJO )usPnLss :oSutPon � 2araJOP

 ����   �����  �����  �����  ��� � ��do�� Mr. MuOammad @amPn � 2araJOP

 ����   �� ��  �����  �����  ��  ��do�� M�s. (uNmLntLJO )usPnLss :oSutPon � 2araJOP

 �����  �����  �����  ��� �  �� ,mpSoyLL :JOLmL Mr. (aam 2Oan �,_LJutP]L�

 ����   �����  ����   �� ��  ��� ��do�� Mr. MuOammad (sSam �,_LJutP]L�

 ��� �  �����  �����  �����  ��� ��do�� Mr. MuOammad 9aÄXuL �,mpSoyLL�

 �����  �����  �����  ����   �� ��do�� Mr. (tPM (OmLd �,_LJutP]L�

 ��� �  �� ��    �  �����  ��� ��do�� Mr. 9LOan (OmLd 2Oan �,mpSoyLL�

 ��� �  �����   ��  �����   � ��do�� Mr. :OaOaI .OourP �,mpSoyLL�

 ��� �  �� ��  ��� �  �����  ��� ��do�� Mr. 2asOPM (ROSaX �,_LJutP]L�

 �����  �����  �����  �����  �� ��do�� Mr. <mLr -arooX �,mpSoyLL�

 ����   �����  ���  ���  ��� ��do�� Mr. 2amran 2Oan �,_LJutP]L�

 ��� �  �����   ��  �����  ��� ��do�� Mr. (IduS 9aMay �,_LJutP]L�

 ��� �  �� ��    �  �����  ��� ��do�� Mr. -aOad IMtPROar �,_LJutP]L�

6tOLrs
ItLms Oa]PnN 
nLt IooR ]aSuL 
oM SLss tOan 9s 
������� LaJO  ������   ���������  �����  ������  � ���� =arPous =arPous

2019  164,132  (122,724)  41,408  70,797  29,389 

����  ����� �  ��� �� ��  ������  �������  ������ 
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5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

3.6 Capital work-in-progress

LLasLOoSd Land �.�.�  81,000  �   
CP]PS ^orRs  2,387  ������ 
7Sant� maJOPnLry� tooSs and LXuPpmLnt  351,940  ������� 
ComputLr and rLSatLd aJJLssorPLs  8,394  ����� 

 443,721  � ����� 

3.6.1 ;OPs rLprLsLnts paymLnt madL Pn rLspLJt oM Sand mLasurPnN � aJrLs� SoJatLd at >�� � 7ort 8asPm 
IndustrPaS ,statL� 2araJOP. ;OL SLNaS MormaSPtPLs Mor tOL transMLr oM tOL tPtSL oM Sand Pn namL oM tOL Company 
arL Pn proJLss and ^PSS IL ÄnaSPsLd Pn duL JoursL.

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

3.7 Movement in capital work-in-progress

6pLnPnN IaSanJL  291,468  ��������� 
(ddPtPons durPnN tOL yLar  8,522,720  ��������� 
;ransMLrrLd to opLratPnN Ä_Ld assLts (8,370,467)  ����� �����
CSosPnN IaSanJL  443,721  � ����� 

4 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good
Loans to LmpSoyLLs � sLJurLd

,_LJutP]Ls �.�  31,003  ������ 
6tOLrs  19,949   ���� 

�.�  50,952  ������ 
(d]anJLs to suppSPLrs � unsLJurLd  -    ������ 

 50,952  ������ 
Less: Recoverable within one year; shown under current assets
Loans duL Mrom � sLJurLd

,_LJutP]Ls ��  21,853  � ���� 
,mpSoyLLs ��  13,193  ����  

 35,046  ��� �� 
 15,906  ������ 

4.1 ;OLsL rLprLsLnt OousL IuPSdPnN and pLrsonaS Soans NrantLd to L_LJutP]Ls and otOLr LmpSoyLLs. ;OLsL 
arL NrantLd Pn aJJordanJL ^PtO tOL tLrms oM tOLPr LmpSoymLnt and arL sLJurLd aNaPnst tOLPr IaSanJLs 
^PtO tOL 7ro]PdLnt -und. ;OL Soans arL rLpayaISL o]Lr a pLrPod oM �� to �� montOs. /ousL IuPSdPnN and 
pLrsonaS Soans to manaNLmLnt LmpSoyLLs Jarry PntLrLst at tOL ratL oM �.��� to �.��� �����! �.��� to 
�.���� pLr annum. 5on�manaNLmLnt LmpSoyLLs arL LntPtSLd to pLrsonaS Soans ^OPJO Jarry no PntLrLst 
as pLr tOL appro]Ld Soan poSPJy.

4.2 ;OLsL PnJSudL Soan� Pn L_JLss oM 9s � mPSSPon� to a RLy manaNLmLnt pLrsonnLS namLd Mr. MuOammad 
(rPM. ;OL ma_Pmum aNNrLNatL amount oM suJO Soans outstandPnN at tOL Lnd oM any montO durPnN tOL yLar 
^as 9s �.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ��.��� mPSSPon�.

2019 ����
5 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS �������9upLLs Pn º����������

+LposPts
<tPSPtPLs  7,450  ����� 
6tOLrs  3,679  ��  � 

 11,129   ���� 

6 DEFERRED TAXATION - net 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

Deferred tax liability arising on taxable temporary differences:
In rLspLJt oM rL]aSuatPon oM dLrP]atP]Ls and unrLaSPsLd NaPn on mutuaS Munds  -    ��������
+uL to aJJLSLratLd ta_ dLprLJPatPon  (526,033)  �   

Deferred tax asset arising on deductible temporary differences:
In rLspLJt oM pro]PsPons Mor sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL� storLs 

and sparLs and otOLr pro]PsPons  104,531  ������ 
In rLspLJt oM rL]aSuatPon oM dLrP]atP]Ls and unrLaSPsLd NaPn on mutuaS Munds  (3,188)  �   
+uL to aJJLSLratLd ta_ dLprLJPatPon  -    ����� 

Deferred tax (liability) / asset - net  (424,690)  �����  

5otL 2019 ����
7 STORES AND SPARES �������9upLLs Pn º����������

:torLs  310,569  ������� 
:parLs  574,924  ������� 

 885,493  ������� 
LLss! 7ro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN storLs and sparLs  341,488  ������� 

 544,005  ������� 
8 STOCK-IN-TRADE

In hand

Manufacturing stock
9a^ matLrPaS and JomponLnts  6,307,657  ���� ���� 
LLss! 7ro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL  38,181  ������ 

�.�  6,269,476  ���� ���� 

>orR�Pn�proJLss  683,469  ������  

-PnPsOLd Noods �]LOPJSLs ¶ o^n manuMaJturLd� �.�  117,347  ������  
LLss! 7ro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL  1,162  ��� 

 7,069,130  ���� ���� 
Trading stock

=LOPJSLs �.�  924,741  ������ �  
LLss! 7ro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL  110,038  ����� 

 814,703  ������ �� 

:parL parts �.�  486,621  ������� 
:pLJPaS sLr]PJL tooSs and puISPJatPons  8,036  ����  
LLss! 7ro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL  84,635  ������ 

 410,022  ������� 
In transit

9a^ matLrPaS � manuMaJturPnN stoJR  4,903,060  ��������� 
;radPnN stoJR  363,478  ����� � 

13,560,393 ���������� 

8.1 ;OPs rLprLsLnts tOL nLt amount oM ra^ matLrPaS and JomponLnts aMtLr rLJordPnN ^rPtL oMMs amountPnN to 
9s �.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ��.��� mPSSPon�. 

8.2 ;OLsL PnJSudL ]LOPJSLs amountPnN to 9s ���.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s  ��.��� mPSSPon� OLSd ^PtO tOL 
Company�s autOorPsLd dLaSLrs.

8.3 ;OPs PnJSudLs an amount oM 9s 5PS mPSSPon �����! 9s ��. �  mPSSPon� rLprLsLntPnN stoJR�Pn�tradL oM motor oPS.
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2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

9 TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED

Considered good
.o]LrnmLnt orNanPsatPons  1,562,331  ������� 
6tOLrs  985,584  ����� � 

 2,547,915  ��������� 
Considered doubtful  978  �   

 2,548,893  ��������� 
LLss! 7ro]PsPon Mor douItMuS dLIts  (978)  �   

 2,547,915  ��������� 

9.1 (s at 1unL ��� ��� � 9s ���.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ���.��� mPSSPon� arL o]LrduL Iut not PmpaPrLd Pn 
rLspLJt oM tradL dLIts. ;OLsL IaSanJLs rLSatL to ]arPous JustomLrs� prPmarPSy No]LrnmLnt orNanPsatPons� 
Mor ^Oom tOLrL Ps no rLJLnt OPstory oM dLMauSt. ;OL aNLPnN anaSysPs oM tOLsL tradL dLIts Ps as MoSSo^s!

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

� to � montOs  323,978  ������ 
MorL tOan � montOs  296   ����� 

 324,274  ������� 
10 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current portion of long-term loans and advances - considered good
Loans duL Mrom � sLJurLd

,_LJutP]Ls �  21,853  � ���� 
,mpSoyLLs �  13,193  ����  

 35,046  ��� �� 
Advances – considered good

:uppSPLrs and JontraJtors � unsLJurLd  155,761  �����  
,mpSoyLLs � unsLJurLd  19,672  ������ 
CoSSLJtor oM Customs � sLJurLd ��.�  1,400,860  ��� ����� 
MarNPns OLSd ^PtO IanRs aNaPnst Pmports � sLJurLd ��.�  2,116,687  ��������� 

 3,692,980  ��������� 

 3,728,026  ��������� 

10.1 ;OPs rLprLsLnts ad]anJL amount paPd to tOL CoSSLJtor oM Customs Pn rLspLJt oM tOL Pmports oM stoJR�
Pn�tradL. (n amount oM 9s  ��.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ���� .��� mPSSPon� ^as suIsLXuLntSy adQustLd Pn 
rLspLJt oM PmportLd Noods rLJLP]Ld.

10.2 ;OPs rLprLsLnts JasO OLSd ^PtO ]arPous IanRs as a rLNuSatory rLXuPrLmLnt aNaPnst SLttLrs oM JrLdPt 
Mor Pmport oM PtLms oM stoJR�Pn�tradL. (n amount oM 9s �����.��  mPSSPon �����! 9s �����.��� � ^as  
suIsLXuLntSy sLttSLd on rLJLPpt oM Pn]oPJLs and doJumLnts rLSatPnN to tOL PmportLd Noods at tOL Lnd 
oM tOL yLar. ;OPs PnJSudLs an amount oM 9s 5PS �����! 9s ���.��� mPSSPon� OLSd ^PtO /aIPI MLtropoSPtan 
)anR LPmPtLd � a rLSatLd party� at tOL Lnd oM tOL yLar.

 5otL 2019 ����
11 SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS �������9upLLs Pn º����������

9Lnt  7,473  ����� 
InsuranJL ��.�  10,560   ���� 
6tOLrs  13,913  ����� 

 31,946  �����  

11.1 ;OPs PnJSudLs an amount oM 9s �.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s �.��� mPSSPon� paPd to /aIPI InsuranJL Company 
LPmPtLd � a rLSatLd party.

 5otL 2019 ����
12 ACCRUED RETURN �������9upLLs Pn º����������

(JJruLd rLturn on ;Lrm +LposPt 9LJLPpts �;+9s� 
and IanR dLposPts ��.�  34,846  ������� 

12.1 ;OPs PnJSudLs an amount oM 9s ��.��  mPSSPon �����! 9s ��. �� mPSSPon� rLJLP]aISL Mrom /aIPI MLtropoSPtan 
)anR LPmPtLd � a rLSatLd party.

 5otL 2019 ����
13 OTHER RECEIVABLES �������9upLLs Pn º����������

Considered good
>arranty JSaPms and otOLr rLJLP]aISLs duL Mrom rLSatLd

partPLs � ;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon and Pts aMÄSPatLs ��.�  32,204  ������ 
(NLnJy JommPssPon � rLJLP]aISL Mrom a rLSatLd party � 

;oyota ;susOo (sPa 7aJPÄJ 7;,. LPmPtLd ��.�  361,615  ������� 
>arranty JSaPms duL Mrom SoJaS ]Lndors  9,260  ����� 
,arnLst monLy  42,700  ������ 
InsuranJL JSaPms rLJLP]aISL Mrom a rLSatLd party � /aIPI 

InsuranJL Company LPmPtLd ��.�  53,055  ������ 
>orRLrs» 7roÄt 7artPJPpatPon -und ��.�  7,964  ����  
9LJLP]aISL aNaPnst saSL oM opLratPnN Ä_Ld assLts  31,351  � ���� 
:aSLs ta_ rLMundaISL � nLt  2,548,920  �   
5Lt unrLaSPsLd NaPn on rL]aSuatPon oM MorLPNn L_JOanNL

JontraJts � MaPr ]aSuL OLdNL  10,994  ������ 
6tOLrs  11,486  ������ 

 3,109,549  ������� 

13.1 ;OL ma_Pmum aNNrLNatL amount duL at tOL Lnd oM any montO durPnN tOL yLar ^as 9s ��.��� mPSSPon 
�����! 9s ��.��� mPSSPon�.

13.2 ;OL ma_Pmum aNNrLNatL amount duL at tOL Lnd oM any montO durPnN tOL yLar ^as 9s ���.��� mPSSPon 
�����! 9s ���.��� mPSSPon�.

13.3 ;OL ma_Pmum aNNrLNatL amount duL at tOL Lnd oM any montO durPnN tOL yLar ^as 9s ��.��� mPSSPon 
�����! 9s ��.��� mPSSPon�.

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

13.4 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

6pLnPnN IaSanJL  7,079  ������ 
(SSoJatPon Mor tOL yLar �� (1,019,115) �����������

(1,012,036) ���� �� ���
(mount paPd durPnN tOL yLar  1,020,000  ��������� 
CSosPnN IaSanJL  7,964  ����  

14 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Amortised cost
;Lrm +LposPt 9LJLPpts �;+9s� ��.� 19,000,000 ���������� 

At fair value through profit or loss
.o]LrnmLnt sLJurPtPLs � MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs ��.�  4,402,464  � 
LPstLd mutuaS Mund unPts ��.�  -     ����� �� 

 4,402,464   ����� �� 
Held to maturity

.o]LrnmLnt sLJurPtPLs � MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs ��.�  -   ��� � ���� 

23,402,464 ���������� 
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14.1 (s at 1unL ��� ��� � tOL Company OoSds tLrm dLposPt rLJLPpts JarryPnN proÄt ratLs ranNPnN ILt^LLn 
��.��� to ��� pLr annum �����! �.��� to �.��� pLr annum�. ;OL tLrm dLposPt rLJLPpts arL duL to 
maturL ma_Pmum Iy 1uSy � � ��� . )aSanJLs Pn tLrm dLposPt rLJLPpts PnJSudL an amount oM 9s ����� 
mPSSPon �����! 9s ������ mPSSPon�� OLSd ^PtO /aIPI MLtropoSPtan )anR LPmPtLd � a rLSatLd party.

14.2 ;OLsL sLJurPtPLs Oa]L ]aryPnN maturPtPLs ranNPnN Mrom (uNust ��� ���  to :LptLmILr ��� ��� . ;OL 
yPLSd on tOLsL sLJurPtPLs Ps ��.��� to ��.��� pLr annum  �����! �.��� to �.��� pLr annum�.

14.3 ;OLsL unPts arL OLSd ^PtO tOL MoSSo^PnN mutuaS Munds!
2019 ����

�������9upLLs Pn º����������
Name of Fund
()L CasO -und  - ���� ����
(SMaSaO ./7MonLy MarRLt -und  - �������
()L .o]LrnmLnt :LJurPtPLs -und  - �������
/)L CasO -und  - ���������
/)L MonLy MarRLt -und  - �� ����
<)L LPXuPdPty 7Sus -und  - ���������
5(-( MonLy MarRLt -und  - ���� ����
5(-( .o]LrnmLnt :LJurPtPLs LPXuPd -und  - �������
MC) CasO ManaNLmLnt 6ptPmPaLr  - ���������
-Prst /aIPI CasO -und  - ���� ��

-  ����� ��

15 TAXATION - net

;OL PnJomL ta_ assLssmLnts oM tOL Company Oa]L ILLn ÄnaSPsLd Iy tOL InJomL ;a_ +LpartmLnt or 
dLLmLd to IL assLssLd undLr sLJtPon ��� oM tOL InJomL ;a_ 6rdPnanJL� ���� up to tOL yLar LndLd 
1unL ��� ���� �P.L ;@ �����.

5otL 2019 ����
16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES �������9upLLs Pn º����������

CasO Pn Oand  5,513  ����� 

)aSanJLs OLSd ^PtO IanRs Pn!
JurrLnt aJJounts  338,425  ������� 
dLposPt aJJounts ��.�  2,937,844  ������� � 

 3,276,269  ��� �� �� 

 3,281,782  ��������� 

16.1 ;OLsL PnJSudL an amount oM 9s �����.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s �����.��� mPSSPon�� OLSd ^PtO /aIPI 
MLtropoSPtan )anR LPmPtLd � a rLSatLd party.

17 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2019 ���� 2019 ����
�5umILr oM sOarLs� �������9upLLs Pn º����������

 78,600,000 ���������� 6rdPnary sOarLs oM 9s �� LaJO MuSSy paPd Pn JasO  786,000  ������� 

17.1 6rdPnary sOarLs oM tOL Company OLSd Iy rLSatLd partPLs as at tOL yLar Lnd arL as 
MoSSo^s!

2019 ����
5otL �5umILr oM sOarLs�

;oyota Motor CorporatPon
7LrJLntaNL oM OoSdPnN ��� �����! ��.���� ��.�.�  19,650,000  � �������� 

;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon
7LrJLntaNL oM OoSdPnN ��.�� �����! ��.���� ��.�.�  9,825,000   �������� 

/aIPI InsuranJL Company LPmPtLd
7LrJLntaNL oM OoSdPnN �.��� �����! �.����  43,015  ������ 

;OaS LPmPtLd
7LrJLntaNL oM OoSdPnN �.���� �����! �.����  4,890,000  ��� ����� 

MoOamLdaSP /aIPI >LSMarL ;rust
7LrJLntaNL oM OoSdPnN �.��� �����! �.����  5,000  ����� 

17.1.1 ;oyota Motor CorporatPon �;MC� Ps PnJorporatLd Pn 1apan. ;OL rLNPstLrLd addrLss oM ;MC Ps � ;oyota�
COo� ;oyota CPty� (PJOP 7rLMLJturL ��������� 1apan. ;MC Ps prPmarPSy LnNaNLd Pn tOL produJtPon and 
saSL oM automoIPSLs. ;OL 7rLsPdLnt oM ;MC Ps Mr. (RPo ;oyoda. ;OL SatLst a]aPSaISL audPtLd JonsoSPdatLd 
ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts oM ;MC arL Mor tOL yLar LndLd MarJO ��� ��� . ;OL audPtors Oa]L L_prLssLd an 
unmodPÄLd opPnPon on tOLsL JonsoSPdatLd ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

17.1.2 ;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon �;;C� Ps PnJorporatLd Pn 1apan. ;OL rLNPstLrLd addrLss oM ;;C Ps  ��� MLPLRP 
��COomL� 5aRamura�Ru� 5aNoya ��������� 1apan. ;;C Ps prPmarPSy LnNaNLd Pn produJtPon and saSL oM 
automoIPSLs and pro]PsPon oM rLSatLd sLr]PJLs. ;OL 7rLsPdLnt and COPLM ,_LJutP]L 6MÄJLr oM ;;C Ps Mr. 
IJOPro 2asOPtanP. ;OL SatLst a]aPSaISL audPtLd JonsoSPdatLd ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts oM ;;C arL Mor tOL yLar 
LndLd MarJO ��� ��� . ;OL audPtors Oa]L L_prLssLd an unmodPÄLd opPnPon on tOLsL JonsoSPdatLd 
ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

5otL 2019 ����
18 RESERVES �������9upLLs Pn º����������

Capital reserve
:OarL prLmPum ��.�  196,500  � ����� 

Revenue reserves
.LnLraS rLsLr]L

)aSanJL IrouNOt Mor^ard  27,451,050  ���������� 
;ransMLrrLd Mrom unapproprPatLd proÄt  4,500,000  ��������� 

 31,951,050  ���������� 

<napproprPatLd proÄt  7,111,759  ������� � 
 39,259,309  ��� ������ 

18.1 ;OPs rLsLr]L Jan IL utPSPsLd Iy tOL Company onSy Mor tOL purposLs spLJPÄLd Pn sLJtPon �� oM tOL 
CompanPLs (Jt� ����.

5otL 2019 ����
19 LONG TERM LOAN �������9upLLs Pn º����������

 Loan undLr ÄnanJPnN sJOLmL � .�  80,540  �   

19.1 ;OPs rLprLsLnts Soan oItaPnLd undLr tOL :)7 ÄnanJPnN sJOLmL Mor Pn]LstmLnt Pn 7Sant and MaJOPnLry 
Mor rLnL^aISL LnLrNy proQLJts. (t tOL yLar Lnd� tOL Company Oas dra^n 9s ��.��� mPSSPon and a sum oM 
9s ���.��� mPSSPon Ps MurtOLr a]aPSaISL undLr tOL sJOLmL. ;OL ÄnanJPnN aSrLady madL JarrPLs marR�up at 
tOL ratL oM �.��� pLr annum and Ps sLJurLd Iy ^ay oM OypotOLJatPon JOarNL o]Lr pSant and maJOPnLry 
aNaPnst ^OPJO tOL MaJPSPty Ps a]aPSaISL. ;OL Soan Ps rLpayaISL on a XuartLrSy IasPs Pn �� LXuaS PnstaSSmLnts 
JommLnJPnN Mrom :LptLmILr ��� ����.
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2019
19.2  -oSSo^PnN Ps tOL mo]LmLnt Pn SonN tLrm ÄnanJPnN! �9upLLs Pn º����

6pLnPnN IaSanJL as at 1uSy �� ����  -   
+PsIursLmLnts  80,540 
9LpaymLnts  -   
(mortPsatPon oM arranNLmLnt MLL  -   
CSosPnN IaSanJL as at 1unL ��  80,540 

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

20 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND PROVISIONS

;radL JrLdPtors
(ssoJPatLd undLrtaRPnNs � rLSatLd partPLs  190,530  � ��  � 
6tOLrs  2,447,067  �� ������ 

)PSSs payaISL to a rLSatLd partPLs ��.�  3,034,996  ��� ����� 
(JJruLd SPaIPSPtPLs ��.�  4,974,351  �� ������ 
9oyaSty payaISL to assoJPatLd undLrtaRPnNs � rLSatLd partPLs ��.�  889,713  ������� 
+LposPts Mrom dLaSLrs  239,550  ������� 
9LtLntPon monLy  71,550  ������ 
>orRLrs» >LSMarL -und  439,401  ������� 
;LJOnPJaS MLL  4,081  ����� 
>arranty oISPNatPons ��.�  1,443,982  ��������� 
7ayaISL to dLaSLrs  1,242,599   ������ 
7ayaISL to JustomLrs  148,674  ����� � 
MarR�up on ad]anJLs rLJLP]Ld Mrom JustomLrs  13,658  ����  � 
MarRup on LonN tLrm Soan  72  �   
:aSLs ta_ ¶ nLt  -    ��������� 
>PtOOoSdPnN PnJomL ta_ payaISL  215,427  �� ���� 
7ayaISL to 7LnsPon -und ¶ nLt ��.�  9,689   ���� 
6tOLr No]LrnmLnt SL]PLs payaISL  584,863  ������� 

 15,950,203  ���������� 

20.1 ;OPs rLprLsLnts amounts payaISL to tOL MoSSo^PnN rLSatLd partPLs!

;oyota ;susOo (sPa 7aJPÄJ 7;,. LPmPtLd  3,002,907  ��������� 
;oyota Motor (sPa 7aJÄJ 7;,. LPmPtLd  31,639  �� 
+aPOatsu Motor Company LPmPtLd  450  �   
;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon  -    ����� 
;oyotsu MaJOPnLry CorporatPon  -    ����� 

20.2 ;OLsL PnJSudL an amount oM 9s ���.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ��. �� mPSSPon� payaISL to tOL rLSatLd partPLs.

20.3 ;OLsL rLprLsLnt PntLrLst MrLL dLposPts rLJLP]Ld Mrom dLaSLrs Pn aJJordanJL ^PtO tOL tLrms oM tOL 
dLaSLrsOPp aNrLLmLnts. ;OLsL dLposPts Oa]L ILLn utPSPsLd Mor tOL purposL oM tOL Company�s IusPnLss� 
IasLd on aNrLLmLnt ^PtO dLaSLrs.

5otL 2019 ����
20.4 Warranty obligations �������9upLLs Pn º����������

6pLnPnN IaSanJL  1,237,520  ������ �� 
COarNL Mor tOL yLar ��  297,136  ������� 

 1,534,656  ��������� 
<tPSPsatPon durPnN tOL yLar  (90,674)  � ������
CSosPnN IaSanJL  1,443,982  ��������� 

20.5 Payable to pension Fund – net

7ayaISL to 7LnsPon -und � +LÄnLd )LnLÄt 7San ��.�  9,689   ���� 
 9,689   ���� 

21 ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND DEALERS

;OLsL rLprLsLnt ad]anJLs rLJLP]Ld Iy tOL Company Mrom JustomLrs and dLaSLrs Pn rLspLJt oM saSL oM 
]LOPJSLs and parts.

22 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - Approved Pension Fund

(s mLntPonLd Pn notL �.�.��� tOL Company opLratLs an appro]Ld pLnsPon Mund Mor Pts pLrmanLnt 
LmpSoyLLs ^Oo arL No]LrnLd undLr tOL 6Sd 9uSLs. ;OL SatLst aJtuarPaS ]aSuatPon oM tOL Company�s 
pLnsPon Mund� IasLd on 7roQLJtLd <nPt CrLdPt (JtuarPaS Cost MLtOod� ^as JarrPLd out as at 1unL ��� 
��� . ;OL pLnsPon Mund L_posLs tOL Company to tOL MoSSo^PnN rPsRs!

Mortality risks
;OL rPsR tOat tOL aJtuaS mortaSPty ratLs arL dPMMLrLnt. ;OL LMMLJt dLpLnds on tOL ILnLÄJParPLs» sLr]PJL � 
aNL dPstrPIutPon and tOL ILnLÄt.

Investment risks
;OL rPsR oM tOL Pn]LstmLnts undLrpLrMormPnN and not ILPnN suMÄJPLnt to mLLt tOL SPaIPSPtPLs.

Final salary risks
;OL rPsR tOat tOL ÄnaS saSarPLs at tOL tPmL oM JLssatPon oM sLr]PJL arL NrLatLr tOan ^Oat ^as assumLd. 
:PnJL tOL ILnLÄt Ps JaSJuSatLd on tOL IasPs oM ÄnaS saSary oM an LmpSoyLL� tOL amount oM tOL ILnLÄt 
PnJrLasLs ^PtO any PnJrLasL Pn tOL ÄnaS saSary.

Withdrawal risks
;OL rPsR oM OPNOLr or So^Lr ^PtOdra^aSs tOan assumLd. ;OL ÄnaS LMMLJt JouSd No LPtOLr ^ay dLpLndPnN 
on tOL ILnLÄJParPLs» sLr]PJL � aNL dPstrPIutPon and tOL ILnLÄts payaISL.

;OL Company Oas rLJoNnPsLd tOL MoSSo^PnN amounts Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts Mor Pts oISPNatPons 
to^ards tOL rLspLJtP]L mLmILrs.

22.1 Principal actuarial assumptions  2019  ���� 
�� pLr annum�

+PsJount MaJtor usLd 14.50 ��.��
,_pLJtLd ratL oM saSary PnJrLasL 13.50 ��.��
,_pLJtLd ratL oM rLturn on pSan assLts 13.90 ��. �
,_pLJtLd ratL oM PnJrLasL Pn Son^N tLrm pLnsPon 7.50 �.��

5otL 2019 ����
22.2 The amounts recognised in the statement of financial ���������9upLLs Pn º������������

position are determined as follows:

7rLsLnt ]aSuL oM dLÄnLd ILnLÄt oISPNatPon ��.�  42,726  ������ 
-aPr ]aSuL oM pSan assLts ��.� 
 ��.�  (33,037)  ��������

 9,689   ���� 

22.3 Plan assets consist of the following:

2019 ����
Quoted Non-Quoted 8uotLd 5on�8uotLd

����������������������������� 9upLLs ���� ��������������������������

)aSanJLs ^PtO IanRs - 3,192 � �����
,XuPty PnstrumLnts 7,221 - ����� �
+LIt PnstrumLnts � .o]LrnmLnt - 20,030 � ���� �
6tOLrs - 2,594 � ���

7,221 25,816 ����� ������
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22.4 The movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:

 2019 
Present 
value of 
defined 
benefit 

obligation

Fair value 
of plan 
assets

Total

�����������������9upLLs Pn ���������������������

(t 1uSy �  42,856  (33,738)  9,118 
CurrLnt sLr]PJL Jost   2,935  -    2,935 
IntLrLst L_pLnsL � �PnJomL�  4,966  (3,993)  973 

 50,757  (37,731)  13,026 
9LmLasurLmLnts!

Loss on pSan assLts� L_JSudPnN amounts 
PnJSudLd Pn PntLrLst L_pLnsL  -    6,786  6,786 

.aPn Mrom JOanNL Pn ÄnanJPaS assumptPons  (7,479)  -    (7,479)
 (7,479)  6,786  (693)
 43,278  (30,945)  12,333 

ContrPIutPon  -    (2,644)  (2,644)
)LnLÄt paymLnts  (552)  552  -   
(t 1unL ��  42,726  (33,037)  9,689 

 ����
7rLsLnt 
]aSuL oM 
dLÄnLd 
ILnLÄt 

oISPNatPon

-aPr ]aSuL 
oM pSan 
assLts

;otaS

�����������������9upLLs Pn ���������������������

(t 1uSy �  ������  ��������  ����� 
CurrLnt sLr]PJL Jost   �� ��  �    �� �� 
IntLrLst L_pLnsL � �PnJomL�  �����  �������  �� ��

 ������  ��������  �� �� 
9LmLasurLmLnts!

9Lturn on pSan assLts� L_JSudPnN amounts 
PnJSudLd Pn PntLrLst L_pLnsL  �    �����  ����� 

.aPn Mrom JOanNL Pn ÄnanJPaS assumptPons  �����  �    ����� 
 �����  �����   ���� 

 ������  �� �����  ������ 
ContrPIutPon  �    ��� � �  ��� � �
)LnLÄt paymLnts  �����  ���  �   
(t 1unL ��  ������  ��������   ���� 

2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

22.5 Charge for defined benefit plan recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss

CurrLnt sLr]PJL Jost  2,935  �� �� 
5Lt PntLrLst L_pLnsL � �PnJomL�  973  �� ��

 3,908  ����� 

22.6 ;OL sLnsPtP]PtPLs oM tOL nLt dLÄnLd ILnLÄt oISPNatPon to JOanNLs Pn tOL ^LPNOtLd prPnJPpaS assumptPons 
arL as undLr!

Amount of net defined benefit 
obligation

Change in 
assumption

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

���������9upLLs Pn �������������

+PsJount ratL ��  ������  ������ 
LonN tLrm saSary PnJrLasLs ��  ��� ��  � ���� 
7LnsPon PnJrLasL ratL ��  ������  � ���� 

;OL aIo]L sLnsPtP]Pty anaSysPs Ps IasLd on a JOanNL Pn an assumptPon ̂ OPSL OoSdPnN aSS otOLr assumptPons 
Jonstant. >OLn JaSJuSatPnN tOL sLnsPtP]Pty oM tOL nLt dLÄnLd ILnLÄt oISPNatPon to sPNnPÄJant aJtuarPaS 
assumptPons tOL samL mLtOod �prLsLnt ]aSuL oM tOL dLÄnLd ILnLÄt oISPNatPon JaSJuSatLd ^PtO tOL 
proQLJtLd unPt JrLdPt mLtOod at tOL Lnd oM tOL rLportPnN pLrPod� Oas ILLn appSPLd as ^OLn JaSJuSatPnN 
tOL pLnsPon SPaIPSPty rLJoNnPsLd ^PtOPn tOL statLmLnt oM ÄnanJPaS posPtPon.

22.7 ;OL ^LPNOtLd a]LraNL duratPon oM tOL nLt dLÄnLd ILnLÄt oISPNatPon Ps ��.�  yLars.

22.8 ,_pLJtLd maturPty anaSysPs oM undPsJountLd nLt dLÄnLd ILnLÄt oISPNatPon Mor tOL pLnsPon Mund Ps as 
MoSSo^s!

At June 30, 2019
Less than

 a year
Between 
1-2 years

Between 
2-4 years

Over 4 
years

Total

��������������������������������� 9upLLs ���� ���������������������������������

7LnsPon  ���  ���  �� ��  ������  � ���� 

22.9 ;OL L_pLJtLd rLturn on pSan assLts Ps dLtLrmPnLd Iy JonsPdLrPnN tOL L_pLJtLd SonN�tLrm rLturns 
a]aPSaISL on tOL assLts undLrSyPnN tOL JurrLnt Pn]LstmLnt poSPJy. ,_pLJtLd yPLSd on Ä_Ld PntLrLst 
Pn]LstmLnts arL IasLd on Nross rLdLmptPon yPLSd as at tOL statLmLnt oM ÄnanJPaS posPtPon datL. 
,_pLJtLd rLturns on LXuPty arL IasLd on SonN�tLrm rLaS ratLs L_pLrPLnJLd Pn tOL stoJR marRLt.

22.10 ;OL L_pLJtLd JOarNL Mor tOL dLÄnLd ILnLÄt pSan Mor tOL yLar LndPnN 1unL ��� ���� Ps 9s �.��� 
mPSSPon.

22.11 ;OL JOarNL Mor tOL yLar Pn rLspLJt oM pLnsPon amounts to 9s ��.��  mPSSPon �����! 9s  ��.��� mPSSPon�� 
^OPJO PnJSudLs 9s ��.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ��.��  mPSSPon� Pn rLspLJt oM mLmILrs Jo]LrLd undLr 5L^ 
9uSLs and 9s �. �� mPSSPon �����! 9s �.��� mPSSPon� Pn rLspLJt oM mLmILrs Jo]LrLd undLr 6Sd 9uSLs.

23 SHORT-TERM RUNNING FINANCES

(s at 1unL ��� ��� � tOL Company Oas unutPSPsLd sOort�tLrm runnPnN ÄnanJL MaJPSPtPLs undLr marR�up 
arranNLmLnts aNNrLNatPnN 9s ����� mPSSPon �����! 9s ����� mPSSPon� a]aPSaISL Mrom ]arPous JommLrJPaS 
IanRs JarryPnN marR�up ratLs IasLd on � montO 2I)69 as ILnJOmarR ratL pSus �� IasPs poPnts 
�����! � montO 2I)69 pSus �� IasPs poPnts�. ;OL aIo]L MaJPSPtPLs PnJSudL an amount oM 9s ��� mPSSPon 
�����! 9s ��� mPSSPon� a]aPSaISL Mrom /aIPI MLtropoSPtan )anR LPmPtLd � a rLSatLd party.

;OL Company aSso Oas MaJPSPtPLs Mor opLnPnN SLttLrs oM JrLdPt and IanR NuarantLLs undLr marR�up 
arranNLmLnts as at 1unL ��� ���  amountPnN to 9s ������ mPSSPon �����! 9s ��� �� mPSSPon� Mrom 
]arPous JommLrJPaS IanRs� PnJSudPnN 9s  ���� mPSSPon �����! 9s  ���� mPSSPon� a]aPSaISL Mrom /aIPI 
MLtropoSPtan )anR LPmPtLd � a rLSatLd party. ;OL unutPSPsLd IaSanJL as at 1unL ��� ���  Ps 9s �����  
mPSSPon �����! 9s ������ mPSSPon�.

;OL aIo]L mLntPonLd sOort�tLrm runnPnN ÄnanJL MaJPSPtPLs and IanR NuarantLLs arL sLJurLd Iy parP 
passu OypotOLJatPon JOarNL on mo]aISL assLts and rLJLP]aISLs oM tOL Company.
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24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

24.1 ;OL Company� durPnN tOL yLars ��������� and ���������� rLJLP]Ld dLmand notPJLs Mrom tOL 
CoSSLJtor oM Customs� JSaPmPnN sOort rLJo]Lry oM 9s ���.��� mPSSPon Pn aNNrLNatL on aJJount oM 
Justoms duty amountPnN to 9s ���.��� mPSSPon and saSLs ta_ amountPnN to 9s ���.��� mPSSPon on 
royaSty paymLnt to tOL 1oPnt =LnturL 7artnLr� ;oyota Motor CorporatPon. ;OL dLmand Oad ILLn 
raPsLd IasLd on tOL ]PL^ tOat royaSty ]aSuL sOouSd IL PnJSudLd as part oM PmportLd C2+ RPts ^OPJO 
Ps opposLd to tOL ]PL^ oM tOL Company IasLd on MaJtuaS posPtPon tOat tOL royaSty pLrtaPns to SoJaSSy 
dLSLtLd parts.

+urPnN yLar LndLd 1unL ��� ����� tOL Customs� ,_JPsL and :aSLs ;a_ (ppLSSatL ;rPIunaS �tOL (ppLSSatL 
;rPIunaS� dLJPdLd tOL JasL Pn tOL Company�s Ma]our and aJJordPnNSy� tOL dLmand to tOL L_tLnt oM 
9s ���.��� mPSSPon �Justoms duty oM 9s ���.��� mPSSPon and saSLs ta_ oM 9s ���.� � mPSSPon� Oad 
ILLn rL]LrsLd. +urPnN tOL yLar LndLd 1unL ��� ����� an appLaS ^as ÄSLd Iy tOL Custom (utOorPtPLs 
ILMorL tOL :PndO /PNO Court aNaPnst tOL dLJPsPon tOL (ppLSSatL ;rPIunaS� ^OPJO Ps pLndPnN. (ppLaSs 
arL pLndPnN ILMorL tOL CoSSLJtor oM Customs (ppLaS Mor 9s � .��� mPSSPon and ILMorL tOL (ppLSSatL 
;rPIunaS Mor 9s ��.��� mPSSPon.

+urPnN yLar LndLd 1unL ��� ����� tOL Company rLJLP]Ld a sOo^ JausL notPJL Mrom tOL CoSSLJtor 
oM Customs� JSaPmPnN sOort rLJo]Lry oM  9s �����.��  mPSSPon �Justom duty oM 9s �����.��� mPSSPon� 
saSLs ta_ oM 9s � �.��  mPSSPon and PnJomL ta_ oM 9s ���.��� mPSSPon� on royaSty paymLnt to tOL 1oPnt 
=LnturL 7artnLr� ;oyota Motor CorporatPon. ;OL Company Oas ÄSLd a pLtPtPon aNaPnst tOL samL ILMorL 
tOL :PndO /PNO Court� ^OPJO Ps pLndPnN Mor OLarPnN.

In rLspLJt oM pLndPnN appLaSs at ]arPous appLSSatL Morums� a sPmPSar Ma]ouraISL dLJPsPon as madL Iy 
tOL (ppLSSatL ;rPIunaS Pn tOL past Ps L_pLJtLd as tOL MaJts arL Jommon and Pn]oS]L PdLntPJaS XuLstPon 
oM Sa .̂ ;OLrLMorL� no pro]PsPon Oas ILLn madL Iy tOL Company Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts aNaPnst 
tOL aIo]L mLntPonLd JSaPms as tOL manaNLmLnt Ps JonÄdLnt tOat tOL mattLrs ^PSS IL dLJPdLd Pn 
Ma]our oM tOL Company.

24.2 +urPnN tOL yLar LndLd 1unL ��� ����� tOL Company rLJLP]Ld an (ssLssmLnt 6rdLr Mrom tOL 7unQaI 
9L]LnuL (utOorPty� JSaPmPnN tOat tOL Company ^as rLXuPrLd to pay saSLs ta_ on MranJOPsL sLr]PJLs 
pro]PdLd Pn tOL pro]PnJL oM 7unQaI� as pLr tOL :LJond :JOLduSL oM tOL 7unQaI :aSLs ;a_ on :Lr]PJLs 
(Jt� ����. ;OL ordLr MurtOLr statLd tOat tOL Company ̂ as rLXuPrLd to pay 7unQaI :aSLs ;a_ amountPnN 
to 9s ���.��� mPSSPon aSonN ^PtO pLnaSty amountPnN to 9s ���. �� mPSSPon rLSatPnN to tOL pLrPod Mrom 
(prPS ���� to +LJLmILr ����.

+urPnN tOL yLar LndLd 1unL ��� ����� tOL Company rLJLP]Ld sOo^ JausL notPJLs Mrom tOL 7unQaI 
9L]LnuL (utOorPty Mor rLJo]Lry oM 7unQaI :aSLs ;a_ amountPnN to 9s ��.� � mPSSPon Mor tOL pLrPod 
Mrom 1anuary ���� to 1unL ����. )asLd on SLNaS ad]PJL and mLrPts oM tOL JasL� tOL Company Oas 
oItaPnLd stay ordLrs aNaPnst tOL dLmands and L_pLJts a Ma]ouraISL outJomL. /LnJL� no pro]PsPon 
Oas ILLn madL Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

24.3 +urPnN tOL yLar� tOL Company rLJLP]Ld ]arPous notPJLs Mrom .o]LrnmLnt oM 7aRPstan ModLS 
Customs CoSSLJtoratL oM (ppraPsLmLnt �,ast� Custom /ousL� JSaPmPnN tOat tOL Company a]aPSLd 
sLSM�assLssmLnt MaJPSPty Mor JSLarPnN   unPts oM ;oyota /PaJL (mIuSanJLs PmportLd ]PdL numLrous 
sOPpmLnts undLr /: JodL ��.��� ^OLrLas tOL amIuSanJLs sOouSd Oa]L ILLn JSassPÄLd undLr /: 
JodL ��.�� and ad]PsLd tOL Company to pay tOL sOort�SL]PLd amount oM Custom +uty and -LdLraS 
,_JPsL +uty JoSSLJtP]LSy amountPnN to 9s ���.��  mPSSPon. ;OL manaNLmLnt oM tOL Company� IasLd 
on tOL ad]PJL oM Pts SLNaS JounsLS� L_pLJts a Ma]ouraISL outJomL. /LnJL no pro]PsPon Oas ILLn madL 
Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

24.4 (s at 1unL ��� ��� � tOL JSaPms not aJRno^SLdNLd as dLIts Iy tOL Company� otOLr tOan tOosL 
sLparatLSy dPsJSosLd aIo]L� amount to 9s �����.��  mPSSPon �����! 9s �����.��� mPSSPon�.

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

CasLs ÄSLd Iy tOL dLaSLrs  -    ������� 
CasLs ÄSLd Iy No]LrnmLnt autOorPtPLs  519,879  ������� 
6tOLrs  917,230  ����� � 

��.�.�  1,437,109  ��������� 

24.4.1 ;OL aIo]L JasLs rLprLsLnt SLNaS proJLLdPnNs PnPtPatLd aNaPnst tOL Company Iy ]arPous partPLs 
tOLrLMorL pLndPnN adQudPJatPon Pn ]arPous Jourts and SLNaS Morums oM 7aRPstan sPnJL many yLars. ( 
ML^ JasLs Oa]L ILLn addLd durPnN tOL JurrLnt yLar. ;OL manaNLmLnt oM tOL Company Ps oM tOL ]PL^ 
tOat tOL Company Oas a stronN posPtPon Pn tOLsL JasLs and tOLsL JasLs ^PSS IL dLJPdLd Pn tOL Ma]our. 
/LnJL� no pro]PsPon Oas ILLn rLJordLd Pn rLspLJt oM tOLsL JasLs Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

24.5 Commitments 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

24.5.1 6utstandPnN IanR NuarantLLs  18,141,215  ���������� 

6utstandPnN IanR NuarantLLs PnJSudL an amount oM 9s �����.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s �����.� � mPSSPon� 
Pn rLspLJt oM IanR NuarantLLs Mrom /aIPI MLtropoSPtan )anR LPmPtLd � a rLSatLd party.

24.5.2 CommPtmLnts Pn rLspLJt oM JapPtaS L_pLndPturL as at 1unL ��� ���  amountLd to 9s �����.��� 
mPSSPon �����! 9s �����.��� mPSSPon�.

24.5.3 CommPtmLnts Pn rLspLJt oM SLttLrs oM JrLdPt� otOLr tOan Mor JapPtaS L_pLndPturL� amountLd to 
9s ���� .��� mPSSPon �����! 9s �����.��� mPSSPon�. ;OL aIo]L SLttLrs oM JrLdPt PnJSudL an amount oM 
9s 5PS �����! 9s �����.�   mPSSPon� a]aPSLd Mrom /aIPI MLtropoSPtan )anR LPmPtLd � a rLSatLd party.

24.5.4 CommPtmLnts Pn rLspLJt oM Sand rLnt and maPntLnanJL JOarNLs aNaPnst SLasLOoSd Sand Mrom 7ort 
8asPm (utOorPty as at 1unL ��� ���  amountLd to 9s �  .��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ���.��� mPSSPon�.

Year 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

��� �����  -    ����� 
���������  6,525  ����� 
���������  6,852  ����� 
���������  7,194  ��� � 
���������  7,553  ����� 
���� on^ards  171,104  ������� 

 199,228  ������� 
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25 OPERATING RESULTS

Manufacturing Trading Total

5otL 2019 ���� 2019 ���� 2019 ����

����������������������������������������������� �9upLLs Pn ����� �����������������������������������������������

9L]LnuL Mrom JontraJt

^PtO JustomLrs ��.� 179,590,445 ����� ����� 11,793,172 ���������� 191,383,617 ����������� 

:aSLs ta_ (26,084,198) ������ ����� (1,319,938) ����������� (27,404,136) ����� ������

-LdLraS L_JPsL duty (903,873)  �    -    �   (903,873)  �   

��.� 152,602,374 ����������� 10,473,234  �������� 163,075,608 ���� ��� �� 

CommPssPon (3,896,367) ��� ������� (457,343) ������ �� (4,353,710) ��������� �

+PsJounts (9,278) ������� (508,097) ��������� (517,375) ��� ��� �

CompLnsatPon on ad]anJLs

Mrom JustomLrs (208,311) �� ��� ��  -    �   (208,311) �� ��� ��

Net sales 148,488,418 ����������� 9,507,794 ������� � 157,996,212 �� �������  

Cost oM saSLs �� (131,850,814) ������������� (6,953,724) ����� ����� (138,804,538) �������������

Gross profit 16,637,604 ���������� 2,554,070 ��������� 19,191,674 ���������� 

+PstrPIutPon L_pLnsLs �� 1,248,668 ��������� 154,943 ������� 1,403,611 ��������  

(dmPnPstratP]L L_pLnsLs �� 1,325,181 ������� � 84,852  ����� 1,410,033 ��������� 

(2,573,849) ����������� (239,795) ����� ��� (2,813,644) ��������� �

14,063,755 ���������� 2,314,275 ��������� 16,378,030 ������� �  

6tOLr opLratPnN L_pLnsLs � (220,837) ����� ��� (14,140) �������� (234,977) �� ������

>orRLrs� 7roÄt 7artPJPpatPon 

-und and >orRLrs� >LSMarL -und �� (1,406,379) �����������  -    �   (1,406,379) �����������

12,436,539 ���������� 2,300,135 ��������  14,736,674 � ������ � 

6tOLr PnJomL �� 4,306,662 �� ������ 

 19,043,336 ����� ���� 

-PnanJL Jost ��     (67,407) ��������

Profit before taxation  18,975,929 ���   ���� 

25.1 ;OPs PnJSudLs an amount oM 9s �. �� mPSSPon � ����! 9s. 5PS � Pn rLspLJt oM L_port saSLs oM auto parts.

25.2 ;OL Nross saSLs� nLt oM saSLs ta_� Mor �;radPnN� sLNmLnt PnJSudL an amount oM 9s �����.��� mPSSPon 
�����! 9s ���� .��� mPSSPon� Pn rLspLJt oM saSLs oM motor oPS.

25.3 6tOLr opLratPnN L_pLnsLs� admPnPstratP]L L_pLnsLs and dPstrPIutPon L_pLnsLs �L_JSudPnN ^arranty 
JSaPms� prL�dLSP]Lry PnspLJtPon and sLr]PJL JOarNLs� dL]LSopmLnt L_pLndPturL� transportatPon and 
runnPnN royaSty�� arL aSSoJatLd ILt^LLn manuMaJturPnN and tradPnN aJtP]PtPLs on tOL IasPs oM nLt saSLs. 
>arranty JSaPms� prL�dLSP]Lry PnspLJtPon and sLr]PJL JOarNLs� dL]LSopmLnt L_pLndPturL� >orRLrs� 7roÄt 
7artPJPpatPon -und and >orRLrs� >LSMarL -und arL aSSoJatLd to manuMaJturPnN aJtP]Pty. <ndLr :LSSPnN 
L_pLnsLs� 9unnPnN royaSty and transportatPon JOarNLs arL aSSoJatLd to tradPnN aJtP]Pty.

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

26 COST OF SALES

Raw materials and vendor parts consumed
6pLnPnN stoJR  8,515,842  ��������� 
7urJOasLs  123,648,690  ����������� 
CSosPnN stoJR �  (11,210,717)  �����������

 120,953,815  ����������� 

:torLs and sparLs JonsumLd  1,886,361  ���� ���� 
:aSarPLs� ^aNLs and otOLr ILnLÄts ��.� 
 ��.�  1,796,938  ��������� 
9Lnt� ratLs and ta_Ls  16,218  ����� 
9LpaPrs and maPntLnanJL  443,235  ������� 
+LprLJPatPon �.�  1,986,409  ��������� 
LLNaS and proMLssPonaS  2,540  ����� 
;ra]LSSPnN  30,048  ������ 
;ransportatPon  9,893  ����� 
InsuranJL  42,558  ������ 
=LOPJSL runnPnN  21,381  ������ 
CommunPJatPon  4,082  ����  
7rPntPnN� statPonLry and oMÄJL suppSPLs  3,550  ����  
:uIsJrPptPon  2,274  ��  
-uLS and po^Lr  565,843  ���� �� 
9unnPnN royaSty ��.�  3,343,967  ��������� 
:upLr]Psor MLL 155,344  � ���� 
;LJOnPJaS MLL  8,964  ������ 
:taMM JatLrPnN� transport and unPMorms  563,828  ������� 
�9L]LrsaS� � pro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL  (21,081)  ���   
7ro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN storLs and sparLs  70,634  ������ 
6tOLrs  44,881  ������ 

 10,977,867   �������� 
 131,931,682  �� ������ � 

(dd!  6pLnPnN ^orR�Pn�proJLss  518,329  ������� 
LLss! CSosPnN ^orR�Pn�proJLss �  683,469  ������  

 131,766,542  �� �������� 
6pLnPnN stoJR oM ÄnPsOLd Noods � o^n manuMaJturLd  201,619  ������� 
CSosPnN stoJR oM ÄnPsOLd Noods � o^n manuMaJturLd �  (117,347)  ������� �
Cost of sales - own manufactured  131,850,814  ����������� 

6pLnPnN stoJR oM ÄnPsOLd Noods � tradPnN  2,064,778  ��������� 
-PnPsOLd Noods purJOasLd  6,566,557  ��������� 
CSosPnN stoJR oM ÄnPsOLd Noods � tradPnN �  (1,782,876)  �����������
7ro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL  105,265  ������ 
Cost of sales - trading  6,953,724  ���� ���� 

 138,804,538  ����������� 

26.1 ;OLsL PnJSudL an amount oM 9s � .��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ��.� � mPSSPon� Pn rLspLJt oM JOarNL aNaPnst 
pro]PdLnt Mund and 9s ��. �� mPSSPon �����! 9s ��.��� mPSSPon� Pn rLspLJt oM JOarNL aNaPnst pLnsPon 
Mund.

26.2 ;OL Pn]LstmLnts Iy tOL pro]PdLnt Mund Pn JoSSLJtP]L Pn]LstmLnt sJOLmLs� SPstLd LXuPty and dLIts 
sLJurPtPLs Oa]L ILLn madL Pn aJJordanJL ^PtO tOL JondPtPons spLJPÄLd Pn sLJtPon ��� oM tOL CompanPLs 
(Jt� ���� and ruSLs spLJPÄLd tOLrLundLr.
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26.3 ;OPs PnJSudLs royaSty paPd to tOL MoSSo^PnN partPLs!

 Name Address
Relationship 

with the 
Company

2019 ����

�������9upLLs Pn º����������

;oyota Motor � ;oyota�COo� ;oyota CPty� (PJOP (ssoJPatL  2,860,130  ��������� 
CorporatPon  7rLMLJturL ��������� 1apan	

;oyota +aPOatsu    Moo �� ;. )an�9aNad� (. � 
,nNPnLLrPnN 
 )anR�Io :amutpraRran� ������� .roup Jompany  10,726   ���� 
ManuMaJturPnN 2PnNdom oM ;OaPSand	
Company LPmPtLd

5otL 2019 ����
27 DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES �������9upLLs Pn º����������

:aSarPLs� ^aNLs and otOLr ILnLÄts ��.� 
 ��.�  267,436  �� ���� 
9Lnt� ratLs and ta_Ls  4,305  ��� � 
9LpaPrs and maPntLnanJL  4,953  ����� 
+LprLJPatPon �.�  39,842  ������ 
(d]LrtPsPnN and saSLs promotPon  478,948  ������� 
;ra]LSSPnN  31,852  ������ 
=LOPJSL runnPnN  17,675  ���� � 
CommunPJatPon  2,432  ����� 
7rPntPnN� statPonLry and oMÄJL suppSPLs  7,542  ����� 
:taMM traPnPnN  14,639  ������ 
:taMM transport and JantLLn  28,119  ������ 
:uIsJrPptPon  193  ��� 
>arranty JSaPms ��.�  297,136  ������� 
7rL�dLSP]Lry PnspLJtPon and sLr]PJL JOarNLs  67,208  ������ 
+L]LSopmLnt L_pLndPturL  23,169  �����  
<tPSPtPLs  61  ��� 
;ransportatPon  69,564  �����  
9unnPnN royaSty ��.�  30,239  ������ 
7ro]PsPon Mor douItMuS dLIts    978  �   
LatL dLSP]Lry JOarNLs  12,905  �   
6tOLrs  4,415  ����� 

 1,403,611  ��������  

27.1 ;OLsL PnJSudL an amount oM 9s �.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s �. �� mPSSPon� Pn rLspLJt oM JOarNL aNaPnst 
pro]PdLnt Mund and 9s �.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s �.��� mPSSPon� Pn rLspLJt oM JOarNL aNaPnst pLnsPon Mund.

27.2 ;OPs PnJSudLs royaSty paPd to tOL MoSSo^PnN partPLs!

 Name Address
Relationship 

with the 
Company

2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

;oyota Motor � ;oyota�COo� ;oyota CPty� (PJOP (ssoJPatL  26,496  ������ 
CorporatPon 7rLMLJturL ��������� 1apan

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

28 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

:aSarPLs� ^aNLs and otOLr ILnLÄts ��.� 
 ��.�  525,561  ����  � 
9Lnt� ratLs and ta_Ls  3,615  ����� 
InsuranJL  41,213  ������ 
9LpaPrs and maPntLnanJL  78,986  ������ 
+LprLJPatPon �.�  64,787  ������ 
(mortPsatPon �.�  30,018  ������ 
;ra]LSSPnN  61,265  ��� �� 
LLNaS and proMLssPonaS  196,160  ������� 
+PrLJtor�s MLL  1,500  ����� 
=LOPJSL runnPnN  20,673  �����  
CommunPJatPon  21,883  ������ 
7rPntPnN� statPonLry and oMÄJL suppSPLs  4,595  ����� 
:taMM traPnPnN  207,883  ���� �� 
:taMM transport and JantLLn  43,425  � �� � 
:LJurPty  43,739  � ���� 
:uIsJrPptPon  34,920  ����� 
<tPSPtPLs  421  ��  
:OarL rLNPstrar and rLSatLd L_pLnsLs  9,426  ����� 
6tOLrs  19,963  ������ 

 1,410,033  ��������� 

28.1 ;OLsL PnJSudL an amount oM 9s ��.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ��.��� mPSSPon� Pn rLspLJt oM JOarNL aNaPnst 
pro]PdLnt Mund and 9s ��.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s �. �� mPSSPon� Pn rLspLJt oM JOarNL aNaPnst pLnsPon Mund.

5otL 2019 ����
29 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES �������9upLLs Pn º����������

(udPtors» rLmunLratPon � .�  4,985  ��� � 
+onatPons � .�  229,992  � ����� 

 234,977  � ����� 
29.1 Auditors’ remuneration

(udPt MLL  1,725  ����� 
IntLrPm rL]PL^ and otOLr JLrtPÄJatPons  1,586  ��� 
6tOLrs � .�.�  1,134  �   
6ut�oM�poJRLt L_pLnsLs  540  ��� 

 4,985  ��� � 
29.1.1 ;OPs rLprLsLnts sLr]PJLs rLSatPnN to IusPnLss proJLss Pmpro]LmLnt.

29.2 Donations

29.2.1 +onatPons Pn ^OPJO a +PrLJtor or OPs spousL Ps PntLrLstLd arL as MoSSo^s!

Name of  Interest in Name of Donee 2019 ����
Director(s) Donee �����������9upLLs Pn º��������������

�. Mr (SP :. /aIPI ;rustLL MoOamLdaSP /aIPI >LSMarL ;rust  �����  ����� 
�. Mr (SP :. /aIPI and 

Mr MoOammLdaSP 9. /aIPI ;rustLL /aIPI ,duJatPon ;rust  �����  �� �� 
�. Mr (SP :. /aIPI�

Mr MoOammLdaSP 9. /aIPI
and Mr 7ar]La .OPas +PrLJtor /aIPI <nP]LrsPty -oundatPon   �����   ����� 
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29.2.2 ;OL namLs oM donLLs� otOLr tOan tOosL dPsJSosLd aIo]L� to ^Oom tOL donatPon amount durPnN 
tOL JurrLnt yLar L_JLLds 9s ������� arL ;OL CPtPaLn -oundatPon� Indus /ospPtaS� ;oyota CPtPaLn 
-oundatPon �;oyota .otO ,duJatPon 7roNram�� :PndO InstPtutL oM <roSoNy 
 ;ranspSantatPon �:I<;�� 
.OuSaman�L�(IIas ,duJatPon 
 MLdPJaS ;rust� ;Oar -oundatPon� :OauRat 2Oanum CanJLr /ospPtaS� 
>>- 7aRPstan and ;OL :uprLmL Court oM 7aRPstan and ;OL 7rPmL MPnPstLr oM 7aRPstan +PamLr�
)OasOa and MoOmand +ams -und.

5otL 2019 ����
���������9upLLs Pn º������������

30 WORKERS' PROFIT PARTICIPATION FUND AND WORKERS' 
WELFARE FUND

>orRLrs» >LSMarL -und  387,264  �� ���� 
>orRLrs» 7roÄt 7artPJPpatPon -und ��.�  1,019,115  ��������� 

 1,406,379  ��������� 
31 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
9Lturn on IanR dLposPts  1,497,866  ��� ����� 
IntLrLst PnJomL on MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs  399,787  ������� 
(mortPsatPon PnJomL on MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs  -    ������� 
IntLrLst PnJomL on 7aRPstan In]LstmLnt )onds �7I)s�  -    ������ 
.aPn on saSL oM 7aRPstan In]LstmLnt )onds �7I)s�  308,105  ������ 
5Lt NaPn aNaPnst Pn]LstmLnts Pn SPstLd mutuaS Mund unPts  426,076  ������� 
.aPn on saSL oM Pn]LstmLnts Pn MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs  986,418  �   
<nrLaSPsLd NaPn on rL]aSuatPon oM SPstLd mutuaS Mund unPts  -    ������� 

Income from other than financial assets
(NLnJy JommPssPon� nLt oM JommPssPon L_pLnsL 

oM 9s �.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ��.��� mPSSPon�  138,858  ������� 
,_JOanNL NaPn on aNLnJy JommPssPon and L_ports  82,055  ������ 
.aPn on dPsposaS oM opLratPnN Ä_Ld assLts �.�  29,389  ������ 
LPaIPSPtPLs no SonNLr payaISL ^rPttLn IaJR  209,592  ������ 
-rLPNOt and otOLr JOarNLs PnJomL � nLt oM L_pLnsLs  184,116  � ����� 
CLrtPÄJatPon PnJomL  45,692  ���� � 
9LaSPsLd L_JOanNL Soss � nLt  (3,853)  �����
6tOLrs  2,561  ��� 

 4,306,662  �� ������ 

5otL 2019 ����
���������9upLLs Pn º������������

33 TAXATION

CurrLnt � Mor tOL yLar  4,856,528  ��������  
 � Mor prPor yLars  (34,652)  ��������

 4,821,876  ��������� 

+LMLrrLd � Mor tOL yLar  439,078  �����  
��.�  5,260,954  ��������� 

33.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit 

7roÄt ILMorL ta_atPon  18,975,929  ���   ���� 

;a_ at tOL appSPJaISL ta_ ratL oM � � �����! ����  5,503,019  ���  ���� 
;a_ LMMLJt oM pLrmanLnt dPMMLrLnJLs and supLr ta_  452,965  ������� 
;a_ LMMLJt oM PnJomL ta_aISL at So^Lr ratLs and ta_ JrLdPt on
   pSant and maJOPnLry  (507,791)  ��� �����
;a_ LMMLJt oM PnJomL assLssLd undLr ÄnaS ta_ rLNPmL  (152,587)  ���������
;a_ LMMLJt oM JOanNL Pn ta_ ratL Mor MuturL pLrPods  -    ����  
7rPor yLars� rL]LrsaS  (34,652)  ��������

 5,260,954  ��������� 
33.2 Management assessment of sufficiency of provision for income taxes

In tOL opPnPon oM tOL manaNLmLnt� suMÄJPLnt ta_ pro]PsPon Oas ILLn madL Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts. 
ComparPsons oM ta_ pro]PsPon as pLr tOL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts ]Pa�a�]Pa ta_ assLssmLnts Mor tOL Sast tOrLL 
yLars Ps as MoSSo^s!

���� ���� ����
�����������������9upLLs Pn ����������������������

;a_ assLssLd as pLr tOL most rLJLnt ta_ assLssmLnt  ��������   ���� ����  ��������� 

7ro]PsPon Pn aJJounts Mor PnJomL ta_  ���������  ���� � ��  ������ �� 

;OL Company Oas madL pro]PsPons Mor ta_atPon Pn Pts ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts IasLd on appSPJaISL ta_ 
Sa^s and dLJPsPons oM appLSSatL autOorPtPLs on sPmPSar mattLrs. 7ro]PsPons Pn rLspLJt oM supLr ta_ and 
otOLr mattLrs Oa]L ILLn madL Pn tOL rLspLJtP]L yLars� aNaPnst ^OPJO pLtPtPons Oa]L ILLn ÄSLd Iy tOL 
Company ILMorL tOL :PndO /PNO Court.

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE

34.1 Basic

)asPJ LarnPnNs pLr sOarL Oas ILLn JomputLd Iy dP]PdPnN tOL proÄt Mor tOL yLar aMtLr ta_atPon Iy tOL 
^LPNOtLd a]LraNL numILr oM sOarLs outstandPnN durPnN tOL yLar.

2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

7roÄt aMtLr ta_atPon  13,714,975  ���������� 

�5umILr oM sOarLs�
>LPNOtLd a]LraNL numILr oM ordPnary sOarLs outstandPnN

durPnN tOL yLar  78,600,000  ���������� 

�9upLLs�

)asPJ LarnPnNs pLr sOarL  174.49  ���.�� 

34.2 Diluted

;OLrL arL no potLntPaS dPSutP]L ordPnary sOarLs outstandPnN as at 1unL ��� ���  and ����.

2019 ����
���������9upLLs Pn º������������

32 FINANCE COST

IntLrLst on SonN tLrm Soan MaJPSPty  72  �   
)anR JOarNLs  67,335  ������ 

 67,407  ������ 
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5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

35 CASH (UTILISED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

7roÄt ILMorL ta_atPon  18,975,929  ���   ���� 

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
+LprLJPatPon �.�  2,091,038  ��� ����� 
(mortPsatPon �.�  30,018  ������ 
7ro]PsPon Mor douItMuS dLIts    978  �   
7ro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN storLs and sparLs �  70,634  ������ 
7ro]PsPon Mor sSo^ mo]PnN stoJR�Pn�tradL �  84,184  �����  
.aPn on dPsposaS oM opLratPnN Ä_Ld assLts �.�  (29,389)  ��������
.aPn on saSL oM 7aRPstan In]LstmLnt )onds �7I)s� ��  (308,105)  ��������
5Lt NaPn aNaPnst Pn]LstmLnts Pn SPstLd mutuaS Mund unPts ��  (426,076)  ���������
.aPn on saSL oM Pn]LstmLnts Pn MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs ��  (986,418)  �   
<nrLaSPsLd NaPn on rL]aSuatPon oM SPstLd mutuaS Mund unPts ��  -    ���������
5Lt unrLaSPsLd NaPn on rL]aSuatPon oM MorLPNn L_JOanNL

JontraJts � MaPr ]aSuL OLdNL ��  3,019  ����� 
9Lturn on IanR dLposPts ��  (1,497,866)  ���� ������
IntLrLst PnJomL on 7aRPstan In]LstmLnt )onds �7I)s� ��  -    ��������
IntLrLst PnJomL on MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs ��  (399,787)  ���������
(mortPsatPon PnJomL on MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs ��  -    ���������
COarNL Pn rLspLJt oM >orRLrs» 7roÄt 7artPJPpatPon -und ��  1,019,115  ��������� 
COarNL Pn rLspLJt oM >orRLrs» >LSMarL -und ��  387,264  �� ���� 
CompLnsatPon on ad]anJLs rLJLP]Ld Mrom JustomLrs ��  208,311  � ��� � 
IntLrLst on LonN tLrm Soan ��  72  �   
>orRPnN JapPtaS JOanNLs ��.�  (25,569,703)  ��������� 

 (6,346,782)  ���� �� �� 
35.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
:torLs and sparLs  (313,385)  ��� �����
:toJR�Pn�tradL  (2,493,841)  �����������
;radL dLIts  (1,095,223)  �� ��� ��
Loans and ad]anJLs  (13,372)  �����������
:Oort�tLrm prLpaymLnts  (17,307)  ����� 
6tOLr rLJLP]aISLs  (2,553,179)  ���������

 (6,486,307)  �����������
(Decrease) / increase  in current liabilities

CurrLnt portPon oM dLMLrrLd rL]LnuL  (633)  �� �� 
;radL payaISLs� otOLr payaISLs and pro]PsPons  478,632  ��������� 
(d]anJLs Mrom JustomLrs and dLaSLrs  (19,561,395)  ��������� 

 (19,083,396)  ���������� 
 (25,569,703)  ��������� 

36 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CasO and JasO LXuP]aSLnts PnJSudLd Pn tOL statLmLnt oM JasO Åo^s JomprPsL oM tOL MoSSo^PnN!

5otL 2019 ����
�������9upLLs Pn º����������

CasO and IanR IaSanJLs �� 3,281,782 ��������� 
;Lrm +LposPt 9LJLPpts �;+9s� �� 19,000,000 ���������� 
.o]LrnmLnt sLJurPtPLs � MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs �� 4,402,464 ���������� 

26,684,246 ���������  

37 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2019 ����
Chief 

Executive
Directors Executives

COPLM 
,_LJutP]L

+PrLJtors ,_LJutP]Ls

������������������������������ �9upLLs Pn ����� ������������������������������

ManaNLrPaS rLmunLratPon �  54,842  19,574  352,918  ������  ������  ���� �� 
9LtPrLmLnt ILnLÄts  3,485  -    25,580  ����   �    ���� � 
MLdPJaS L_pLnsLs  303  -    -    ���  �    �   

 58,630  19,574  378,498  ������  ������  � ����� 

5umILr oM pLrsons  1  2  57  �  �  �  

� ;OPs PnJSudLs Ionus� OousL rLnt� utPSPtPLs and otOLr aSSo^anJLs.

37.1 ;OL COPLM ,_LJutP]L� dPrLJtors and somL L_LJutP]Ls Oa]L ILLn pro]PdLd MrLL usL oM Company maPntaPnLd 
Jars� rLsPdLntPaS tLSLpOonLs and JSuI MaJPSPtPLs.

37.2 +urPnN tOL yLar� an amount oM 9s �.� mPSSPon �����! 9s �.��� mPSSPon� Oas ILLn paPd to a non�L_LJutP]L 
dPrLJtor� as MLL Mor attLndPnN Ioard and otOLr mLLtPnNs.

38 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS / RELATED PARTIES

;OL assoJPatLd undLrtaRPnNs � rLSatLd partPLs JomprPsL oM assoJPatLd JompanPLs� staMM rLtPrLmLnt Munds 
and RLy manaNLmLnt pLrsonnLS. ;OL Company JonsPdLrs Pts COPLM ,_LJutP]L 6MÄJLr� COPLM -PnanJPaS 
6MÄJLr� Company sLJrLtary and dPrLJtors as RLy manaNLmLnt pLrsonnLS.;ransaJtPons JarrPLd out 
^PtO assoJPatLd undLrtaRPnNs � rLSatLd partPLs durPnN tOL yLar� not dPsJSosLd LSsL^OLrL Pn tOL ÄnanJPaS 
statLmLnts arL as MoSSo^s!

2019 ����
With associated undertakings / related parties: �������9upLLs Pn º����������

:aSLs  423,117  �������
7urJOasLs  86,425,128  ����������
InsuranJL prLmPum  98,047  ������
(NLnJy JommPssPon  143,894  �������
9unnPnN royaSty  3,156,136  ���������
9Lnt L_pLnsL  1,304  �����
9Lturn on IanR dLposPts and ;+9s  641,196  �� � ��
7roJLLds Mrom dPsposaS oM opLratPnN Ä_Ld assLts � PnsuranJL JSaPm  550  �����
:upLr]Psor MLL  155,344  � ����
)anR JOarNLs  46,551  ��� ��
LC JOarNLs  5,593  �� ��

With key management personnel:
:aSarPLs and ILnLÄts  97,094  ������
7ost LmpSoymLnt ILnLÄts  5,181  �����
:aSL oM opLratPnN Ä_Ld assLts  -    �����

38.1 ContrPIutPon to and aJJruaSs Pn rLspLJt oM staMM rLtPrLmLnt ILnLÄts arL madL Pn aJJordanJL ̂ PtO aJtuarPaS 
]aSuatPons � tLrms oM JontrPIutPon pSan as dPsJSosLd Pn tOL rLspLJtP]L notLs to tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.

38.2 ;OL status oM outstandPnN IaSanJLs ^PtO assoJPatLd undLrtaRPnNs � rLSatLd partPLs as at 1unL ��� ���  
arL PnJSudLd Pn tOL rLspLJtP]L notLs to tOL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts.
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38.3 ;OL namLs oM rLSatLd partPLs �otOLr tOan tOosL tOat Oa]L ILLn spLJPÄJaSSy dPsJSosLd LSsL^OLrL Pn tOLsL 
ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts� ^PtO ^Oom tOL Company Oas LntLrLd Pnto transaJtPons or Oad aNrLLmLnts � 
arranNLmLnts Pn pSaJL durPnN tOL yLar arL as MoSSo^s!

Basis of relationship

Common directorship Name
Percentage of 
shareholding (%)

Particulars of Common director(s)

+a^ood /LrJuSLs 

  CorporatPon LPmPtLd 5PS Mr 7ar]La .OPas

:OLSS 7aRPstan LPmPtLd 5PS Mr 7ar]La .OPas

:OaIIPr ;PSLs 
 CLramPJs LPmPtLd 5PS Mr (SP :. /aIPI

COLrat CLmLnt Company LPmPtLd 5PS Mr (aam -aruXuL

;OaS LPmPtLd �.��� Mr (SP :. /aIPI and Mr MoOamLdaSP 9. /aIPI

/aIPI InsuranJL Company LPmPtLd �.��� Mr MoOamLdaSP 9. /aIPI

/aIPI MLtro 7aRPstan 

  �7rP]atL� LPmPtLd 5PS Mr (SP :. /aIPI

MoOamLdaSP /aIPI >LSMarL ;rust �.��� Mr (SP :. /aIPI ILPnN trustLL

 /aIPI ,duJatPon ;rust 5PS Mr (SP :. /aIPI and Mr MoOamLdaSP 9

/aIPI ILPnN trustLLs

/aIPI <nP]LrsPty -oundatPon 5PS Mr (SP :. /aIPI� Mr MoOamLdaSP 9.

/aIPI and Mr 7ar]La .OPas

/aIPI MLtropoSPtan )anR LPmPtLd 5PS Mr (SP :. /aIPI and Mr MoOamLdaSP 9. /aIPI

Group companies Name
Percentage of 
shareholding (%)

Relationship with the Company

;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon ��.��� (ssoJPatLd Company

;oyota Motor CorporatPon ��.��� (ssoJPatLd Company

;oyota Motor (sPa 7aJPÄJ 

  7;,. LPmPtLd 5PS :uIsPdPary oM ;oyota Motor CorporatPon

;oyota ;susOo �;OaPSand� 

  Company LPmPtLd 5PS :uIsPdPary oM ;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon

;oyotsu MaJOPnLry 

  CorporatPon 5PS :uIsPdPary oM ;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon

;oyota +aPOatsu ,nNPnLLrPnN 


   ManuMaJturPnN Company LPmPtLd 5PS :uIsPdPary oM ;oyota Motor CorporatPon

;oyota ;susOo (sPa 7aJPÄJ 

  7;,. LPmPtLd 5PS :uIsPdPary oM ;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon

+aPOatsu Motor Company LPmPtLd 5PS :uIsPdPary oM ;oyota Motor CorporatPon

/PnopaR Motors LPmPtLd 5PS :uIsPdPary oM ;oyota ;susOo CorporatPon

2019 ����
39 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION  5umILr oM unPts 

CapaJPty IasLd on douISL sOPMt IasPs 66,000 ������
7roduJtPon 65,346 ������

;OL Company Oas ILLn opLratPnN on a douISL sOPMt IasPs Mrom MarJO ���� IasLd on marRLt dLmand. 
;OL JapaJPty Oas ILLn JaSJuSatLd IasLd on a]LraNL normaS ^orRPnN Oours Pn a yLar� ^OLrLas aJtuaS 
produJtPon may ]ary Pn rLsponsL to marRLt dLmand.

2019 ����
�5umILr oM staMM� 

40 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

;otaS numILr oM LmpSoyLLs as at 1unL �� 3,349 �����

;otaS numILr oM MaJtory LmpSoyLLs as at 1unL �� 2,889 ��� �

(]LraNL numILr oM LmpSoyLLs durPnN tOL yLar 3,314 �����

(]LraNL numILr oM MaJtory LmpSoyLLs durPnN tOL yLar 2,853 �����

41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

---------------As at June 30, 2019---------------

 Amortised 
cost

 Fair value 
through profit 

or loss
 Total 

----------------(Rupees in ‘000)-----------------

Financial assets
Loans and ad]anJLs  50,952  -  50,952 
LonN�tLrm dLposPts  11,129  -  11,129 
;radL dLIts � unsLJurLd  2,547,915  -  2,547,915 
(JJruLd rLturn  34,846  -  34,846 
6tOLr rLJLP]aISLs  552,665  -  552,665 
In]LstmLnts  19,000,000  4,402,464  23,402,464 
CasO and IanR IaSanJLs  3,281,782  -  3,281,782 

 25,479,289  4,402,464  29,881,753 

------As at June 30, 2019------

 Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

 Total 

--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Financial liabilities 
LonN tLrm Soan  80,540  80,540 
<nJSaPmLd dP]PdLnd  174,538  174,538 
<npaPd dP]PdLnd  121,059  121,059 
;radL payaISLs� otOLr payaISLs and pro]PsPons  13,266,530  13,266,530 

 13,642,667 13,642,667
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���������������(s at 1unL ��� �������������������

 (mortPsLd 
Jost

 -aPr ]aSuL 
tOrouNO proÄt 

or Soss
 ;otaS 

�����������������9upLLs Pn º���������������������
Financial assets
Loans and ad]anJLs  ������  �  ������ 
LonN�tLrm dLposPts   ����  �   ���� 
;radL dLIts  ���������  �  ��������� 
(JJruLd rLturn  �������  �  ������� 
6tOLr rLJLP]aISLs  �� ����  �  �� ���� 
In]LstmLnts  ��� � ����   ����� �� ����������
CasO and IanR IaSanJLs  ���������  �  ��������� 

����������   ����� �� � ��������

������(s at 1unL ��� ����������
 -PnanJPaS 

SPaIPSPtPLs at 
amortPsLd 

Jost

 ;otaS 

Financial liabilities 
<nJSaPmLd dP]PdLnd  �������  ������� 
<npaPd dP]PdLnd  ������  ������ 
;radL payaISLs� otOLr payaISLs and pro]PsPons ������� �� ������� ��

��� ���� � ��� ���� �

42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

;OL Company�s aJtP]PtPLs L_posL Pt to JLrtaPn ÄnanJPaS rPsRs. :uJO ÄnanJPaS rPsRs LmanatL Mrom ]arPous MaJtors 
tOat PnJSudL� Iut arL not SPmPtLd to marRLt rPsR� JrLdPt rPsR and SPXuPdPty rPsR.

;OL Company JurrLntSy ÄnanJLs Pts opLratPons tOrouNO LXuPty and manaNLmLnt oM ^orRPnN JapPtaS ^PtO a 
]PL^ to maPntaPn an approprPatL mP_ ILt^LLn ]arPous sourJLs oM ÄnanJL to mPnPmPsL rPsR. ;OL Company�s rPsR 
manaNLmLnt poSPJPLs and oIQLJtP]Ls arL as MoSSo^s!

42.1 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

CrLdPt rPsR rLprLsLnts tOL rPsR oM a Soss PM tOL JountLr party MaPSs to dPsJOarNL Pts oISPNatPon and JausLs 
tOL otOLr party to PnJur a ÄnanJPaS Soss. ;OL Company attLmpts to JontroS JrLdPt rPsR Iy monPtorPnN JrLdPt 
L_posurLs� SPmPtPnN transaJtPons ^PtO spLJPÄJ JountLrpartPLs and JontPnuaSSy assLssPnN tOL JrLdPt^ortOPnLss 
oM JountLrpartPLs.

ConJLntratPon oM JrLdPt rPsR arPsLs ̂ OLn a numILr oM JountLrpartPLs arL LnNaNLd Pn sPmPSar IusPnLss aJtP]PtPLs 
or Oa]L sPmPSar LJonomPJ MLaturLs tOat ^ouSd JausL tOLPr aIPSPty to mLLt JontraJtuaS oISPNatPons to IL sPmPSarSy 
aMMLJtLd Iy JOanNLs Pn LJonomPJ� poSPtPJaS or otOLr JondPtPons. ConJLntratPon oM JrLdPt rPsR PndPJatLs tOL 
rLSatP]L sLnsPtP]Pty oM tOL Company�s pLrMormanJL to dL]LSopmLnts aMMLJtPnN a partPJuSar Pndustry.

CrLdPt rPsR arPsLs Mrom dLrP]atP]L ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnts� Pn]LstmLnts �L_JLpt Mor tOL Pn]LstmLnts Pn .o]LrnmLnt 
sLJurPtPLs� and IaSanJLs ^PtO IanRs and ÄnanJPaS PnstPtutPons� as ^LSS as JrLdPt L_posurLs to JustomLrs� 
LmpSoyLLs PnJSudPnN tradL dLIts� otOLr rLJLP]aISLs and JommPttLd transaJtPons ^PtO tOL Nroup JompanPLs. 
6ut oM tOL totaS ÄnanJPaS assLts oM 9s � ����.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s � ����.��� mPSSPon�� tOL ÄnanJPaS assLts 
^OPJO arL suIQLJt to JrLdPt rPsR amountLd to 9s ������.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ������.��  mPSSPon�� PnJSudPnN 
tradL rLJLP]aISLs Mrom No]LrnmLnt aNLnJPLs.

6ut oM tOL totaS tradL dLIts amountPnN to 9s �����.� � mPSSPon �����! 9s �����.��� mPSSPon�� an amount oM 
9s  ��.��� mPSSPon �����! 9s ���.��� mPSSPon� rLSatLs to dPrLJt JustomLrs. 

-or tradL dLIts� PntLrnaS rPsR assLssmLnt proJLss dLtLrmPnLs tOL JrLdPt XuaSPty oM LaJO JustomLr� taRPnN 
Pnto aJJount tOLPr ÄnanJPaS posPtPon� past L_pLrPLnJL and otOLr MaJtors. IndP]PduaS rPsR SPmPts arL sLt IasLd 
on PntLrnaS or L_tLrnaS ratPnNs Pn aJJordanJL ^PtO SPmPts sLt Iy tOL manaNLmLnt. ;OL utPSPsatPon oM JrLdPt 
SPmPts Ps rLNuSarSy monPtorLd. (JJordPnNSy� tOL manaNLmLnt ILSPL]Ls tOat tOL JrLdPt rPsR Ps mPnPmaS and Pn tOL 
opPnPon oM tOL manaNLmLnt� tOL Company Ps not L_posLd to maQor JonJLntratPon oM JrLdPt rPsR. 

42.2 Liquidity risk

LPXuPdPty rPsR Ps tOL rPsR tOat tOL Company ^PSS IL unaISL to mLLt Pts MundPnN rLXuPrLmLnts. ;o Nuard aNaPnst 
tOPs rPsR� tOL Company Oas dP]LrsPÄLd MundPnN sourJLs and assLts arL manaNLd ^PtO SPXuPdPty Pn mPnd� 
maPntaPnPnN a OLaStOy IaSanJL oM JasO and JasO LXuP]aSLnts. ;OL maturPty proÄSL oM tradL dLIts Ps monPtorLd 
to LnsurL adLXuatL SPXuPdPty Ps maPntaPnLd. ;OL manaNLmLnt MorLJasts tOL SPXuPdPty oM tOL Company on tOL 
IasPs oM L_pLJtLd JasO outÅo^s JonsPdLrPnN tOL SL]LS oM SPXuPd assLts nLJLssary to mLLt suJO outÅo^s. 

;OL maturPty proÄSL oM tOL Company�s SPaIPSPty IasLd on JontraJtuaS maturPtPLs Ps dPsJSosLd Pn notL ��.�.� 
to tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts. 

42.3 Market Risk

MarRLt rPsR Ps tOL rPsR tOat tOL MaPr ]aSuL or MuturL JasO Åo^s oM a ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnt ^PSS ÅuJtuatL ILJausL 
oM JOanNLs Pn marRLt prPJLs. MarRLt rPsR JomprPsLs oM tOrLL typLs oM rPsRs! JurrLnJy rPsR� PntLrLst ratL rPsR 
and otOLr prPJL rPsR.

42.3.1 Currency risk

-orLPNn JurrLnJy rPsR arPsLs maPnSy ^OLrL rLJLP]aISLs and payaISLs L_Pst duL to transaJtPons LntLrLd Pnto 
Pn MorLPNn JurrLnJPLs. ;OL Company manaNLs Pts L_posurL aNaPnst MorLPNn JurrLnJy rPsR Iy LntLrPnN Pnto 
MorLPNn L_JOanNL JontraJts ^OLrL JonsPdLrLd nLJLssary.

-orLPNn JurrLnJy rPsR arPsLs maPnSy ̂ OLrL rLJLP]aISLs and payaISLs L_Pst duL to transaJtPons LntLrLd Pnto Pn 
MorLPNn JurrLnJPLs. ;OL Company prPmarPSy Oas MorLPNn JurrLnJy L_posurLs Pn <: +oSSars �<:+�� 1apanLsL 
@Ln �17@�� ;OaP )Oat �;/)� and :PnNaporL +oSSars �:.+�. ;OL nLt MorLPNn JurrLnJy L_posurL at 1unL ��� 
���  Ps <:+ ��.��� mPSSPon �����! <:+ �.��� mPSSPon�� 17@   �.��� mPSSPon �����! 17@ �����.��  mPSSPon�� 
;/) �.� � mPSSPon �����! ;/) �.��� mPSSPon� and :.+ �.��� mPSSPon �����! :.+ 5PS�.

6ut oM tOL totaS IanR IaSanJL and ;+9s oM 9s ������.��  mPSSPon mPSSPon �����! 9s ���� �. �� mPSSPon� 
pSaJLd ^PtO IanRs� amounts aNNrLNatPnN to 9s ������. �� mPSSPon �����! 9s ������.��� mPSSPon� Oa]L 
ILLn pSaJLd ̂ PtO IanRs Oa]PnN JrLdPt ratPnN oM ((� and aIo]L� ̂ OLrLas tOL rLmaPnPnN amounts arL pSaJLd 
^PtO IanRs Oa]PnN SonN tLrm mPnPmum JrLdPt ratPnN oM ((.

+uL to tOL Company»s SonN standPnN IusPnLss rLSatPonsOPps ^PtO Pts JountLrpartPLs and aMtLr NP]PnN duL 
JonsPdLratPon to tOLPr stronN ÄnanJPaS standPnN� manaNLmLnt doLs not L_pLJt non¶pLrMormanJL Iy tOLsL 
JountLr partPLs on tOLPr oISPNatPons to tOL Company.
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42.3.2 Interest rate risk

IntLrLst � marR�up ratL rPsR Ps tOL rPsR tOat tOL ]aSuL oM a ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnt ^PSS ÅuJtuatL duL to JOanNLs 
Pn tOL marRLt PntLrLst � marR�up ratLs. :LnsPtP]Pty to PntLrLst � marR�up ratL rPsR arPsLs Mrom mPsmatJOLs 
oM ÄnanJPaS assLts and ÄnanJPaS SPaIPSPtPLs tOat maturL or rLprPJL Pn a NP]Ln pLrPod. ;OL Company manaNLs 
tOLsL mPsmatJOLs tOrouNO rPsR manaNLmLnt stratLNPLs ^OLrL sPNnPÄJant JOanNLs Pn Nap posPtPon Jan IL 
adQustLd. ;OL Company Ps L_posLd to PntLrLst � marR�up ratL rPsR Pn rLspLJt oM tOL MoSSo^PnN!

��������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������

,MMLJtP]L 
PntLrLst � 
marR�up 

ratL

IntLrLst � marR�up ILarPnN 5on�PntLrLst � marR�up ILarPnN ;otaS

MaturPty upto 
onL yLar

MaturPty aMtLr 
onL yLar

:uI�totaS
MaturPty upto 

onL yLar
MaturPty aMtLr 

onL yLar
:uI�totaS

1unL ���
 ��� 

� ����������������������������������������������������� �9upLLs Pn ����� ����������������������������������������������������
On statement of financial 

position financial instruments

Financial assets 
Loans and ad]anJLs 3.00-3.50 27,328 15,906 43,234 7,718  -   7,718 50,952 
LonN�tLrm dLposPts  -    -    -    -    -   11,129 11,129 11,129 
;radL dLIts  -    -    -    -   2,547,915  -   2,547,915 2,547,915 
(JJruLd rLturn  -    -    -    -   34,846  -   34,846 34,846 
6tOLr rLJLP]aISLs  -    -    -    -   552,665  -   552,665 552,665 
In]LstmLnts 12.30-15 23,402,464  -   23,402,464  -    -    -   23,402,464 
CasO and IanR IaSanJLs  10.25-11.25 2,937,844  -   2,937,844 343,938  -   343,938 3,281,782 

26,367,636 15,906 26,383,542 3,487,082 11,129 3,498,211 29,881,753 
Financial liabilities
LonN tLrm Soan  3.25  -   80,612 80,612  -    -   80,612 
<nJSaPmLd dP]PdLnd  -    -    -    -   174,538  -   174,538 174,538 
<npaPd dP]PdLnd  -    -    -    -   121,059  -   121,059 121,059 
;radL payaISLs� otOLr payaISLs and 

 pro]PsPons  -    -    -    -   13,266,530 13,266,530 13,266,530 
 -    -    -    -   13,562,127  -   13,562,127  13,642,739 

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

,MMLJtP]L 
PntLrLst � 
marR�up 

ratL

IntLrLst � marR�up ILarPnN 5on�PntLrLst � marR�up ILarPnN ;otaS

MaturPty upto 
onL yLar

MaturPty aMtLr 
onL yLar

:uI�totaS
MaturPty upto 

onL yLar
MaturPty aMtLr 

onL yLar
:uI�totaS

1unL ���
 ����

� ����������������������������������������������������� �9upLLs Pn ����� ����������������������������������������������������

On statement of financial 
  position financial instruments

Financial assets 
Loans and ad]anJLs �.����.�� �����  ������ ������ � ����  �   � ���� ������ 
LonN�tLrm dLposPts  �    �    �    �    �    ����  ����  ���� 
;radL dLIts  �    �    �    �   ���������  �   ��������� ��������� 
(JJruLd rLturn  �    �    �    �   �������  �   ������� ������� 
6tOLr rLJLP]aISLs  �    �    �    �   �� ����  �   �� ���� �� ���� 
In]LstmLnts  �.����.�� ����������  �   ����������  �    �    �   ���������� 
CasO and IanR IaSanJLs  �.����.�� ������� �  �   ������� � �������  �   ������� ��������� 

��� ������ ������ ��� ������ ���� � �   ���� ���� ���� � �������� 
Financial liabilities
<nJSaPmLd dP]PdLnd  �    �    �    �   �������  �   ������� ������� 
<npaPd dP]PdLnd  �    �    �    �   ������  �   ������ ������ 
;radL payaISLs� otOLr payaISLs and 

pro]PsPons  �    �    �    �   ������� ��  �   ������� �� ������� �� 
 �    �    �    �   ��� ���� �  �   ��� ���� � ��� ���� �

a) Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments

(s at 1unL ��� ��� � tOL Company OoSds marRLt trLasury IPSSs ^OPJO arL JSassPÄLd as ÄnanJPaS assLts 
at MaPr ]aSuL tOrouNO proÄt or Soss� L_posPnN tOL Company to MaPr ]aSuL PntLrLst ratL rPsR. In JasL oM ��� 
IasPs poPnts PnJrLasL � dLJrLasL Pn ratLs announJLd Iy tOL -PnanJPaS MarRLts (ssoJPatPon oM 7aRPstan 
Mor marRLt trLasury IPSSs and ^PtO aSS otOLr ]arPaISLs OLSd Jonstant� tOL nLt proÄt ILMorL ta_ Mor tOL yLar 
oM tOL Company ^ouSd Oa]L ILLn So^Lr � OPNOLr Iy 9s ��.��� mPSSon.

b) Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments

-P_Ld ratL PnstrumLnts JomprPsL oM ;+9s� IaSanJLs ^PtO IanRs and Soans to LmpSoyLLs. ;OL PnJomL 
Mrom tOLsL ÄnanJPaS assLts arL suIstantPaSSy PndLpLndLnt oM JOanNLs Pn marRLt PntLrLst ratLs L_JLpt Mor 
JOanNLs� PM any� as a rLsuSt oM ÅuJtuatPon Pn rLspLJtP]L MaPr ]aSuLs. ;OL Company�s PnJomL Mrom tOLsL 
ÄnanJPaS assLts doLs not Oa]L any MaPr ]aSuL PmpaJt.

42.3.3 Price risk

7rPJL rPsR Ps tOL rPsR tOat tOL MaPr ]aSuL or MuturL JasO Åo^s oM a ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnt ^PSS ÅuJtuatL as 
a rLsuSt oM JOanNLs Pn marRLt prPJLs �otOLr tOan tOosL arPsPnN Mrom PntLrLst ratL rPsR or JurrLnJy rPsR� 
^OLtOLr tOosL JOanNLs arL JausLd Iy MaJtors spLJPÄJ to tOL PndP]PduaS ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnt or Pts 
PssuLr� or MaJtors aMMLJtPnN aSS sPmPSar ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnts tradLd Pn tOL marRLt. 

42.3.4 Fair value of financial instruments

-aPr ]aSuL Ps tOL amount Mor ^OPJO an assLt JouSd IL L_JOanNLd� or SPaIPSPty sLttSLd� ILt^LLn 
Rno^SLdNLaISL ^PSSPnN partPLs Pn an arm�s SLnNtO transaJtPon. ConsLXuLntSy� dPMMLrLnJLs Jan arPsL 
ILt^LLn JarryPnN ]aSuLs and tOL MaPr ]aSuL LstPmatLs.

<ndLrSyPnN tOL dLÄnPtPon oM MaPr ]aSuL Ps tOL prLsumptPon tOat tOL Company Ps a NoPnN JonJLrn ^PtOout 
any PntLntPon or rLXuPrLmLnt to JurtaPS matLrPaSSy tOL sJaSL oM Pts opLratPons or to undLrtaRL a transaJtPon 
on ad]LrsL tLrms.

-PnanJPaS assLts ^OPJO arL tradLd Pn an opLn marRLt arL rL]aSuLd at tOL marRLt prPJLs prL]aPSPnN on 
tOL rLportPnN datL. ;OL LstPmatLd MaPr ]aSuL oM aSS otOLr ÄnanJPaS assLts and SPaIPSPtPLs Ps JonsPdLrLd 
not sPNnPÄJantSy dPMMLrLnt Mrom tOLPr JarryPnN ]aSuLs as tOL PtLms arL LPtOLr sOort tLrm Pn naturL or 
pLrPodPJaSSy rLprPJLd.

IntLrnatPonaS -PnanJPaS 9LportPnN :tandard �� �-PnanJPaS InstrumLnts! +PsJSosurL� rLXuPrLs tOL Company 
to JSassPMy MaPr ]aSuL mLasurLmLnts usPnN a MaPr ]aSuL OPLrarJOy tOat rLÅLJts tOL sPNnPÄJanJL oM tOL 
Pnputs usLd Pn maRPnN tOL mLasurLmLnts. ;OL MaPr ]aSuL OPLrarJOy Oas tOL MoSSo^PnN SL]LSs!

� XuotLd prPJLs �unadQustLd� Pn aJtP]L marRLts Mor PdLntPJaS assLts or SPaIPSPtPLs �SL]LS ��"

� Pnputs otOLr tOan XuotLd prPJLs PnJSudLd ^PtOPn SL]LS � tOat arL oIsLr]aISL Mor tOL assLt or SPaIPSPty� 
LPtOLr dPrLJtSy �P.L.� JurrLnt marRLt prPJLs� or PndPrLJtSy �P.L.� dLrP]Ld Mrom JurrLnt marRLt prPJLs� �SL]LS 
��" and

� Pnputs Mor tOL assLt or SPaIPSPty tOat arL not IasLd on oIsLr]aISL marRLt data �unoIsLr]aISL Pnputs� 
�SL]LS ��.

;OL SL]LS Pn tOL MaPr ]aSuL OPLrarJOy ^PtOPn ^OPJO tOL MaPr ]aSuL mLasurLmLnt oM a ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnt Ps 
JatLNorPsLd Pn Pts LntPrLty sOaSS IL dLtLrmPnLd on tOL IasPs oM tOL So^Lst SL]LS Pnput tOat Ps sPNnPÄJant 
to tOL MaPr ]aSuL mLasurLmLnt oM tOat ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnt.
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-------- As at June 30, 2019 ------- �������� (s at 1unL ��� ���� �������� 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 LL]LS � LL]LS � LL]LS �
���������������������������������� 9upLLs Pn ���� ��������������������������������� 

-PnanJPaS assLts �at MaPr ]aSuL
tOrouNO proÄt or Soss�
� LPstLd mutuaS Mund unPts  -    -    -    ����� ��  �    �   
� .o]LrnmLnt sLJurPtPLs � MarRLt ;rLasury )PSSs  -   4,402,464  -    �    �    �   
� +LrP]atP]L ÄnanJPaS PnstrumLnts  -    -   10,994  �    �   ������ 

43 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

;OL Company�s oIQLJtP]Ls ^OLn manaNPnN JapPtaS arL to saMLNuard tOL Company�s aIPSPty to JontPnuL 
as a NoPnN JonJLrn Pn ordLr to pro]PdL rLturns Mor sOarLOoSdLrs and ILnLÄts Mor otOLr staRLOoSdLrs and 
to maPntaPn an optPmaS JapPtaS struJturL to rLduJL tOL Jost oM JapPtaS. ;OL Company Ps JurrLntSy ÄnanJPnN 
Pts opLratPons prPmarPSy tOrouNO LXuPty and ^orRPnN JapPtaS. ;OL Company Oas no matLrPaS NLarPnN rPsR 
Pn tOL JurrLnt yLar nor any Pn tOL prPor yLar.

44 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS DURING THE CURRENT YEAR

a� +urPnN tOL yLar� tOL Company Oas madL sPNnPÄJant JapPtaSPsatPons Pn IuPSdPnNs and pSant and 
maJOPnLry on tOL JompSLtPon oM muStPpSL proQLJts. -urtOLr� tOL Company aSso Oas onNoPnN proQLJts Pn 
Pts pSan Mor ^OPJO tOL Company Oas LntLrLd Pnto sPNnPÄJant JapPtaS JommPtmLnts.

I� ;OL Company Pmports sPNnPÄJant portPon oM ra^ matLrPaSs� tradPnN stoJR and sparL parts Pn MorLPNn 
JurrLnJy. ConsLXuLntSy� tOL Company�s ÄnanJPaS pLrMormanJL PnJSudPnN Nross proÄt marNPn Oas ILLn 
sPNnPÄJantSy aMMLJtLd on aJJount oM sPNnPÄJant dL]aSuatPon oM MunJtPonaS JurrLnJy to MorLPNn JurrLnJy 
Iy appro_PmatLSy ���.

45 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

;OL )oard oM +PrLJtors Pn Pts mLLtPnN OLSd on (uNust ��� ���  Oas proposLd a JasO dP]PdLnd Pn rLspLJt 
oM tOL yLar LndLd 1unL ��� ���  oM 9s ��.� �����! JasO dP]PdLnd oM 9s ��� pLr sOarL. ;OPs Ps Pn addPtPon 
to tOL PntLrPm JasO dP]PdLnd oM 9s ��.� �����! 9s  �� pLr sOarL rLsuStPnN Pn a totaS dP]PdLnd Mor tOL yLar 
oM ��� �����! 9s ���� pLr sOarL. ;OL +PrLJtors Oa]L aSso announJLd approprPatPon oM 9s ����� mPSSPon 
�����! 9s ���� mPSSPon� to NLnLraS rLsLr]L. ;OLsL approprPatPons ^PSS IL appro]Ld Pn tOL MortOJomPnN 
(nnuaS .LnLraS MLLtPnN. ;OL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts Mor tOL yLar LndLd 1unL ��� ���  do not PnJSudL tOL 
LMMLJt oM tOLsL approprPatPons ^OPJO ^PSS IL aJJountLd Mor Pn tOL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts Mor tOL yLar LndPnN 
1unL ��� ����.

46 GENERAL

-PNurLs Pn tOLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts Oa]L ILLn roundLd oMM to tOL nLarLst tOousand 9upLLs.

47 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

CorrLspondPnN ÄNurLs Oa]L ILLn rLarranNLd and rLJSassPÄLd� ^OLrL]Lr nLJLssary� Mor tOL purposL oM 
ILttLr prLsLntatPon and JomparPson.

48 DATE OF AUTHORISATION
 
;OLsL ÄnanJPaS statLmLnts ^LrL autOorPsLd Mor PssuL on (uNust ��� ���  Iy tOL )oard oM +PrLJtors oM 
tOL Company.

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2019

(XLLS Loon
COPLM -PnanJPaS 6MMPJLr

(SP (sNOar 1amaSP
COPLM ,_LJutP]L

 @uQP ;aRarada
=PJL COaPrman 
 +PrLJtor

Number of Shareholders Shareholdings’Slab Total Shares Held

����� � to ��� ���� �
����� ��� to ��� ���������
�� ��� to ���� �������
��� ���� to ���� �������
�� ���� to ����� �������
�� ����� to ����� �������
�� ����� to ����� �������
� ����� to ����� �������
�� ����� to ����� �������
� ����� to ����� �������
�� ����� to ����� ���� ��
� ����� to ����� �������
� ����� to ����� �������
� ����� to ����� �������
� ����� to ����� �������
� ����� to ����� ������
� ����� to ����� �������
� ����� to ����� � ����
� ����� to  ���� ������
�  ���� to ������ � �����
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �� ����
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ ���������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� � ���� to ������ � �����
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to � ���� �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� � ���� to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������ to ������ �������
� ������� to ������� ������ ��
� ������� to ������� ���������
� �� ���� to �� ���� ��� �����
�  ������ to  ������  ��������
� � ������ to � ������ � ��������
� �������� to �������� ����������

4,126  78,600,000 

Pattern of Shareholding
(s oM 1unL ��� ��� 
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NO. Categories of Shareholders
 Number of 
Shares Held 

 Category 
Wise No. of 
Folios / CDC 

Accounts 

 Category 
Wise Shares 

held 
Percentage

1 Directors and their spouse(s) and
minor children

(LI :. /()I)  �������  �  ������� �.� �
M6/(M,+(LI 9. /()I)  ������� 
(LI (:./(9 1(M(LI  ������ 
(A(M -(9<8<,  ��� 
7(9=,A ./I(:  ��� 
IM9(5 (. /()I)  ����� 
(I:/( A,)( ./I(:  ��� 
M<5IA,/ (LI /()I)  ����� 

2 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
;/(L LIMI;,+  ��� �����  �  �� ������ �.���
/()I) I5:<9(5C, C6M7(5@ LIMI;,+  ������ 
M6/(M,+(LI /()I) >,L-(9, ;9<:;  ����� 

3 Executives     ����  �.���
4 Public Sector Companies and Corporations  �  ������� �.���
5 Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking

finance companies, insurance companies, takaful, 
modarabas and pension funds  ��  ����� � �.���

6 Mutual Funds
C+C � ;9<:;,, (L-(L(/ ./7 =(L<, -<5+   �  ��  �� ���� �.���
C+C � ;9<:;,, (2+ I5+,? ;9(C2,9 -<5+  ����  
C+C � ;9<:;,, 5(-( :;6C2 -<5+  � ���� 
C+C � ;9<:;,, 5)7 )(L(5C,+ -<5+  ����� 
C+C � ;9<:;,, 5I;�,8<I;@ M(92,; 67769;<5I;@ -<5+  ������ 
C+C � ;9<:;,, 5)7 :(9M(@( IA(-( -<5+  ����� 
C+C � ;9<:;,, 5(;I65(L I5=,:;M,5; �<5I;� ;9<:;  ������� 
C+C � ;9<:;,, 7IML =(L<, ,8<I;@ -<5+  �� �� 
C+C � ;9<:;,, 5I; I:L(MIC ,8<I;@ -<5+   ����� 
C+C � ;9<:;,, /)L M<L;I � (::,; -<5+  ����� 
C+C � ;9<:;,, (L-(L(/ ./7 :;6C2 -<5+  �� 
C+C � ;9<:;,, (L-(L(/ ./7 (L7/( -<5+  �� 
C+C � ;9<:;,, -I9:; C(7I;(L M<;<(L -<5+  ����� 

7 Foreign Investors / Companies  ��  ���� ����  ��.���
/oSdPnN �� or morL ]otPnN PntLrLst

6=,9:,(: 7(2I:;(5 I5=,:;69: (.  ���������� 
;6@6;( M6;69 C69769(;I65  � �������� 
;6@6;( ;:<:/6 C69769(;I65   �������� 

8 General Public
a. LoJaS  ��������   ����   ��� ����  �.���
I. -orLPNn  �������  ��� 

9 OTHERS  ���  ��������� �.���
TOTAL 4,126  78,600,000 100.00%

Pattern of Shareholding
(s oM 1unL ��� ��� 

+LtaPS oM tradPnN oM sOarLs Iy ,_LJutP]Ls � +PrLJtors and tOLPr spousL durPnN tOL pLrPod Mrom
1uSy �� ���  to 1unL ��� ��� .

Name of Executive / Director  No. of Shares purchased 
Mrs. MunPaLO (SP /aIPI >�o Mr. (SP :. /aIPI  ����� 
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Ten Years Performance Indicators

Financial Summary 2019 ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ����

Income Statement
5Lt rL]LnuL 9s Pn º��� 157,996,212 �� �������  ���� ������ �����������   ���������  ����������  ����� ����  ��� ������  ����������  ���� ����  
.ross proÄt 9s Pn º���  19,191,674  ����������  � �� ����   ��������    ����������  ��� �����  ���������  ���������  ���� ����  ��������� 
7roÄt ILMorL ta_atPon 9s Pn º���  18,975,929  ���   ����  � ��������  ���� �����  ���������   ������� �  �� � ����  ���������  ���������  ��������  
7roÄt aMtLr ta_atPon 9s Pn º���  13,714,975  ����������  ����������  ������� ��   ��������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ���������  ��������� 
+P]PdLnds 9s Pn º���  9,039,000  ����������   ��� ����  ���������  ���������  ���������  �� ������  ���������  ���� ����  ���� ���� 

Balance Sheet
:OarL JapPtaS 9s Pn º���  786,000  �������  �������  �������  �������  �������  �������  �������  �������  ������� 
9LsLr]Ls 9s Pn º���  39,259,309  ��� ������  ������� ��  ���������   ����� ����  � ��� ����  ��� ���� �  ����������  ����������  ���������� 
-P_Ld (ssLts 9s Pn º���  13,898,033  ��������   ���������  �� ������  ��� �����  ���������  ���������  ������ ��  ���������  ��������� 
5Lt JurrLnt assLts 9s Pn º���  26,679,161  � ��������  ����������  ����������  ����������  ����������  ����������  ���� �����  ���������    �������� 
LonN tLrm SPaIPSPtPLs 9s Pn º���  558,920  ������  �� ��  �    �    �    �    �    �    �   

Investor Information
.ross proÄt ratPo � aNL 12.15 ��.�� ��.�� ��.�� ��.�� ��.��  .�� �.�� �.�� �.��
5Lt proÄt ratPo � aNL 8.68 ��.�  ��.�� ��.��  .�� �.� �.�� �.� �.�� �.��
,arnPnNs pLr sOarL 9s 174.49 ���.�� ���.�� ���.�� ���. � � .�� ��.�� ��.�� ��. � ��.��
In]Lntory turno]Lr ;PmLs 11 �� �� �� �� � � �� �� ��
+LIt JoSSLJtPon pLrPod +ays 5 � � � � �� � �  ��
(]LraNL Ä_Ld assLts turno]Lr ;PmLs 14.90 ��.� � . � ��.�� ��.� ��.�� ��.�� � .  ��.�� ��.��
)rLaRup ]aSuL pLr sOarL 9s 509.48 ���.� � �. � ���.�� ���.�� ���.�� ���.�� ���.�� �� .�� ���.��
MarRLt prPJL pLr sOarL 

� as on 1unL �� 9s 1,203.92 �����.�� ��� �.��  � .�� ���� .�� ���. � ���.�� ���.�� ���.�� ���.��
� /PNO ]aSuL durPnN tOL pLrPod 9s 1,589.90 �� ��.�� �����.�� �����.�� �����.�� �� .�� ���.�� ���.�� �� .�� ���.��
� Lo^ ]aSuL durPnN tOL pLrPod 9s 1,030.62 �����.��  ��.�� ���.�� ���.�� ���.�� ���.�� ���.�� ���.�� ���.��

7rPJL LarnPnN ratPo ;PmLs 6.90 �.�� ��.�� �.�� ��.�� ��. � �.�� �.�� �.�� �.  
+P]PdLnd pLr sOarL 9s 115.00 ���.�� ���.�� ���.��  ��.��  � .��  ��.�� ��.�� ��.�� ��.��
+P]PdLnd yPLSd � aNL 9.55  .�� �.�� ��.��  �.��  �.��  �.�� ��.�� �.�� �.��
+P]PdLnd payout � aNL 65.91 � .�� � .�� ��.��  � .��  � .��  ��.�� ��.�� ��. � ��.��
+P]PdLnd Jo]Lr ;PmLs 1.52 �.�� �.�� �.��  �.��  �.��  �.�� �.�� �.�� �. �
9Lturn on LXuPty � aNL 34.25 ��. � ��.�� ��.�� ��. � � .�� ��. � ��.� � .�� ��.��
+LIt to LXuPty 9atPo 0 : 1 � ! � � ! � � ! � � ! � � ! � � ! � � ! � � ! � � ! �
CurrLnt ratPo 9atPo 2.1:1 �.��!� �.��!� �.�� ! � �.�� ! � �.�� ! � �.   ! � �.�� ! � �.�� ! � �.�� ! � 

Other Information
<nPts soSd 5os.  66,211  ������  ������  ������  ������  ������  ������  ������  ��� ��  ������ 
<nPts 7roduJLd 5os.  65,346  ������  � � ��  ���� �  ������  ������  ������  ��� ��  �����   ������ 
Manpo^Lr 5os.  3,349  �����  ����   �����  �����  ��� �  �����  ��� �  �����  �� �� 
ContrPIutPon to 5atPonaS ,_JOLXuLr 9s Pn º��� 52,307,841 ���������� ��� � �� � ���������� ���������� � ������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ����������
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5otPJL oM (nnuaS .LnLraS MLLtPnN

5otPJL Ps OLrLIy NP]Ln tOat tOL ��tO (nnuaS .LnLraS MLLtPnN oM I5+<: M6;69 C6M7(5@ LIMI;,+ ^PSS IL 
OLSd on ;uLsday� 6JtoILr �� ���  at  !�� a.m. at tOL InstPtutL oM COartLrLd (JJountants oM 7aRPstan sPtuatLd 
at COartLrLd (JJountants (]LnuL� CSPMton� 2araJOP� to transaJt tOL MoSSo^PnN IusPnLss!

A) ORDINARY BUSINESS

�. ;o rLJLP]L� JonsPdLr and adopt tOL (nnuaS (udPtLd -PnanJPaS statLmLnts oM tOL Company Mor tOL yLar 
LndLd 1unL ��� ��� � toNLtOLr ^PtO tOL 9Lport oM tOL +PrLJtors and (udPtors tOLrLon.

�. ;o appro]L JasO dP]PdLnd ��������� � on tOL ordPnary sOarLs oM tOL Company. ;OL dPrLJtors Oa]L 
rLJommLndLd a -PnaS CasO dP]PdLnd at ���� P.L. 9s ��.�� pLr sOarL. ;OPs Ps Pn addPtPon to tOL 
JomIPnLd IntLrPm +P]PdLnd oM ���� P.L. 9s. ��.� pLr sOarL aSrLady paPd. ;OL totaS dP]PdLnd Mor �����
���  ^PSS tOus amount to ����� P.L. 9s. ��� pLr sOarL.  

�. ;o appoPnt audPtors and Ä_ tOLPr rLmunLratPon Mor tOL yLar LndPnN 1unL ��� ����. ;OL prLsLnt audPtors 
M�s. (.-. -LrNuson 
 Co.� COartLrLd (JJountants� rLtPrL and ILPnN LSPNPISL Oa]L oMMLrLd tOLmsLS]Ls 
Mor rL�appoPntmLnt.

�. ;o prLsLnt any otOLr IusPnLss ^PtO tOL pLrmPssPon oM tOL COaPrman.

B) SPECIAL BUSINESS

�. ;o oItaPn JonsLnt Mrom tOL mLmILrs oM tOL Company Pn tLrms oM 5otPÄJatPon 5o. :.9.6. ����������� 
datLd May ��� ���� PssuLd Iy :LJurPtPLs oM ,_JOanNL CommPssPon oM 7aRPstan Mor tOL transmPssPon oM 
annuaS audPtLd aJJounts� notPJL oM tOL NLnLraS mLLtPnNs and otOLr PnMormatPon JontaPnLd tOLrLPn oM tOL 
Company LPtOLr tOrouNO C+ or +=+ or <:) PnstLad oM transmPttPnN tOL samL Pn Oard JopPLs.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 REGARDING 
THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

;OPs statLmLnt sLts out tOL matLrPaS MaJts JonJLrnPnN tOL spLJPaS IusPnLss� NP]Ln Pn aNLnda PtLm 5o. � oM 
tOL notPJL� PntLndLd to IL transaJtLd at tOL (nnuaS .LnLraS MLLtPnN. 

Item # 5 of the Notice
;OL +PrLJtors oM tOL Company Oa]L rLJommLndLd tOat tOL mLmILrs oM tOL Company IL pro]PdLd 
tOL optPon to rLJLP]L annuaS IaSanJL sOLLt� proÄt 
 Soss aJJount� audPtor»s rLport and dPrLJtors» rLport 
LtJ. �¸annuaS audPtLd aJJounts¹� tOrouNO C+�+=+�<:) at tOLPr rLNPstLrLd addrLss and to aJJordPnNSy 
PmpSLmLnt tOL :LJurPtPLs and ,_JOanNL CommPssPon oM 7aRPstan»s dPrLJtP]L JommunPJatLd tOrouNO 
5otPÄJatPon 5o. :96 ����I� ���� datLd ��st May ����.  

(JJordPnNSy tOL )oard oM +PrLJtors oM tOL Company Oas rLJommLndLd tOat tOL MoSSo^PnN ordPnary 
rLsoSutPons IL passLd at tOL (nnuaS .LnLraS MLLtPnN Jon]LnLd Mor ;uLsday� 6JtoILr �� ��� !

“RESOLVED that the consent and approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded for transmission of annual reports including annual audited accounts, auditor’s report 
and director’s report, notices of annual general meetings and other information contained therein 
of the Company to the members for future years through CD/DVD/USB instead of transmitting 
the same in hard copies.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Executive Officer or the Company Secretary of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, take or cause to be taken all necessary 
actions to comply with all legal formalities and requirements and the file necessary documents as 
may be necessary or incidental for the purposes of implementing this resolution.”

)y ordLr oM tOL )oard

2araJOP. MuOammad (rPM (naLr
(uNust ��� ���  Company :LJrLtary

NOTES:
1. Closure of Share Transfer Books

;OL :OarL ;ransMLr )ooRs oM tOL Company ^PSS IL JSosLd Mrom 6JtoILr ��� ���  to 6JtoILr ��� ���  �IotO days PnJSusP]L� Mor 
tOL purposL oM tOL (nnuaS .LnLraS MLLtPnN and paymLnt oM tOL ÄnaS dP]PdLnd. ;ransMLr rLXuLsts rLJLP]Ld Iy C+C :OarL 9LNPstrar 
:Lr]PJLs LPmPtLd� C+C /ousL�   �)� )SoJR ¸)¹� :.M.C./.:.� MaPn :OaOraO�L�-aPsaS� 2araJOP������. ;LS! ����������� <(5! ����
�������� ,maPS! PnMo'JdJsrsS.Jom at tOL JSosL oM IusPnLss on 6JtoILr ��� ���  ^PSS IL trLatLd Pn tPmL Mor tOL purposL oM dLtLrmPnPnN 
aIo]L LntPtSLmLnt to tOL transMLrLLs Mor paymLnt oM ÄnaS dP]PdLnd and to attLnd tOL (nnuaS .LnLraS MLLtPnN.

2. Proxy
( mLmILr LntPtSLd to attLnd and ]otL at tOPs .LnLraS MLLtPnN Ps LntPtSLd to appoPnt a 7ro_y to attLnd� spLaR and ]otL Pn OPs pSaJL 
at tOL MLLtPnN. InstrumLnt appoPntPnN a pro_y must IL dLposPtLd at tOL 9LNPstLrLd 6MÄJL oM tOL Company at SLast Morty LPNOt Oours 
ILMorL tOL tPmL oM tOL mLLtPnN.

;o MaJPSPtatL PdLntPÄJatPon Mor rPNOt to attLnd tOL (nnuaS .LnLraS MLLtPnN� :OarLOoSdLr ^OosL OoSdPnNs arL on tOL CLntraS +LposPtory 
:ystLm �C+:� or OPs 7ro_y sOouSd autOLntPJatL OPs PdLntPty Iy sOo^PnN OPs orPNPnaS C5IC or orPNPnaS 7assport at tOL tPmL oM attLndPnN 
tOL mLLtPnN" aSonN ^PtO tOL 7artPJPpant»s IdLntPty 5umILr and :OarLOoSdLr»s aJJount numILr aSSoJatLd Iy tOL CLntraS +LposPtory 
Company.

In JasL oM JorporatL LntPty� tOL )oard oM +PrLJtors» rLsoSutPon � po^Lr oM attornLy ^PtO spLJPmLn sPNnaturL oM tOL nomPnLL sOaSS IL 
produJLd at tOL tPmL oM tOL mLLtPnN.

3. Change of Address
;OL :OarLOoSdLrs arL rLXuLstLd to promptSy notPMy JOanNL Pn tOLPr addrLss� PM any� to tOL Company»s :OarL 9LNPstrar.

4. Submission of copies of CNIC not provided earlier
IndP]PduaS :OarLOoSdLrs arL onJL aNaPn rLmPndLd to suImPt a Jopy oM tOLPr ]aSPd C5IC� PM not pro]PdLd LarSPLr to tOL Company»s :OarL 
9LNPstrar� CLntraS +LposPtory Company oM 7aRPstan LPmPtLd. In JasL oM non�a]aPSaIPSPty oM a ]aSPd Jopy oM tOL :OarLOoSdLrs» C5IC Pn tOL 
rLJords oM tOL Company� tOL Jompany sOaSS ^PtOOoSd tOL +P]PdLnd undLr tOL pro]PsPons oM :LJtPon ��� oM tOL CompanPLs (Jt ����.

5. Withholding Tax on Dividend
CurrLntSy� tOL dLduJtPon oM ^PtOOoSdPnN ta_ on tOL amount oM dP]PdLnd paPd Iy tOL JompanPLs undLr sLJtPon ��� oM tOL InJomL ;a_ 
6rdPnanJL� ����� Ps as undLr!
�a� -or pLrsons appLarPnN Pn (JtP]L ;a_ 7ayLr LPst �(;L�! ���
�I� -or pLrsons not appLarPnN Pn (JtP]L ;a_ 7ayLr LPst �(;L�! ���

:OarLOoSdLrs ^Oo Oa]L ÄSSLd tOLPr rLturn arL ad]PsLd to maRL surL tOat tOLPr namLs arL LntLrLd Pnto SatLst (JtP]L ;a_ 7ayLrs LPst �(;L� 
pro]PdLd on tOL ^LIsPtL oM -)9 at tOL tPmL oM dP]PdLnd paymLnt� otOLr^PsL tOLy sOaSS IL trLatLd as pLrsons not appLarPnN Pn (;L and 
ta_ on tOLPr JasO dP]PdLnd ^PSS IL dLduJtLd at tOL ratL oM ��� PnstLad oM ���.

6. Withholding tax on Dividend in case of Joint Account Holders
In ordLr to LnaISL tOL Company to MoSSo^ tOL dPrLJtP]Ls oM tOL rLNuSators to dLtLrmPnL sOarLOoSdPnN ratPo oM tOL 1oPnt (JJount 
/oSdLr�s� �^OLrL sOarLOoSdPnN Oas not ILLn dLtLrmPnLd Iy tOL 7rPnJPpaS sOarLOoSdLr� Mor dLduJtPon oM ^PtOOoSdPnN ta_ on dP]PdLnd 
oM tOL Company� sOarLOoSdLrs arL rLXuLstLd to pSLasL MurnPsO tOL sOarLOoSdPnN ratPo dLtaPSs oM tOLmsLS]Ls as 7rPnJPpaS sOarLOoSdLr 
and tOLPr 1oPnt /oSdLrs� to tOL Company»s  :OarL 9LNPstrar� LnaISPnN tOL Company to JomputL ^PtOOoSdPnN ta_ oM LaJO sOarLOoSdLr 
aJJordPnNSy. ;OL rLXuPrLd PnMormatPon must rLaJO tOL Company»s :OarL 9LNPstrar Iy 6JtoILr ��� ��� � otOLr^PsL LaJO sOarLOoSdLr 
^PSS IL assumLd to Oa]L LXuaS proportPon oM sOarLs and tOL ta_ ^PSS IL dLduJtLd aJJordPnNSy.

7. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (E-mandate)
In aJJordanJL ^PtO tOL pro]PsPons oM sLJtPon ��� oM tOL CompanPLs (Jt� ���� and CompanPLs �+PstrPIutPon oM +P]PdLnd� 9LNuSatPons� 
����� Pt Ps mandatory tOat dP]PdLnd payaISL Pn JasO sOaSS onSy IL paPd tOrouNO LSLJtronPJ modL dPrLJtSy Pnto tOL IanR aJJount 
dLsPNnatLd Iy tOL LntPtSLd sOarLOoSdLr. 5otPJL Pn tOPs rLNard Oas aSrLady  ILLn puISPsOLd LarSPLr Pn nL^spapLrs as pLr 9LNuSatPons. 
(SS sOarLOoSdLrs arL onJL aNaPn rLXuLstLd to pro]PdL dLtaPSs oM tOLPr IanR mandatL spLJPMyPnN! �P� tPtSL oM aJJount� �PP� aJJount numILr� 
�PPP� I)(5 numILr �P]� IanR namL and �]� IranJO namL� JodL 
 addrLss" to Company»s :OarL 9LNPstrar. :OarLOoSdLrs ^Oo OoSd sOarLs 
^PtO 7artPJPpants � CLntraS +LposPtory Company oM 7aRPstan �C+C� arL ad]PsLd to pro]PdL tOL mandatL to tOL JonJLrnLd )roRLr � 
C+C.

8. Distribution of Annual Report through Email (Optional)
7ursuant to tOL pro]PsPon oM sLJtPon ������ oM tOL CompanPLs (Jt� ����� tOL JompanPLs arL pLrmPttLd to JPrJuSatL tOLPr annuaS ÄnanJPaS 
statLmLnts� aSonN ^PtO audPtor»s rLport�  dPrLJtors»  rL]PL^ rLport LtJ.  �¸(nnuaS 9Lport¹� and tOL notPJL oM annuaS NLnLraS mLLtPnN 
�¸5otPJL¹�� to Pts sOarLOoSdLrs Iy LmaPS. :OarLOoSdLrs oM tOL Company ^Oo ^PsO to rLJLP]L tOL Company»s (nnuaS 9Lport and 5otPJLs 
oM annuaS NLnLraS mLLtPnN Iy  LmaPS  arL  rLXuLstLd to pro]PdL tOL JompSLtLd ,SLJtronPJ CommunPJatPon ConsLnt -orm �a]aPSaISL on 
tOL Company»s ^LIsPtL�� to tOL Company»s :OarL 9LNPstrar.

9. Consent for the Facility of video-link
7ursuant to tOL pro]PsPons oM tOL CompanPLs (Jt ����� tOL Jompany may on tOL dLmand oM mLmILrs at SLast � days ILMorL tOL 
NLnLraS mLLtPnN� rLsPdPnN Pn a JPty� ^Oo OoSd at SLast ��� oM tOL totaS paPd up JapPtaS oM tOL Company� pro]PdL tOL MaJPSPty oM ]PdLo� SPnR 
to suJO mLmILrs LnaISPnN tOLm to partPJPpatL Pn Pts annuaS NLnLraS mLLtPnN. IM you ^PsO to taRL ILnLÄt oM tOPs MaJPSPty� pSLasL ÄSS tOL 
Morm a]aPSaISL on tOL Company»s >LIsPtL and suImPt Pt to tOL Company at Pts rLNPstLrLd addrLss at SLast �� days prPor to tOL datL 
oM tOL mLLtPnN.

;OL Company ^PSS PntPmatL mLmILrs tOL ]LnuL oM tOL ]PdLo JonMLrLnJL MaJPSPty� PM rLXuPrLd JrPtLrPa Oa]L ILLn MuSÄSSLd� at SLast � days 
ILMorL tOL datL oM NLnLraS mLLtPnN aSonN ^PtO JompSLtL PnMormatPon nLJLssary to LnaISL tOLm to aJJLss suJO MaJPSPty.



Form of Proxy 
Thirtieth Annual General Meeting 

I/We,__________________________________________________________________________________

of ____________________________________________________________________________________                                          

being a member(s) of INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED, holder of _________________________

ordinary shares, as per Folio No. / CDC Participant ID & A/c No. ______________ hereby appoint 

Mr./Mrs./Ms.__________________________________________________Folio No. / CDC Participant 

ID & A/c No. __________________ of  ___________________________________, as my /our proxy 

in my/ our absence to attend and vote for me/ us and on my/our behalf at the Thirtieth Annual 

General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 08, 2019 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed under my / our hand this _____________ day of _________ 2019.

        -------------------------------------

Signed in the presence of:

Witness 1 Witness 2
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NOTES

�. ;OPs pro_y Morm duSy JompSLtLd and sPNnLd� must IL rLJLP]Ld at tOL oMÄJL oM tOL Company»s :OarL 
9LNPstrar� not SLss tOan �� Oours ILMorL tOL tPmL oM OoSdPnN tOL mLLtPnN. 

�. OL Company� L_JLpt 
tOat a JorporatPon may appoPnt a pLrson ^Oo Ps not a mLmILr.

�. IM a mLmILr appoPnts morL tOan onL pro_y and morL tOan onL PnstrumLnt oM pro_y arL dLposPtLd 
Iy a mLmILr ^PtO tOL Company� aSS suJO PnstrumLnts oM pro_y sOaSS IL rLndLrLd Pn]aSPd.

For CDC Account Holders/ Corporate Entities:

In addPtPon to tOL aIo]L tOL MoSSo^PnN rLXuPrLmLnts Oa]L to IL mLt!

P� ;OL pro_y Morm sOaSS IL ^PtnLssLd Iy t^o pLrsons ^OosL namLs� addrLssLs and C5IC numILrs 
sOaSS IL mLntPonLd on tOL Morm.

PP� (ttLstLd JopPLs oM C5IC or tOL passport oM tOL ILnLÄJPaS o^nLrs and tOL pro_y sOaSS IL MurnPsOLd 
^PtO tOL pro_y Morm.

PPP� ;OL pro_y sOaSS produJL OPs orPNPnaS C5IC or orPNPnaS passport at tOL tPmL oM mLLtPnN.

P]� In JasL oM JorporatL LntPty� tOL )oard oM +PrLJtors» rLsoSutPon � po^Lr oM attornLy ^PtO spLJPmLn 
sPNnaturL sOaSS IL suImPttLd �unSLss Pt Oas ILLn pro]PdLd LarSPLr� aSonN^PtO pro_y Morm to tOL 
Company.

(MÄ_ rL]LnuL 
stamp oM 
9s ���

:PNnaturL 
�:PNn sOouSd aNrLL ^PtO spLJPmLn 

rLNPstLrLd ^PtO tOL Company�

Notes



Electronic Dividend Mandate Form
Indus Motor Company Limited

In aJJordanJL ̂ PtO tOL pro]PsPons oM sLJtPon ��� oM tOL CompanPLs (Jt� ����� and CompanPLs �+PstrPIutPon 
oM +P]PdLnd� 9LNuSatPons� ����� Pt Ps mandatory tOat dP]PdLnd payaISL Pn JasO sOaSS onSy IL paPd tOrouNO 
LSLJtronPJ modL dPrLJtSy Pnto tOL IanR aJJount dLsPNnatLd Iy tOL LntPtSLd sOarLOoSdLr. 

:OarLOoSdLrs arL rLXuLstLd to sLnd tOL attaJOLd -orm duSy ÄSSLd and sPNnLd� aSonN ^PtO attLstLd Jopy 
oM tOLPr C5IC to tOL Company»s :OarL 9LNPstrar� M�s. C+C :OarL 9LNPstrar :Lr]PJLs Ltd.� C+C /ousL� 
  �)� )SoJR�)� :MC/:� MaPn :OaOraO�L�-aPsaS� 2araJOP. C+C sOarLOoSdLrs arL rLXuLstLd to suImPt tOLPr 
+P]PdLnd MandatL -orm and attLstLd Jopy oM C5IC dPrLJtSy to tOLPr IroRLr �partPJPpant��C+C.

I OLrLIy JommunPJatL to rLJLP]L my MuturL dP]PdLnds dPrLJtSy Pn my )anR aJJount as dLtaPSLd ILSo^!

5amL oM sOarLOoSdLr  !��������������������������������������������������������������������������

-oSPo 5umILr�C+C (JJount 5o.  ! ����������������������������oM Indus Motor Company LPmPtLd. 

ContaJt numILr oM sOarLOoSdLr  ! ��������������������������������������������������������������������������

;PtSL oM (JJount  ! ��������������������������������������������������������������������������

I)(5 ���  ! ��������������������������������������������������������������������������

5amL oM )anR  ! ��������������������������������������������������������������������������

)anR IranJO  ! ��������������������������������������������������������������������������

MaPSPnN (ddrLss oM )ranJO  ! ��������������������������������������������������������������������������

C5IC 5o. �attaJO attLstLd Jopy� ! ��������������������������������������������������������������������������

5;5 �Pn JasL oM JorporatL LntPty� ! ��������������������������������������������������������������������������

It Ps statLd tOat tOL aIo]L partPJuSars NP]Ln Iy mL arL JorrLJt and to tOL ILst oM my Rno^SLdNL" I sOaSS RLLp 
tOL Company PnMormLd Pn JasL oM any JOanNLs Pn tOL saPd partPJuSars Pn MuturL.

:OarLOoSdLr»s :PNnaturL                     +atL

56;,:!

�  7SLasL pro]PdL JompSLtL I)(5 �IntLrnatPonaS )anR (JJount 5umILr�� aMtLr JOLJRPnN ^PtO your 
JonJLrnLd )anR IranJO to LnaISL LSLJtronPJ JrLdPt dPrLJtSy Pnto your IanR aJJount.
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